100 North Appleton Street
Appleton, WI 54911-4799
www.appletonwi.gov

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

Finance Committee

Monday, August 11, 2025 5:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th Floor
1. Call meeting to order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Roll call of membership
4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting
25-0891

Finance Committee Meeting Minutes July 21, 2025
Attachments: MeetingMinutes 21-July-2025.pdf

5. Public Hearing/Appearances
6. Action Items
25-0892 Request to approve Riverside Cemetery Association reimbursement request

for maintenance of Veteran graves
Attachments: Grave Reimbursment 2024 to 2025.pdf

Military Report 2024 - 2025.pdf
VETERANS JULY 2024 - JUNE 2025.docx

25-0912 Request to approve the 2026 Special Assessment Policy

Attachments: 2026 Assessment Policy - 08-20-2025.pdf

25-0911 Request to approve sole source contract to Nordon Business Environments to
purchase new workstations in the amount of $350,113

Attachments: 2025 Community Dev. Furniture Upgrades Sole Source.pdf

FMD - Nordon.pdf

City of Appleton Page 1 Printed on 8/8/2025


https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26239
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b09b2566-2d8f-4153-9ad6-1dacb68f9509.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26240
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d07ecb36-c0ee-4d2c-8f0c-63cd0877fa8f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=88622a99-592a-440b-8126-66ffd99c404c.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=765e1698-a043-4207-ac10-f9301ee41423.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26260
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a8b7c121-799e-4d2a-a5dd-68d00d549fcd.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26259
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9e589f51-b469-4b3f-b882-21b2ea52dc94.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6540e037-8c28-46fa-9549-5b6fdfdd88ac.pdf

Finance Committee

Meeting Agenda - Final August 11, 2025

25-0942

25-0956

Request to award the Mead Pool Coating and ADA Upgrades Project contract
to Cardinal Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of $424,727 with a 7%
contingency of $29,731, for a project total not to exceed $454,458 along with the
following budget amendment (2/3 vote of council required):

Facilities Capital Projects Fund
2025 Parks Hardscapes -$144,878
Mead Pool Coating & ADA Upgrades +$144,878

Attachments: 2025 Mead Pool Coating and ADA Upgrades Project with Budget Transfer.pdf

Request to approve the following Budget amendment:

Wastewater Utility Fund
2024 Aeration Process Upgrades - $19,845
Phosphorus Analyzer +$19,845

To fund the purchase of a Chemscan miniOP phosphorus analyzer (2/3 vote of
Council required)

Attachments: 250808 Finance Budget Transfer P Analyzer.pdf

7. Information Iltems

25-0895

25-0893

25-0894

25-0941

25-0896

Contract 36-22 was awarded to Van Ert Electric Co. for $1,595,000 with a
contingency of $159,500 for the Substation Upgrade - Phase 5. Change orders
were approved totaling $35,988.04. Final contract amount is $1,630,988.04 with
a contingency of $123,511.96. Payments issued to date total $1,549,438.64.
Request final payment of $81,549.40.

Contract 78-25 was awarded to Norcon Corporation for $144,842.94 with a
contingency of $5,157.06 for Bridge Deck Sealing. Payments issued to date
total $134,367.47. Request final payment of $7,071.97.

Contract 15-23 was awarded to Staab Construction Corporation for $5,063,000
with a contingency of $759,450 for the Belt Filter Press - Phase 1. Change
orders were approved totaling $238,855. Final contract amount is $5,301,855
with a contingency of $520,595. Payments issued to date total $5,270,917.
Request final payment of $30,938.

Change Order #1 to Contract 46-24 Unit G-24 Southpoint Commerce Park
Sewer & Water and Grade & Gravel project with Carl Bowers & Sons
Construction Co. totaling $55,000 resulting in a decrease in contingency from
$65,000 to $10,000.

Attachments: G-24 Change Order No 1.pdf

Appleton Water Treatment Facility Bulk Hypochlorite Tank Replacement Tank
Purchase Awarded to GPI Corporation in the amount of $179,540.

Attachments: 250730 Finance Info Memo HypoTank Purchase.pdf

City of Appleton

Page 2 Printed on 8/8/2025


https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26290
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=41649d2a-ff26-483b-854f-0113793c1075.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26304
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a08b3208-7949-417c-9823-2947b23e622a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26243
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26241
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26242
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26289
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2f81963f-e61c-4ce8-a389-1d8ee0659c4e.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26244
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=046a9c9a-fe2f-4c0a-9b42-e0f124846c3a.pdf

Finance Committee Meeting Agenda - Final August 11, 2025

25-0952 Debt Issue Memo

Attachments: Debt Issue Memo.pdf

25-0752 2025 Mid Year Risk Report

Attachments: 2025 Mid Year Risk Report.pdf

8. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this
meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request
and if Feasible.

City of Appleton Page 3 Printed on 8/8/2025


https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26300
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=89234594-f755-430a-a638-7586b2f86485.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26100
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8f833b51-7c39-4f7f-93d3-b531fb7bce27.pdf

100 North Appleton Street

City of Appleton Appleton, W 54911-4799

www.appletonwi.gov

Meeting Minutes - Final
Finance Committee

Monday, July 21, 2025

5:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th Floor

1. Chair Firkus called the meeting to order at 5:38 p.m.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll call of membership

Present: 4 - Firkus, Van Zeeland, Fenton and Croatt

Excused: 1- Hartzheim

4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

25-0842

Finance Committee Meeting Minutes July 7, 2025

Attachments: MeetingMinutes07-July-2025.pdf

Croatt moved, seconded by Van Zeeland, that the Report Action Item be
approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 4 - Firkus, Van Zeeland, Fenton and Croatt

Absent: 1- Hartzheim

5. Public Hearing/Appearances

25-0868

6. Action Items

Brad Viegut from Baird presentation on the 2025 General Obligation
Notes, Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Sewerage System
Revenue Bonds, and Storm Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds
Sales

Attachments: prs financing plan_appleton finance committee 07.21.25.pdf

This Report Action Item was presented

25-0870 Request to approve a resolution authorizing and providing for the
issuance and establishing parameters for the sale of not to exceed
$10,865,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2025, and
all related details.

City of Appleton Page 1


https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26190
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=097178d8-08f2-4f14-a99e-48cc7b987746.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26216
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f6eb9422-dc00-41b0-b400-06dc476ae696.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26218

Finance Committee Meeting Minutes - Final July 21, 2025

Attachments: Appleton 2025 G.O. Promissory Notes - Parameters Resolution.pdf

Fenton moved, seconded by Van Zeeland, that the Report Action Item be
recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 4 - Firkus, Van Zeeland, Fenton and Croatt

Absent: 1- Hartzheim

25-0872 Request to approve a resolution authorizing and providing for the
issuance and establishing parameters for the sale of not to exceed
$8,975,000 Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2025,
and all related details.

Attachments: Appleton 2025 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds - Parameters
Resolution.pdf

Croatt moved, seconded by Van Zeeland, that the Report Action Item be
recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 4 - Firkus, Van Zeeland, Fenton and Croatt

Absent: 1- Hartzheim

25-0878 Request to approve a resolution authorizing and providing for the
issuance and establishing parameters for the sale of not to exceed

$4,725,000 Sewerage System Revenue Bonds, Series 2025, and alll
related details.

Attachments: Appleton 2025 Sewer Revenue Bonds - Parameters Resolution.pdf

Fenton moved, seconded by Van Zeeland, that the Report Action Item be
recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 4 - Firkus, Van Zeeland, Fenton and Croatt

Absent: 1- Hartzheim

25-0879 Request to approve a resolution authorizing and providing for the
issuance and establishing parameters for the sale of not to exceed
$8,800,000 Storm Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2025, and all related details.

Attachments: Appleton 2025 Storm Water Revenue Refunding Bonds -
Parameters Resolution.pdf

Croatt moved, seconded by Fenton, that the Report Action Item be
recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 4 - Firkus, Van Zeeland, Fenton and Croatt
Absent: 1- Hartzheim
25-0845 Request to award construction services to RUM Construction in the

amount of $828,500 with a 10% contingency of $82,850 for a project
total not to exceed $911,350.

City of Appleton Page 2


https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=199f0a3d-dfe1-41d9-99b5-30536cf593fb.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26220
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=aeda7b05-3a0b-49b5-9b7c-7329a42fe40e.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26226
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c508073c-755c-4007-a0c1-a7c52e5ab2aa.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26227
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=63841751-4790-4780-ab10-02dbf99c0441.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26193

Finance Committee Meeting Minutes - Final July 21, 2025

Attachments: 2025 RJM Renovation Contract.pdf

Fenton moved, seconded by Van Zeeland, that the Report Action Item be
recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 4 - Firkus, Van Zeeland, Fenton and Croatt

Absent: 1- Hartzheim

7. Information Items

25-0843 Contract 16-25 was awarded to Norcon Construction $203,946.00 with
a contingency of $20,394.60 for the Lawe Street Bridge over Fox River
Repairs. Change orders were approved totaling $5,961.38. Final
contract amount is $209,907.38 with a contingency of $14,433.22.
Payments issued to date total $199,412.01. Request final payment of
$10,495.37.

This Report Action Item was presented

25-0846 Contract 78-25 was awarded to Norcon Corporation for $144,842.94
with a contingency of $5,157.06 for Bridge Deck Sealing. No
payments issued to date. Request final payment of $134,367.47.

This Report Action Iltem was presented

25-0849 Change Orders #5, #6, and #7 to Staab Construction contract as part
of the AWWTP Phase 2 Belt Filter Press Equipment Upgrades Project
totaling $74,137 resulting in a decrease in contingency from $100,811
to $26,674.

Attachments: 250716 Finance Memo Phase 2 BFP Change Orders
5-7_Staab.pdf

This Report Action Iltem was presented

25-0850 Change Orders #3, #4, and #5 to August Winter and Sons, Inc.
contract as part of the AWWTP Grit System & Raw Sludge Pump
Replacement Project totaling $16,050 resulting in a decrease in
contingency from $38,377 to $22,327.

Attachments: 071025 FinanceMemo AWWTP GritProj ChangeOrders 3-5.pdf

This Report Action Iltem was presented

25-0851 Change Orders #2 and #3 to Sabel Mechanical as part of the AWWTP
Mix Liquor Channel Blower Replacement Project totaling $18,581.61
resulting in a decrease in contingency from $43,856.81 to $25,275.20.

Attachments: 250710 _FinanceMemo AWWTP
MLChannelBlower ChangeOrders2-3.pdf

City of Appleton Page 3


https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1076b11d-938b-43d4-a478-74404ab71b1c.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26191
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26194
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26197
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=39f12dee-a1aa-4afa-95b6-d837236bfec2.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26198
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=639e81ca-9c0d-40f9-a864-22e6000ed49f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26199
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=377ad8af-7428-495c-9e0c-2aef14324bc1.pdf

Finance Committee

Meeting Minutes - Final

July 21, 2025

25-0852

25-0858

8. Adjournment

This Report Action Iltem was presented

2025 Finance Mid-Year Report

Attachments: 2025 Finance Mid-Year Report.pdf

This Report Action Iltem was presented

2025 Legal and Administrative Services Mid-Year Report

Attachments: 2025 Mid Year Report - FINAL.pdf

This Report Action Item was presented

Fenton moved, seconded by Van Zeeland, that the be adjourned at 5:56 p.m.
Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 4 - Firkus, Van Zeeland, Fenton and Croatt

Absent: 1- Hartzheim

City of Appleton

Page 4


https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26200
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9fae2304-502d-463d-9075-06ca4e06ca17.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26206
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bba1a08f-4dfc-4267-add5-ebc389a1b7dd.pdf

NAME OF CEMETERY: /""%\ vex~ %\(\6 (Q,n’\;z;\d u)

LOCATION OF CEMETERY: 714 N Owanssa % H\oo\g}’m\ Wi SMA
(Street/Road Address and Town, Village or City)

CONTACT PERSON: Nello, Ohacon 070-722 -Se29

(If questions regarding this submittal) (Nag)e) (Phone)

1. Is perpetual care included in a lot purchase in your cemetery? @ NO

(If YES please attach a copy of the perpetual care agreement)

2. How many of the veteran graves DO NOT include a perpetual care agreement?
3. If perpetual care is not included, is care cost charged to all grave lot owners? YES @
o
1. *Cost per grave upkeep per grave lot $ | O, ©
(Eligible costs divided by total # of grave lots within entire cemetery)
2. Number of soldier’s graves NOT covered under perpetual care X 607 O
(Including spouses & women’s auxiliary)
3. Requested reimbursable expense for care of soldier’s graves NOT
covered under perpetual care. G
(Including spouses & women’s auxiliary) $ [ (3'/7 cC. ©
4. Did you provide an up-dated listing of the veteran’s names YES NO
We, the officers of KR‘\ vers ke Cemetery Association, hereby certify that

the upkeep and care of each grave is $ 10.©¢ that the assessment is in compliance with ss 157.11(7)(a),
and ss157.11(7)(b), and is no more than the charge made for the care of other graves, and that such graves are
receiving proper care.

It is further certified that suitable care of said graves has not been provided by perpetual care, private
funds, or the cost for grave upkeep has not been collected as part of the funeral expenses, or otherwise.

7-24-202% (e L ynveen

Date Cemutdg/)/\sso(:laﬁon President

A’\\{\ SCKC\ e

Cemetery Associafion Secretary

M Sewdl de S

Cemetery Association Treasurer

At a regular meeting of the Town, Village, City of held on
, the above charges were approved for payment.

Municipal Clerk Date

Send Check to:

*Cost includes maintenance of grave and tombstone; i.e. grass cutting, weed trimming, leveling of tombstone,




Lastname

Patten
Baer
Baer
Baer
Chamberlain
Loope
Chamberlain
Reese
Wolf
Priest
Priest
Olmstead
Becker
Glaser
Saecker
Wolfe
Rosebush
Hyde
Lyons
Carnes
Carnes
Wilmsen
Mitchell
Chilson
Kamphuis
Remley
Stolzman
Schnetzer
Lastofka
Hauert
Gasper
Person
Tippet
Ingold
McPheeters
Roberts
Voigt
Schultz
Probst
Brokaw
Johnson
Bamke

Firstname

Lyman Beecher
John
Charles O.
John

John
Russel
Charles W.
Thomas
Frank
James E.
William Henry
Lamar
Deane
Dwain R.
Austin
Leigh

John McNaughton
Welcome
Joseph
Robert M.
F. Clark
Fredrich
William Dean
William
Jerome
Samuel G.
JamesR.
Robert G.
Louis J.
Alvin
Raymond
John

Earl)
Arthur J. Jr.
William
John David
Raymond B
Elton
Jason
Norman
Melvin
Neil P.

Middle

M

Jacob
Hopkins
A

Severe

Henry

Brayton

Birth Date

01/01/1835
01/01/1846
03/22/1873
07/04/1814
09/01/1842
10/15/1815
03/10/1878
04/28/1849
10/27/1833
01/01/1843
01/01/1841
02/02/1842
10/24/1897
1/17/1923
02/13/1896
03/04/1894
4/13/1919
05/23/1822
8/26/1908
3/12/1912
8/20/1914
1/25/1929
04/07/1897
01/01/1844
2/15/1936
5/10/1922
10/7/1939
9/18/1933
4/12/1931
02/18/1892
6/26/1931
8/9/1929
09/19/1892
712711900
01/06/1884
6/30/1922
03/10/1889
11/24/1924
5/29/1964
6/15/1917
8/18/1926
5/20/1920

Death Date

1/18/1907
1/25/1936
08/18/1898
12/07/1872
1/1/1924
04/30/1891
4/4/1948
4/22/1902
10/20/1924
12/28/1861
9/30/1930
3/5/1917
2/17/1941
12/16/2003
11/26/1974
4/7/1986
11/5/1978
11/2/1902
5/9/1987
4/10/1995
6/25/2008
12/26/1991
7/1/1963
4/28/1909
4/13/2016
10/4/2018
9/15/1987
10/16/1987
3/4/1971
9/29/1945
10/5/1987
8/24/2023
4/20/1975
1/9/1922
1/14/1962
5/20/2001
12/14/1971
12/17/2006
12/12/1989
7126/1999
7/8/1987
8/6/1999

Enter Service D

04/28/1898

08/24/1864
10/18/1861
12/13/1913
08/21/1862
10/21/1861
09/13/1861
08/07/1862
09/07/1861

4/15/1944
5/15/1918
2/1/1918
4/1/1942
02/28/1862

5/1/1943

4/21/1917

2/10/1959
7/9/1952
1/5/1951
7/14/1917
1/30/1951
8/29/1951

10/7/1918

3/29/1918

7/11/1984

12/19/1944
12/21/1945



Krynock
Schroeder
DuVallJr.
Zibolsky
Young
Kasten
LaRocco
Neiderhauser
Clanton
King
Johnson
Wallis
Talbot
Brew
Krueger
Christen
Christen
Barth
Krueger
Boughton
Vandenhoy
Wienandt
Koehnke
Koehnke
Neidhold
Watry
Heinemann
Johnson
Steudel
Rahn
Smith
Steward
Spielmann
Sweetalla
Bauernfeind
Neller
Neller
Boettcher
Costello
Swiekatowski
Elgin
Pomplun
Pompa
Hausher

Robert C. Sr.
Robert
Kenneth K.
Bernhart C.
James
Stephen
John

Les

John
Ronald
Jack
Donald C.
Marvyn A.
David L.
Harold P.
Marjorie
Wilbert F.
Kenneth
John H.
Robert
Richard
Kenneth
Henry F. Jr.
Walter H.
Carl
Robert P.
Capt. Fred
Thorston Oscar
John

Carl
Edward A.
Rodger E.
Siegfried
Delvin J.
Dale O
Robert J.
James
Richard
Philip A.
John A.
June
Harold
Harold
Gordon

Mark

Locke

Muriel
C
G
E

2/11/1929
6/23/1929
10/1/1929
9/5/1926
7/16/1951
4/25/1947
3/23/1919
12/14/1929
5/20/1931
7/31/1943
1/21/1921
7/13/1921
3/18/1921
12/30/1937
4/26/1930
4/2/1921
11/24/1918
10/30/1932
4/24/1946
11/23/1937
3/24/1954
11/2/1922
02/16/1878
06/10/1895
05/15/1897
1/8/1933
02/10/1841
4/3/1906
8/20/1920
9/1/1925
1/14/1920
8/6/1940
2/22/1955
2/8/1929
3/1/1938
4/4/1911
4/26/1914
2/14/1944
4/6/1929
4/12/1938
6/7/1920
10/22/1934
9/30/1922
4/3/1921

8/22/2000
6/4/2018
8/23/2011
5/11/2007
10/9/2022
71712016
12/11/1999
10/4/1997
10/19/2011
11/23/2009
8/4/1997
3/21/2010
7/7/2003
12/12/2003
4/13/1995
12/4/1991
9/15/1995
3/18/2005
7/15/2002
2/7/2021
3/13/2009
7/11/1991
8/14/1926
9/8/1960
1/15/1973
7/31/2020
6/10/1929
9/23/1982
8/3/2002
5/29/2007
7/3/1988
11/12/2001
9/15/2009
11/21/1992
4/15/1994
8/9/1989
12/31/2010
12/1/2021
5/24/2010
8/7/1990
3/7/2015
6/27/2021
11/3/2000
10/24/1983

7/29/1948

9/29/1944

4/1/1943
6/29/1951

9/15/1942

1/13/1943

11/16/1951
2/23/1944
5/27/1942
2/25/1953
2/10/1966

1/11/1943

5/24/1918
7/30/1944

09/06/1861
4/11/1924
9/9/1942

7/28/1944
10/15/1961

9/7/1951
11/2/1961
8/13/1943

71711955

10/15/1961
1/4/1943
12/2/1942



Badtke
Ramsay
Kuehmsted
Watters
McGowan
Garvey
Tidwell
Bauer
Walker
Schroeder
Claypool
Whitman
Krause
Alstad
Sigler
Davis
Davis
Ramminger
Hulsey
Morris
Polzin
Cook Jr.
Cronmiller
Holbrook
Brown
Werth
Lichterman
Lichterman
Ester
Wilber
Filen

Filen
Boyer
Borden
Corbett
McCoy
McCoy
Konrad
Hilfert
Sanborn
Cooper
Petersen
Schmidt
Meyer

Harvey

William Blaine
Arthur 0
Dale

John F
Daniel Lee
Charles E.

Louis W.

Thomas L.

Clifford A.

Blaine W.

Lyle E.

Rudolph

Alvin C.

SamuelY.

Donald W.

Clyde R.

Herbert

Fred

John P.

George W. Dr.

Lawrence S.

Bruce

Ronald L

JamesE.

Robert L.

Lynn J
Gerald A
Leland
Marion
Howard L
James
Cheney
Keith
Kenneth
Alexander
Donald
Dean P
CharlesH

Loran L.

David A
Andrew F.

Franklin F
Otto F

T m R I

Bernard

11/10/1912
7/15/1928
05/22/1883
11/25/1927
8/8/1937
11/27/1948
4/2/1923
11/7/1918
4/23/1949
11/4/1942
9/10/1924
8/4/1926
04/01/1894
6/12/1919
5/30/1939
4/4/1905
6/29/1936
10/12/1917
10/26/1928
12/10/1919
08/06/1899
5/4/1935
4/14/1923
7/19/1943
6/4/1941
6/10/1933
7/2/1931
6/5/1961
4/22/1928
4/5/1933
12/4/1915
7/2/1938
04/16/1886
11/11/1938
4/30/1900
01/05/1842
5/6/1900
11/7/1931
01/01/1845
09/10/1843
4/28/1932
03/14/1877
2/14/1917
09/02/1894

6/1/1988
4/1/2016
2/8/1948
5/9/1987
714/2016
2/26/2019
4/9/1999
10/13/1988
2/28/2017
3/4/2004
6/20/2010
11/12/2021
5/26/1993
3/7/1997
11/3/1995
8/10/1981
1/22/2010
6/12/1974
8/13/2016
6/3/2002
9/27/1974
5/22/2008
11/11/1996
11/18/1995
2/10/2009
3/18/1998
8/25/2013
10/9/1997
4/13/2006
4/20/2010
8/28/1978
12/22/2014
2/11/1943
5/22/2006
11/3/1964
12/08/1893
4/29/1968
5/7/2003
6/21/1916
1/29/1922
12/21/2011
1/4/1955
6/28/1996
9/17/1972

8/27/1942

8/29/1918

2/27/1946

2/22/1945

2/4/1943

3/18/1960

8/4/1944
9/20/1959

2/7/1964
6/21/1942

9/12/1945
10/4/1918
6/23/1952
12/11/1942

7/3/1961
3/30/1959

11/25/1983

4/13/1945

5/13/1917

10/14/1918

7/8/1942

10/22/1952

05/29/1862

05/19/1864

04/28/1898

7122/1918



Doerfler
Bolton
Voigt
Phinney
Youtz
Koletzke
Waugus
Waugus
Bowlby
Bowlby
Faas
Crowe
Dittmer
Sherman
Krentz Jr.
Crowe
Huven
Graef
Holmes
Nitzbond
Johnson
Chandler
Hoh

Zeh

Wolt
Zilske
Grunst
Slattery
Grearson
Buesing
Buesing
Baumler
Risse
Welsch
Engelland
Hanselman
Page
Hoppe
Ingenthron
Wege
LeMieux
Slomski
Slomski
Manske

Joseph H.
Ernest
John
Michael
Merrill A. Dr.
Max, Sr.
Clyde W.
Glenne
Claude
Howard
Bob Adrian
Pat M.
Cedric
Irvin C.
Joseph M
Clarence
James
Lothar G
Burton
Eugene J.
Bentley M.
James C.
Orrin W
Edward
Darold
Robert
Otto
Kenneth Lt.
Filmore
Melvin
Ralph
John L.
Adolph
Herbert
Arthur
Norman Wm
Rueben
Eugene O.
Richard J.
Roger
HenriJ.
AlvinT.
Mark
Clifford

Leroy
Louis

M

Wellington

1/28/1910
08/20/1877
6/1/1935
11/1/1939
12/09/1894
03/10/1887
4/9/1919
9/12/1922
6/7/1907
12/22/1918
7/1/1934
5/13/1948
10/09/1898
09/25/1892
12/2/1972
6/6/1906
11/21/1936
09/27/1882
12/22/1919
7/30/1916
03/17/1893
2/3/1921
7/3/1902
12/29/1903
9/22/1926
1/16/1906
01/11/1887
1/1/1919
7/16/1917
12/26/1915
4/8/1924
9/5/1928
01/01/1887
6/27/1919
7/31/1921
6/18/1912
4/7/1919
1/4/1928
4/29/1930
9/8/1931
8/8/1922
8/10/1923
7/23/1954
2/16/1921

10/21/1996
10/17/1961
12/12/2023
5/8/2016
9/21/1964
4/28/1958
12/13/2006
12/15/2015
12/24/1997
7/24/1983
9/22/1990
3/12/2007
1/11/1979
12/16/1973
3/22/2021
3/1/1986
12/27/2014
9/22/1957
3/24/1944
4/4/1999
11/19/1962
4/3/1961
8/8/1962
7/21/1952
2/12/1981
12/6/1954
6/18/1956
6/18/1944
11/9/1988
7/28/1989
7/7/2018
10/8/2011
2/26/1943
5/5/2013
3/26/2004
3/2/1989
4/14/2008
3/14/1986
6/22/2003
12/7/2001
7/14/1979
8/19/2001
6/1/1993
10/25/2011

1/5/1943
6/4/1918

9/18/1917
4/3/1918
10/15/1940

9/30/1943
7/8/1943
2/10/1953
10/26/1965
10/16/1918
5/31/1917

3/18/1941

6/16/1916

11/15/1943
5/14/1918
9/24/1942
9/16/1942

6/4/1944

4/29/1918
11/10/1944
8/13/1943
3/10/1941

6/27/1946
7/22/1918

1/18/1944
10/14/1942
2/2/1943
3/7/1946
10/25/1946
1/30/1952

9/23/1940



Slomski
Pingel
Warren
Risse
Bradley
Rawlinson
Cumber
Lehr
Thao
Willer
Willer

La Pine
Dowe
Nicholson
Keller
Gensler
Mueller
Budrick
Budrick
Allinger
Boye
Henk
Randall
Rehlender
Mueller
Kranzusch
Schmidli
Gaulke
Lappen
Van Heuklon
Whirry
Felzer
Felzer
Holmes
Aspinall
McCrary
Ahlschwede
Prink
Pearson
Semler
Learned
Jahnke
Collins
Lorenz

Patrick
Alfred
Dwight
Rudolph A.
Everett
George R.
Frank
Klaus
Yeng Pao
Harvey E.
Gene
Lewis
John H.
Harry
Raymond Fred
Melvin H.
Lloyd
Robert Paul
John K.
Don
Charles
Ray Sr
Rier H.
Herman F.
Bruce
Melvin
EmilH. H.Jr.
Edward A.
Daniel E.
James
Harvey W.
Theodore
Theodore "Ted"
Iral.S.
Alfred
Sidney
Joseph
James
Charles M.
Richard
Lawrence
Herman
Steven
Kenneth

o= >

James

0=

>

s—-oo0>

6/7/1952
11/13/1896
12/4/2011
02/06/1893
3/27/1922
02/06/1890
07/30/1883
10/8/1941
6/15/1958
3/7/1930
1/1/1933
04/30/1897
2/19/1906
10/4/1906
10/18/1902
9/26/1913
4/12/1922
12/11/1956
12/11/1956
6/15/1927
04/16/1842
10/22/1897
08/11/1825
07/05/1893
7/9/1946
7/23/1911
12/15/1921
01/01/1888
6/1/1939
01/16/1883
11/30/1891
04/30/1892
2/12/1925
01/01/1824
01/10/1821
07/14/1899
12/7/1907
1/17/1927
11/14/1895
08/15/1887
01/01/1897
09/04/1892
5/7/1947
4/14/1932

10/3/2012
11/2/1987
12/4/2011
10/21/1969
1/3/2001
3/1/1958
3/2/1958
2/1/1992
2/25/2016
12/19/1994
1/13/1977
1/22/1968
2/23/1991
10/20/1970
11/3/1996
6/21/1980
1/14/2015
3/12/1987
4/17/1993
9/23/2017
9/24/1920
3/21/1966
1/11/1907
8/22/1977
5/10/2014
1/3/1988
6/18/2005
10/28/1965
6/15/1997
8/11/1938
12/13/1951
8/26/1968
12/25/2018
7122/1916
7/8/1902
6/2/1918
8/9/1982
7/30/2013
2/23/1963
8/30/1959
10/27/1966
10/11/1918
7/20/2023
7127711984

713/1917

9/4/1918
10/16/1942
9/3/1918

2/23/1949
1/7/1953
5/1/1918

1/25/1943

4/25/1942

12/31/1974

08/21/1862

5/9/1917

07/11/1861

7122/1918

1/1/1965

3/27/1942

6/13/1942

2/23/1982

5/25/1918
7/18/1918

07/31/1862
01/03/1862

8/28/1942

10/1/1917
9/28/1917

12/15/1914
6/23/1967



Estergaard
Pauls
Wolff
Gibson
Auerswald
Stillman
Hoppe
Rehmer
Reetz
Steffen
Wegner
Goman
Goman
Nelson
Rohrig
Pasch
Schatzman
Rohrbach
Martienssen
Arnold
Korte
Bedell
Stillman
Brinkman
Fox

Kretschmann

McMahon

Rethlesberger

Streck
Behling
Zilske
Zilske
Zilske
Kunstman
Ricker
Ricker
Keller
Smith
Fischer
Heins
Ellis
Hauert
Rechner
Panfield

Jack

Roy
Edwin
Wm. (Bill)
EdgarH
Richard
Leo
Charles
William
Clement
Albert
Helen
Robert
Archie
William
Reinhold
Frank
Ludwig
Adolph
Fredrich
Fred
John W
David B.
Walter N.
H.D.
Alfred E.
LaMoine
John
Otto
CharlesH
Frank
Charles
William
Richard
Andrew
Arthur P.
Charles
CarlW.
Donald C.
JohnT
Allen Lt Col
Robert
John
Victor

A

Lester
Mike
F
Albert
Henry
F

B

L

William

7/2/1904
08/11/1894
10/03/1891
11/10/1939
04/22/1894
1/26/1931
8/1/1937
09/25/1894
09/02/1895
9/4/1903
11/12/1886
11/28/1913
8/10/1914
04/15/1889

08/22/1891
01/01/1889
09/15/1835
03/15/1831
09/28/1825
05/11/1888
04/14/1828
06/03/1824
01/01/1892
01/02/1842
05/27/1891
7/18/1925
11/21/1827
05/12/1889
2/21/1905
01/01/1892
12/22/1889
05/19/1888
3/7/1930
01/10/1840
10/26/1892
6/24/1927
4/3/1924
11/30/1928
04/10/1891
11/27/1888
1/14/1949
8/8/1913
12/18/1896

712311967
12/14/1938
11/27/1918
6/13/1998
2/12/1944
5/9/1984
6/11/2019
3/24/1927
6/7/1988
11/16/1956
5/12/1926
10/15/2008
5/19/2012
6/5/1919
07/05/1897
12/25/1957
8/31/1931
04/02/1899
7/31/1916
3/9/1903
6/2/1934
11/15/1907
3/17/1910
11/24/1951
2/7/1920
8/24/1924
9/3/1986
09/21/1898
10/30/1968
1/27/1978
3/6/1944
12/13/1945
7/10/1963
3/12/1998
4/19/1919
12/8/1973
4/20/2019
11/27/2000
9/12/2008
3/9/1955
8/17/1943
3/8/2013
6/28/1984
3/22/1974

7/8/1918
5/25/1918
10/29/1959

9/14/1951

7/15/1917
4/25/1917

2/8/1918
4/26/1943

5/17/1918
03/03/1862
5/25/1918
5/25/1918

01/01/1850
10/01/1864
9/18/1917

01/08/1862
08/30/1864
11/27/1917
05/18/1861
12/15/1917

10/14/1864

5/27/1942

9/18/1917
11/21/1917

12/01/1864
7122/1918

3/24/1943

4/24/1918
7/15/1917

12/3/1943
7/14/1917



Heiss
Harwood
Johnston
Fox
Wheeler
Magnus
Kipp
Pfeffer
Hammer
Gleisner
Goehler
Streck
Kopenhefer
Rippel
Hoppe
Grupe
Dietrich
Dietrich
Sheldon
Ganzen
Calnin
Ganzen
Hill

Allan
Richter
Engel
Anderson
VanBuskirk
Wolff
Wolff
Radtke
Meltz
Court
Guenther
Goldbeck
Burhans
Mueller
Baker
Schulz
Robinson
Steward
Mason
Tornow
Joyce

William
Dewey
Everett Oney
William T.
Samuel S.
James C.
Malcolm
Joseph
James
Henry G.
Robert
Viola
Ralph
Wiliam
OttoH
Ferdinand
John C.
Herbert G.
Sanford
Paul
Michael
Charles H.
Charles
Dr. Newlin W
Gustave
Albert
Carl A
William
Glen

Lyle
Arthur
Ramona
JohnR.
Charles
Beck
Donald E.
Donald W.
John
Harold F
Edmund
James
William
Raymond
Thomas

o

L
M
Bradford

M O

‘—'T'II'I'IEI_

Otto

3/23/1900
10/2/1926
12/18/1889
01/01/1875
1/5/1903
11/28/1933
02/14/1890
07/28/1886
5/29/1925
11/03/1898
11/9/1928
9/30/1907
11/06/1878
10/13/1839
03/19/1896
06/01/1827
11/19/1880
08/29/1896
03/08/1849
01/12/1873
7/9/1930
05/06/1874
6/16/1939
09/20/1894
11/30/1909
7/21/1906
5/21/1907
12/26/1904
5/28/1927
6/2/1923
11/25/1899
4/18/1931
08/27/1894
12/20/1887
10/31/1901
3/9/1917
1/22/1919
04/28/1841
11/02/1898
01/01/1826
8/13/1923
01/01/1827
4/18/1905
01/01/1836

7/30/1918
12/28/2008
7/29/1918
1/3/1927
1/5/1903
11/23/1992
5/13/1924
3/15/1949
5/15/1944
4/8/1978
7/2/1990
1/27/1996
12/2/1952
4/13/1919
12/12/1968
03/25/1889
5/12/1971
1/8/1980
03/04/1891
12/2/1942
11/7/1975
6/28/1953
10/15/2013
6/30/1961
12/20/1971
10/23/1991
8/20/1986
5/30/1970
5/2/2019
9/8/2015
6/11/1926
1/7/2019
10/22/1966
2/23/1970
3/4/1992
8/20/1994
11/16/1963
8/15/1901
5/14/1954
02/23/1894
9/18/1995
02/21/1885
9/28/1987
1/1/1913

5/19/1915
711/1944

09/17/1861
11/14/1951

5/25/1918
9/1/1943
10/26/1942
1/31/1946
11/7/1943
10/14/1898
11/10/1862
7/8/1918
09/30/1864
12/14/1898

04/10/1862
04/28/1898
10/30/1951
04/28/1898

4/7/1917
10/17/1942
7/20/1943

12/9/1942

9/30/1918

7/3/1917
10/2/1917
11/18/1942
12/28/1942
9/10/1941
08/13/1862
9/30/1918
08/13/1862

02/29/1864

03/01/1865



Behnke
LaCount
Hawley
Huth
Hardy
Reese
Braeger
Matthes
Knuth
Knuth
Wing
Schafelke
Fraser
Dryer
Armstrong
Armstrong
Gothe
Steinert
Steinert
Steinert
Holzer
Longworth
Steiner
Miotke
Sheldon
Weimar
Artis

Hill
Williams
Portmann
Isenberg
Pierre
Miller
Hoffmann
Gatz
Peotter
Campbell
Verwey
Kuban
Hrudka
Bomier
Morgan

Popp
Dort

Henry)
Bruce
David L.
Elton C.
Norbert
David
George
John
Elmer
Fred
Ebenezer
William
Earle
Joseph
Robert C
Thomas M.
Donald
William
William
George
Leslie
Thomas
Chester
George
George
Fredrick
Horace
Floyd
Kenneth
Joseph
William
John A.
William
Louis
Emil
Walter
Howard
George
Walter
Ladimier
Godrey Vet.
Nathan
Elmer C.
OscarlL..

Evan

C
Charles

G
J

Louis

m —< m T ™

Charles
S
K

August

Evan

12/15/1874
4/6/1957
10/7/1937
10/9/1932
5/21/1927
9/20/1922
01/07/1890
01/01/1829
4/21/1912
12/10/1893
05/19/1829
11/14/1893
04/04/1897
12/19/1838
7/5/1909
8/5/1942
12/13/1927
04/29/1836
10/09/1863
02/26/1892
07/06/1895
03/04/1893
11/6/1921
3/21/1925
05/27/1839
5/7/2000

8/2/1912
4/4/1907
2/24/1913
1/1/1943
09/25/1895
4/29/1933
01/01/1897
02/28/1887
11/26/1889
7/14/1917
01/01/1898
3/13/1903
12/22/1893
04/14/1847
05/12/1842
12/04/1896
07/10/1840

12/19/1955
8/10/2020
9/14/2016
7/3/2000
5/22/2011
7/13/1995
10/14/1954
10/13/1910
2/26/1990
3/3/1957
8/20/1910
7/15/1918
12/2/1968
11/25/1917
2/22/1988
6/14/2005
5/17/1927
6/4/1918
7/14/1932
3/9/1956
11/1/1950
11/7/1955
2/18/2019
11/14/1999
8/14/1917
1/11/1910
6/11/1910
2/6/1948
3/31/1972
12/30/1996

10/10/1969
6/2/2013
4/7/1926
2/19/1958
4/1/1970
717/1995
2/15/1971
1/18/1989
6/11/1959
4/6/1915
10/10/1916
10/8/1920
1/9/1918

04/28/1898

2/25/1953

5/25/1918
12/20/1864
3/20/1942
7122/1918
08/27/1864
6/22/1916
4/2/1917

12/29/1942
8/31/1962
1/1/1950

04/21/1862
2/20/1918
9/7/1917
6/3/1918

7/5/1943
08/12/1862
12/31/1861

3/27/1944
1/6/1944
1/27/1941

7123/1917

8/13/1918
9/18/1917
5/1/1918
2/5/1943
7/3/1917
8/19/1942
5/24/1918
05/27/1864
04/28/1898



Miller
Redmond
Nichols
Murray
Peot

Peot
Patterson
Hess
Bauer

Bragg
Perry

Popp
Rohm
Norman
Wundrow
Meidam
Gilbertson
Anderson
Storm
Storm
Rothe
Hameister
Hameister
Plank
Bongers
Bongers
Everson
Schroeder
Whitman
Barry
Spaude
Juhnke
Laabs
Miller
Harris
LaChappelle
Gordon
Pommerenke
Busch
Rusch
Brewer
Brewer
Schwendler
Reinke

Wilbur

Helen

Clarence

Kenneth L
Marjorie J.

Arthur

Wilson S
Reuben J
Fred A
Wallace J.

Norman R
Conrad
Elmer R.
Lawrence T.
Wilbert Len
Adrian
Gordon
Cyrus
William
Ernest
Eugene G. G
HermanE

William C
David

Robert (Bert)

Roy E
Harold

Orville H enry

Cecil E.

John C
Louis

John

Harry

Carlton H.
Richard
William Joseph
David O
Walter )
Edward J.
Emery

James w
Frank Marshall

Carl G
Harry F.

==

o)

1/15/1926
9/12/1906
12/28/1897
5/24/1917
8/27/1919
4/24/1918
6/9/1914
07/16/1894
02/15/1894
9/14/1911
9/2/1932
07/13/1865
04/06/1898
3/23/1919
5/1/1924
3/16/1912
9/11/1915

09/17/1891
09/11/1889
5/8/1925
04/19/1896
7/15/1934
5/15/1932
06/19/1892
2/6/1924
1/23/1922
04/29/1896
8/4/1912
1/10/1928
11/09/1878
10/26/1896
11/16/1892
1/19/1929
5/30/1915
11/12/1905
4/25/1907
1/2/1928
1/17/1939
04/03/1896
10/28/1918
5/22/1916
3/12/1937
11/20/1918

8/4/2011
9/13/1992
2/16/1935
7/19/2000
7/14/2003
3/3/1992
10/4/1993
1/8/1971
4/12/1947
1/17/1961
8/27/2019
2/16/1923
8/13/1966
8/6/2003
5/6/2002
3/30/1984
9/13/1999
2/8/1920
5/30/1921
3/8/1926
2/18/1998
12/19/1959
2/25/2006
9/30/2020
4/29/1958
1/11/1993
1/13/1999
11/11/1933
5/8/1994
9/10/2014
9/3/1918
9/2/1921
3/10/1978
9/28/2003
6/10/1989
6/3/1987
3/19/1958
8/21/2006
1/28/2012
2/20/1946
1/21/1943
10/30/1977
9/5/2018
10/23/1971

1/29/1940
1/10/1944
6/5/1942

9/5/1917
2/28/1942

08/15/1862
5/10/1915
6/27/1941
6/26/1944
12/17/1943
1/13/1942
5/25/1918
4/25/1918
7/8/1918
9/8/1943
4/20/1918

4/2/1918

712/1943

07/14/1818
5/11/1945

2/18/1918

5/26/1942

6/27/1942

7/8/1918

2/18/1942



Reinke
Reinke
Reinke
Kibbie
Keane
Keane
Fellows
Herrmann
Herrmann
Potter
Cleveland
Abendroth
Errington
Liesch
Mead
Renner
Brainerd
Steenis
Sager
Sager
Burton
Lyons
Bartel
Bartel
Nickasch
Gmeiner
Kenyon
McDonald
Hartsworn
Kenney
Strobel
Kampo
Sanders
Carpenter
Wood
Strutz
Thompson
Kranz
Kranzusch
Kimball
Brown
Schabo
Korte
Herzfeldt

Clifford
Roy
Harold
Fred William
Keith
Elizabeth
Walter W.
Rudolph
Donald
Ralph Oram
Theodore
Frederick
William
Anton
Leonard
George A.
Carlos
Wilbur
William F.
Arthur E.
Norman
Clifford
Edward
William
Ruben
Russell
William
William James
Gerald

Dr. Robert A.
Alex

Alex
Henry
Howard F.
Emmett C.
Donald
Wilber
Douglas
Arthur
Thomas
Benj. F.
Elmer
Arnold H.
Clarence

William

<

Martin

O O

William

M
H

John

o >

3/17/1914
4/23/1910
9/9/1911
01/01/1888
6/22/1920
3/22/1921
06/09/1893
07/04/1896
2/7/1930
11/18/1887
6/1/1929
01/25/1895
6/28/1927
10/17/1889
05/30/1896
03/09/1889
01/17/1838
8/17/1909
08/20/1889
03/06/1897
5/13/1928
7/21/1928
01/01/1846
01/11/1889
02/20/1896
8/28/1942
11/27/1844
2/26/1908
8/1/1916
9/8/1926
9/2/1922
3/30/1919
06/01/1895
11/14/1894
07/30/1891
5/6/1923
02/05/1842
6/11/1924
01/10/1897
4/8/1928
01/19/1847
05/22/1897
01/01/1893
6/9/1909

1/14/1973
5/14/1973
12/14/1980
4/7/1938
10/13/2011
4/26/2005
10/3/1966
7/6/1966
1/17/2008
5/17/1927
8/11/1990
11/11/1980
6/6/2015
5/7/1970
11/3/1941
8/27/1930
5/7/1926
12/7/1974
11/29/1964
8/22/1981
4/14/2018
11/21/2014
12/24/1930
21711971
12/31/1946
7/12/2006
1/31/1908
12/25/1983
1/13/1975
9/11/2020
9/5/2022
3/19/1998
5/5/1955
8/14/1945
8/25/1964
8/13/2016
11/1/1922
5/24/1998
1/24/1942
8/3/2004
6/13/1925
6/15/1980
11/8/1918
7/16/1972

11/20/1942
2/17/1942
8/10/1942
5/15/1918

6/11/1917
4/3/1917

11/22/1917
7/5/1946
5/31/1918

5/1/1918
4/12/1917
5/25/1918

1/23/1945
1/10/1918
8/13/1918

7122/1918
5/30/1918

03/23/1865

6/13/1941

10/15/1940
9/17/1917
2/20/1918
7/18/1918

3/24/1943
9/4/1918
4/9/1945
10/23/1864
8/26/1918

5/29/1943



Ellmore
Bullock
Dorschner
Krolow
Dix
Endlich
Prink
Asman
Uckerman
Radtke
Dercks
Immel
Schwandt
Bauer
Bauer
Tock
Tock
Kuschel
Holmes
Warner
Hall
Hardacker
Nass
Nass
Johnson
Johnson
Werner
Schmidt
Coon
Atwood
Kahler
Kenyon
Elias
Maynard
Maynard
Lappen
Ogilvie
Towner
Lange
Vosper
Reffke
Bailey
Engel
DeFord

Joseph Miles
Alonzo
Roger F.
Fred
Harold
James H
Verne
Arthur R
Herman
Clarence
John
Herbert
Gustave
Anson
Clifford A.
Edward
Raymond Otto
Omar
Wesley
Charles
Albert A
Floyd
Harry

Edward Wm. Jr.

William
Amos A.
Rudolph
John F.
Ted
Carroll
Harvey .
Wallace B.
Ewald
William
Gary
Cliffird
Andrew
Thomas J.
Eugene F.
James
Forrest
Frances
Earl
Joshua

0

w
Leonard
H

C

J

>

Kendall

O

o m

04/18/1851
09/22/1842
9/17/1934
01/10/1885
3/8/1919
12/14/1934
9/12/1914
06/19/1893
03/23/1891
7125/1914
7/28/1911
5/8/1904
01/01/1873
04/10/1877
7/29/1915
5/27/1925
2/8/1906
5/18/1928
09/17/1839
01/01/1843
01/01/1838
05/20/1895
09/30/1899
11/2/1946
11/20/1891
09/30/1846
06/02/1891
01/01/1830
12/26/1951
12/13/1927
5/6/1914
01/13/1845
11/12/1896
4/7/1924
5/24/1949
10/24/1922
03/12/1893
8/12/2018
4/30/1924
5/15/1920
4/12/1926
01/01/1845
12/18/1897
9/21/1990

6/20/1913
1/14/1913
11/12/2008
12/29/1956
12/10/1994
9/19/2019
11/29/1999
8/13/1954
4/20/1956
8/4/2000
5/11/1987
5/19/1974
6/7/1936
4/30/1942
3/19/2002
2/14/2014
4/19/1985
9/10/2015
10/18/1913
4/22/1917
8/6/1913
9/12/1974
8/19/1980
10/4/1981
12/2/1934
10/10/1927
1/30/1974
3/23/1912
12/24/2024
9/25/1968
4/20/2001
09/25/1890
6/4/1984
2/5/2007
6/7/2024
5/19/1980
11/8/1918
8/25/2018
8/19/2009
5/4/2014
12/8/1946
1/30/1930
6/3/1967
6/10/2014

08/08/1862
4/6/1955
5/25/1918

5/27/1942
10/21/1918
4/29/1918
1/29/1945
3/3/1943
10/10/1942
04/28/1898
4/27/1942

12/18/1943

10/23/1861
08/15/1862
05/17/1861
6/15/1918
8/28/1942
10/19/1965
5/6/1916

5/25/1918
09/20/1864
2/16/1971
4/7/1946

02/14/1862
9/4/1918

3/9/1981

12/28/1942
7/22/1918

712711944

3/1/1916



Spaulding
Schabo
Philipsen
Wiegand
Frederick
Keddell
Noffke
Noffke
Noffke
Sternagel
Horn
Neunfeldt
Voeltz
Gregory
Bunkert
Damrow
Keats
Sauer
Jury
Maas
Thiel

Jury

Jury

Thiel
Muenster
Bruchs
Kottke
Motiska
Kruse
Kruse
McGinnis
Dorn
Spychalla
Thompson
Salentine
Salentine
Eggert
Giuliani
Giuliana
Gillespie
Kamine
Tischer
Bucholtz
Hausher

George
EarlW.
Wayne
John W.
Wilbert J.
Kenneth R.
Sherman C.
Harold L.
Ralph F
Otto
Arthur
Raymond
Wayland
Loranzo
Ronald
Eugene
Fenton G.
TimA.
Lewis
Ernest
Robert L

Emerson E. Rev.

Donald
Robert Bruce
LesterE.
Ira

Jack
Michael
GeorgeT.
Henry Karl
Edward J.
David
Leonard J.
Merrel
Edward A.
Carl
Francis R.
Joseph
Joseph Chas.
William J.
Reinhart
Kenneth W.
Garnet L.
Meta A.

R
T
R
Edward

Isidore

Louis

12/04/1895
6/26/1922
12/14/1932
12/31/1922
9/17/1916
11/20/1927
9/3/1925
7129/1927
12/31/1922
09/21/1894
11/30/1890
06/28/1895
4/3/1929
12/6/1913
5/27/1941
9/25/1918
12/3/1900
02/24/1895
08/11/1893
07/11/1841
1/1/1922
2/1/1921
9/30/1926
6/27/1946
5/22/1921
3/17/1942
2/5/1939
9/24/1915

10/27/1894
10/05/1898
7/28/1933
11/8/1925
01/01/1894
9/4/1948
4/30/1923
6/11/1917
05/19/1896
9/15/1928
03/30/1895
4/8/1926
2/3/1951
4/14/1917
12/13/1913

3/22/1977
6/24/2006
9/24/1979
7/20/1996
5/30/1998
11/1/2009
4/2/1975
9/21/1986
3/18/1994
10/20/1977
11/6/1957
10/13/1918
8/19/1975
12/17/1983
2/26/2015
10/15/1943
12/2/1933
6/13/1972
10/1/1970
8/5/1917
9/5/1988
6/10/1995
3/14/2015
11/10/1990
12/30/1999
7/12/2012
12/30/2016
11/20/1966
5/6/1942
10/22/1960
1/1/1956
6/14/2022
6/7/2008
3/28/1920
9/9/2021
12/16/1994
10/16/2002
9/14/1975
3/27/2000
10/22/1918
2/27/2016
7/1/2011
3/17/1976
12/29/1950

2/1/1950
3/3/1943
12/28/1942

2/22/1944
10/10/1945
2/2/1943
9/18/1917
7/22/1918
9/4/1918

6/13/1941
1/1/1962
5/18/1942
4/14/1917
5/2/1918

03/18/1864
6/10/1943

9/26/1966
9/26/1942

6/6/1941

8/26/1918
2/27/1918
6/12/1918

1/5/1944
9/18/1917

10/16/1942
6/14/1945

9/11/1947
2/7/1918

8/27/1941



Hancock
Tawter
Neuman
Ray

Burby
Maahs
Brueggemann
Hopkins
Gloff
Lesselyong
Barth
Bremer
Appleton
Franke
Borchardt
Recker
Rehbein
Lillge
Brueggemann
Streufert
Gitter
Dreier
Wilcox
Helm
Sorges
Berholtz
VanLinn
VanLinn
Bessey
Sheridan
Jorstad
Jorstad Sr.
Jorstad
Babcock
Scheinpflug
Hansen
Metko
Babcock
Mentzel
Mentzel
Bishop
Conn
Howerton
Meacham

Edward
Joseph
Albert
David A.
Donald L.
Charles John
Max
Charles W
John
Thomas
Clifford
John

John
Douglas G.
Clarence
David R.
George R.
Roy
Richard
Gerhardt
Richard E.
Clarence
Russell L.
Oscar
DeWayne
John A
David
Edward J.
Millard
Neil P.
Vernon
Douglas
Jerome L.
Tyrone
John
Richard A.
Ronald
Darwood "Lee"
Richard
Thomas E.
Douglas
Timmy Alan
Ambers
G. Richard

—_

®

=T=z=z©@

© =

James

Lee

Steven

09/05/1881
9/11/1907
11/27/1922
6/29/1932
9/12/1925
08/29/1896
09/08/1894
07/04/1825
02/15/1899
12/6/1929
10/11/1924
05/12/1832
04/13/1842
712411950
12/20/1908
6/9/1947
3/21/1938
11/27/1894
12/12/1938
2/16/1926
11/30/1948
6/4/1917
2/12/1923
06/19/1889
3/18/1932
5/11/1918
10/31/1957
5/11/1929
05/25/1897
5/7/1935
10/6/1921
7/31/1948
3/12/1942
11/3/1943
10/31/1948
5/25/1936
9/24/1967
5/31/1940
6/21/1932
12/10/1958
10/29/1956
3/13/1962
9/30/1948
2/9/1943

12/14/1957
4/11/1998
1/8/1985
2/15/2007
5/6/1993
8/27/1986
5/5/1925
2/14/1910
3/18/1977
6/30/2007
12/23/1983
7/5/1920
12/19/1882
71611977
12/20/1952
12/2/2008
1/5/2008
7/9/1954
11/30/2016
8/8/1985
3/7/2001
11/8/1977
11/22/1963
12/18/1947
7/14/2018
10/13/1984
12/27/1980
1/25/2005
12/11/1948
5/3/2007
6/24/1996
3/27/1980
6/13/2018
9/6/2021
9/23/2021
11/21/2024
9/3/2018
4/9/2023
2/7/2023
8/10/2021
9/9/2021
2/13/2018
3/24/2025
7/14/2022

5/10/1915

7/8/1952

6/8/1918

12/14/1917
08/08/1864
11/24/1942

4/26/1943

11/27/1863
1/22/1970
7/30/1943
7/12/1965
6/5/1959
5/1/1918

8/31/1944
9/19/1967
2/22/1945
2/11/1943
6/15/1918

2/15/1944
1/23/1976
9/19/1946
3/30/1918
3/24/1951
3/16/1945
6/11/1968

12/3/1958
8/15/1952



Derks
Reynebeau

Meisenhelder

Peterson
Hawkins
Bessett
Glass
Griem
Bodway
Mitchell
Haase
Timm
Pickering
Mielke
Glass
Larsen
Smith
Langdon
Gatz
Roth
Gass
Nohr
Glass
Glass
Green
Holtz
Groth
Wiegand
Wiegand
Wiegand
Haufschildt
Strover
Peterson
Walters
Brockman
Stark
Deltour
Dennis
Buxton
Stake
Zuhlke
Zuhlke
Boyden
Swamer

Jerome
Richard
Daniel
Eugene
Robert, B
Roger

Roy

Jon
Norbert M.
John H.

Roy Reynold

EarlJ.
Clyde "Ben"
Albert
Henry J.
LaVerne
Fredrick
Duane C.
Max F.
Ralph G.
Orville
Louis F.
Emil

John J.
JohnT.
Lyle
Gerald K
Frank H.
Clara M.
Robert John
Leroy
Glendale
Allen O.
Erie H.
Arthur
Ernest
Richard M.
Philip Leo
Warren O.
Sylvester V.
Raymond J.
Rudolph H.
Edward
Bernard

Roy

James

3/30/1953
1/24/1941
4/25/1946
1/4/1946
7/22/1944
8/16/1924
1/26/1931
4/25/1919
1/5/1931
10/05/1897
5/28/1919
12/23/1918
04/25/1891
03/30/1893
06/15/1895
2/16/1936
2/4/1928
5/23/1920
03/16/1890
11/19/1924
5/23/1932
10/21/1881
04/26/1892
5/23/1932
8/17/1917
9/16/1916
2/9/1931
9/9/1920
9/21/1919
4/29/1917
4/9/1923
7/16/1913
01/25/1883
10/24/1887
08/09/1884
12/19/1893
1/13/1943
1/28/1942
3/15/1925
7/9/1913
11/30/1948
12/28/1908
5/19/1928
1/12/1913

4/8/1999
1/30/2016
4/3/2013
11/21/2012
11/11/2015
5/26/1992
9/18/1988
11/23/1972
4/20/2013
4/15/1985
8/28/2000
8/19/1999
10/28/1965
9/28/1960
3/30/1962
6/14/2009
2/23/1998
8/2/2011
4/22/1940
3/31/1971
1/10/2001
8/25/1937
3/5/1955
12/9/2006
4/7/2001
6/16/1988
9/11/1995
2/27/2010
6/11/2002
10/19/1988
12/1/2003
3/16/1989
11/19/1962
11/25/1962
3/2/1964
11/22/1973
6/25/2010
7/10/2003
5/17/1959
1/14/1991
8/17/2008
10/3/1953
5/28/2021
3/14/1972

11/4/1942
1/11/1952

7/25/1918
7/29/1941
2/21/1941
5/4/1918

9/18/1918
6/28/1918

8/10/1948

6/11/1942
5/27/1949
10/19/1918
3/20/1916
12/3/1952
9/9/1942
2/15/1944
6/24/1955

12/28/1942
8/10/1942
1/11/1943
1/18/1945

5/27/1918
7/22/1918
7/26/1918
8/13/1968
2/2/1961

6/24/1943
9/24/1940

10/1/1942
11/20/1950
6/13/1942



Ziemer
Ziemer
Braeger
Essler
Sindahl
Morgan
Aspen
Jewell
Jewell
Managan
Wilpolt
Schulze
Kellner
Behl
Schulze
Piette
Ossian
Sachs
Schroeder
Schuck
Schuck
Schroeder
Heise
Jahnke
Bailey
Weiss
Sonsthagen
Schmelzling
Woosnam
Immel
Grishaber
Klemp
Mossholder
Olson
Johnson
Johnson
Meltz
Regenfuss
Burkett
Whirry
Swiertz
Wilson
Fulcer
Klitzke

Albert
William
Walter
Edward W.
Armond
Bernard R.
Leonard
Clifford
ThomasE.
Thomas
Louis
John W.
Roger
Gerald H.
Willard R.
Richard

William Franklin "Frank"

William H.
Carlton J.
Kenneth J.
Pearl

Brian
Kenneth K
Floyd
Sylvester
John H.
Owen L.
Hans

Jane
VictorH
Carleton G
Clyde
David M.
Robert G
Yngve
Sigvard L.
Lawrence L.
Robert M.
Robt. Geo.
EarlC.
Walter V. Jr
Lewis
George H.
William Carl

C

Clifford
w

Noble

Howard

Matt

11/02/1895
03/12/1897
10/10/1891
9/19/1905
6/13/1907
11/5/1916
3/28/1984
11/27/1923
8/17/1959
8/20/1927
01/01/1896
11/26/1912
2/8/1950
3/25/1926
8/26/1926
1/1/1923
12/10/1933
06/11/1891
12/10/1933
11/9/1922
10/10/1924
5/24/1956
5/13/1931
3/15/1927
6/27/1906
09/27/1894
1/19/1930
7129/1937
11/20/1922
3/11/1919
8/19/1919
9/6/1926
7/2/1944
09/07/1894
2/1/1919
712411911
10/20/1927
12/09/1897
05/02/1898
5/10/1900
10/27/1930
04/15/1845
02/14/1892
09/17/1894

12/28/1991
10/31/1986
7/23/1939
1/19/1962
7/13/1995
5/28/2001
3/28/1984
3/10/2017
11/13/1978
9/8/2014
5/1/1941
12/23/1987
3/14/1980
4/29/2011
12/3/2002
1/1/1942
8/24/2018
12/23/1964
2/29/2008
6/10/2011
1/12/2001
10/2/1985
10/27/1950
5/15/1993
10/6/1984
8/6/1967
5/18/2023
10/11/2013
11/25/1993
2/10/1971
3/5/1995
6/13/2014
5/13/2019
6/10/1977
11/8/1980
8/19/1976
11/17/2008
12/22/1958
7/11/1937
2/8/1966
6/2/1961
4/30/1931
6/19/1931
3/4/1931

9/4/1918
4/26/1918
6/25/1943
12/28/1943
4/3/1945
2/15/1943

8/23/1976

2/18/1942
9/18/1969
6/26/1944
5/14/1945

7127/1918

6/29/1945

4/28/1950

8/4/1943
6/19/1916
1/1/1948

12/16/1943
6/17/1941
2/18/1942

4/7/1917
10/18/1940
712411942

3/20/1917
5/22/1918
2/18/1918
11/9/1948
11/24/1863
9/3/1918
4/25/1918



Dinegeldein
Wiersema
Kearn
Scheibe
Lillge
Lillge
Haworth
Kosbab
Kranzusch
Gutowski
Frese
Hendricks
Klarner
Mayer
Mayer
Jurgensen
Gregory
Gregory
Roll
Dessel
Hoerning
Elseth
Schneider
Fiebelkorn
Bermann
VanPatten
Taubel
Page
Davis
Daniels Sr.
Adjet
Ginnow
Washatka
Schroeder
Hansen
Hertel
Bierman
Daniels
Young
Bittorf
Gonnering
Koerner
Schwerbel
Doerfler

Fred
Jimmy
John
Harold
Norman
Gordon
Edgar
Richard
Theodore
Alexander
John W
Robert. )
Ervin W.
Otto J.
Larry Norman
Leonard R.
Harvey G
Eleanor
George A.
Joseph
Bernard
Jeanette
Orville
William G.
Harold
Cornelius J.
Raymond
William G.
Thomas Pearson
Charles D.
William
Walter L.
John
Arthur
John .
John
Gerald C.
Daniel Melvin Sr
Ivan

Fred
Sylvester
Elmer
Ralph Lt.
Harold

o m

Eunice
T

Robert

> O mr

5/9/1923
2/28/1938
03/29/1885
7/2/1933
09/11/1893
11/10/1925
04/17/1893
06/17/1896
7/15/1917
02/23/1896
11/18/1891
5/15/1920
3/24/1908
10/16/1891
10/27/1939
2/23/1926
8/20/1914
6/14/1920
07/23/1895
04/27/1895
04/06/1889
3/15/1924
1/30/1908
1/25/1917
8/9/1921
5/6/1940
5/7/1935
4/14/1914
03/14/1897
09/20/1877
01/17/1893
01/03/1894
8/6/1925
8/18/1925
05/26/1895
05/23/1895
6/22/1932
1/21/1924
9/23/1923
12/13/1928
1/22/1938
05/11/1895
9/16/1916
2/2/1921

12/6/1951
5/20/2007
6/8/1933
6/22/2015
712/1952
4/18/1970
6/30/1931
2/2/1929
8/22/1996
12/5/1927
7/23/1969
10/13/1999
5/27/2004
6/2/1963
8/9/1982
8/4/1979
711711986
4/4/2003
4/29/1978
10/17/1955
11/3/1971
8/8/1998
4/21/1945
10/29/1946
2/22/1998
5/12/1987
10/27/2013
10/26/1978
8/29/1930
3/29/1952
11/1/1938
4/28/1926
8/24/2003
7124/2017
1/26/1944
10/25/1931
7/5/2018
9/13/1983
10/21/1993
11/6/2016
9/26/1995
4/5/1961
12/25/1944
5/31/1981

2/22/1944

10/24/1918
6/13/1945
7/3/1917
5/25/1918
6/16/1943
10/14/1943
5/3/1918
10/15/1961
6/27/1944
10/27/1941

4/30/1917
5/10/1917
7/22/1918
4/20/1944

10/15/1940

10/15/1940
06/17/1899
06/06/1898
6/2/1917
4/25/1918

7/22/1918

1/23/1948

1/28/1944

10/15/1961

10/1/1940
1/4/1943



Reinke
Reinke
Miller
Lahn
Burmeister
Emrich
Herzog
Herzog
Reffke
Potter
McGuire
Elm

Reetz
Moore
Jansen
Schultz
Eastman
Reick
Hesse
Hedberg
Hedberg
Brown
Radtke
Radtke
Archambault
Radtke
McGuire
Zuehlke
Fredricks
Wichman
Schroeder
Lahn
Schinke
Kohl
Whitefoot
Getsfried
Wick
Parish
Frank
Herzberg
Moll

De Shaney
DeShaney
DeShaney

Herman G.
Richard W.
John P.
Harold C.
Arthur
Roger C.
Bruce
Charles
Erwin Carl
Thomas J. Sr.
Leland
Lemuel Nelson
Louis F.
Ralph D.
Edward C.
Albert

Jan
Clarence A.
Harold
OscarW
DavidN
Gordon A.
Ferdinand
Richard T.
Brian
John
Howard R.
Maryln
Marvin L.
Kenneth E.
George
Gerald
Robert J.
Charles
Robert J.
Leo P.
Raymond M.
Harold F.
Theodore
Albert
Otto

June E.
James L.
Walter M.

Edward

3/30/1925
2/23/1931
09/26/1892
4/21/1942
05/28/1891
7/16/1914
9/24/1952
1/1/1915
5/11/1920
12/19/1890
11/8/1924
6/20/1927
10/01/1896
01/21/1897
10/19/1913
09/21/1874
3/12/1949
12/18/1911
11/20/1923
01/15/1898
02/13/1894
4/8/1924
07/07/1878
11/27/1933
8/5/1955
3/9/1934
12/21/1927
9/11/1933
5/22/1924
6/6/1937
05/16/1888
9/15/1918
8/8/1909
5/2/1948
12/03/1896
11/4/1919
7/3/1918
03/22/1895
02/08/1896
11/22/1895
01/01/1893
3/10/1924
4/22/1921
2/15/1917

714/1997
12/23/2010
1/3/1973
7/15/1965
3/18/1973
12/28/1995
11/13/2012
2/28/1966
12/14/1982
3/13/1964
11/17/1987
2/25/1989
4/11/1932
12/4/1964
1/13/2001
1/15/1960
9/14/1991
8/7/1979
8/8/2018
12/22/1929
7/3/1943
4/13/2012
2/24/1942
5/30/1997
1/21/2007
10/28/2016
9/25/2007
2/28/2018
10/27/1944
5/2/2008
5/20/1957
71471980
7/9/1968
9/12/2017
12/1/1960
2/21/2005
12/24/2015
5/13/1979
9/18/1977
10/2/1981
10/27/1934
8/8/1999
12/4/1995
6/3/1998

1/11/1952
5/29/1944
8/6/1960

10/25/1943

9/11/1942
11/25/1942
1/24/1949
6/25/1943
6/13/1945
7/26/1918
5/29/1917
1/4/1943
06/15/1898
3/12/1969
4/9/1941

7/3/1917
6/4/1917

04/08/1898
9/14/1953

3/31/1943
7/15/1960
7/18/1918
1/4/1943

4/13/1945

12/30/1941

6/15/1918
3/29/1918
6/4/1917

9/26/1942

3/14/1945



Driessen
Richter
Wagner
Schroeder
Luttman
Miller
Mory
Zerbel
Bauman
Bauman
Anholzer
Bellis
King
Pierre
Bloom
Bosser
Wilken
Shimek
Wegner
Honick
McHugh
Downey
Stilp
Hageman
Klundt
Daily
Hancock
Ellenbecker
Priebe
Stammer
Gebheim
Roocks
Coulthard
Buske
Heinritz
Grobe
Wilbur
Wilbur
Downey
Dhein
Hert
Rydell
Boettcher
Mclintire

Leo A.
Fredrick
Ellde |
Milton G.
Arthur
George
Harry E.
Aaron
Stanley
FentonE
George
Merlin Sr
James
Harvey V.
Donald A
Richard
DuWayne E.
Benjamin
Reinhardt A.
Peter )
Francis J.
Herbert F.
Albert ).
William
Henry
Tom J.
Johnson
Raymond A.
Thomas G.
William
Alfred A.
Erwin F.

Homer William

Max

Jay R
Lewis E
Russell W.
Wayne W.

Howard A. Dr.

Neil Edward
William
Edward
Herbert J.
William A. W.

Edward

Charles

Charles

Keith

5/4/1935
11/21/1901
2/6/1925
3/29/1908
08/29/1893
04/01/1840
06/28/1893
01/24/1878
10/9/1909
12/21/1906
03/28/1897
12/2/1905
02/28/1845
04/11/1889
5/5/1912
05/26/1890
6/24/1926
08/26/1897
10/15/1897
09/21/1896
3/20/1923
5/1/1921
12/29/1914
01/01/1895
9/23/1983
3/14/1915
01/01/1846
9/11/1931
5/12/1934
03/14/1844
7/31/1906
8/1/1911
12/28/1914
09/13/1889
12/21/1930
06/25/1895
12/30/1930

01/02/1891

3/9/2022
3/18/1921
12/22/1896
08/06/1899

12/9/2004
5/26/1971
12/8/2009
4/27/1962
12/8/1956
2/6/1924
6/21/1942
6/23/1950
3/16/1969
6/2/1979
4/15/1990
2/15/1986
12/11/1923
7/15/1918
11/11/1981
7/2/1965
6/15/1982
3/7/1983
7/1/1925
7/19/1961
7/26/1987
3/30/2005
1/29/1967
7/17/1918
9/12/1983
3/22/1995
2/4/1931
12/9/1993
12/28/1994
8/15/1924
6/9/1959
11/2/1977
2/28/1976
7/15/1968
12/7/1994
1/10/1978
10/15/2005
713/1973
6/8/1958
5/11/2005
4/12/2022
4/14/2008
6/17/1977
10/15/1958

2/22/1945

1/6/1943
12/5/1942
11/19/1862
2/25/1918
04/28/1898

1/28/1942
8/13/1918
12/16/1941
01/01/1861
4/11/1917
1/25/1945
7/8/1918
5/31/1944
6/28/1918
4/3/1917
7/18/1918
9/10/1945
3/2/1943
7/29/1942
4/6/1918
3/29/1918

01/28/1864
2/13/1951
10/6/1952
08/14/1862
6/29/1942

11/8/1942
5/1/1918

11/4/1948
4/29/1918
8/30/1951
6/24/1916
1/5/1918

8/31/1942

9/4/1918



Bucklew
McCrory
Poppe
Root

Nee
Plamann
Brennecke
Dahms
Beyer
Koestner
Kiser
Haas
Phillips
Standiford
Benishek
Kessler
Kessler
Wiese
Muench
Schroeder
Scheil
Quigg
Brehmer
Oettinger
Speel
Mata
Wakeland
Lust
Greselin
Totzke
Bodner
Palmbach
Gostas
Hastings
Koletzke
Brinkman
Schafelke
Thatcher
Johnson
Olson
McFarland
Klause
Niemuth
Porlier

JohnJ
Robert G.
Frederick W.

Elmer Wallace
Donald J. Vet.

Melvin E.
Richard
Michael C.
Vernon M.
Robert
Kenneth
Francis
Carl Roy
Justin H.
CarlF.
Floyd R.
Robert B.
George
Raymond
Carl A
Clarence
Edward
Leroy E.
Milton
Francis L.
Jacob
George
William E.
Geno
Elmer
Clarence
Clemens
Michael
Fredrick
DeanR.
Lawrence
Gerald
Stanley
Fredrick
Alton Arthur
Walter
Oscar
Samuel P.
George

Charles

-

5/26/1914
5/9/1924
02/18/1887
11/21/1897
1/25/1907
8/22/1912
3/22/1941
9/1/1953
4/2/1931

12/23/1928
7/25/1930
5/13/1931
4/1/1929
10/20/1944
09/02/1896
2/7/1922
04/06/1892
12/23/1896
9/22/1902
10/11/1895
5/29/1916
4/15/1923
1/14/1933
4/14/1923
4/14/1996
5/29/1939
08/12/1897
12/23/1907
3/16/1907
11/28/1896
4/13/1917
8/29/1942
10/1/1941
11/30/1916
5/26/1945
11/29/1935
5/11/1927
4/24/1964
6/24/1937
07/28/1894
5/30/1918
12/31/1903
4/5/1950

4/1/1974
3/21/2016
2/28/1957
2/17/1983
12/7/1964
1/9/1983
9/4/2013
10/22/2020
3/29/2001
11/8/2017
9/9/2006
12/26/2013
1/22/1997
2/1/2000
5/13/2000
712711965
4/20/1944
9/12/1946
11/24/1981
1/14/1981
712811972
1/14/1999
4/1/1999
3/22/2018
3/26/2005
1/5/2024
6/3/2008
6/15/1990
3/3/1998
5/6/1987
4/16/1988
5/6/1992
1/15/2022
10/6/2013
3/18/2008
9/10/2021
1/19/2021
6/4/2012
5/26/2013
8/28/2017
1/8/1944
712171944
5/24/1985
1/27/2017

3/19/1943

7/22/1918
9/30/1918
4/25/1942
3/26/1942

12/13/1949
5/29/1943

10/4/1951
10/2/1946
7/31/1964
7/15/1917
12/1/1942
5/25/1918
11/16/1919
8/26/1942
10/2/1917
3/8/1943
1/19/1943

8/27/1962

7/13/1942

7/22/1918

3/2/1964

7/30/1953

10/22/1942
9/12/1942



Loew
Kielgas
Chern
Gostas
Chern
Dilley
Olfson
Yost
Burgess
Lee
Tralongo
Kuether
Brennecke
Koerner
Ellmaker
McGregor
Sager
Thomas
Kuester
Niemuth
Peotter
Mandel
Cumber
Landmann
Crapeau
Reinke
Chavlovich
Rusch Jr.
Rusch
Glander
Hickinbotham
Brauer
Besch
Schultz
Turkow
Miller
Kaphingst
Walbrun
Johnson
Stammer
Stammer
Horn
Banker
Carter

James
Allan
Diomed M.
Spyro
Michael
Darrell G.
Walter Irvine
Donald
Jack
Donald L.
Salvatore
Frank
Henry
Edward C.
William G.
Roy C.
Robert
Earl
Donald
KarlP.
Franklin Ens
Raymond
Charles
Ted

Philip

Rob John
Stephen
Alvin

Alvin E.
Carl
James
Harold W.
Donald
Donald
Martin
ClarenceF.
Louis J.
David
Kenneth
Clarence
Sheldon
Glenn Joseph
John A
John A.

Ray

>

Gui

8/18/1940
3/7/1932
1/10/1924
12/10/1909
05/01/1894
11/29/1937
08/01/1889
6/11/1921
9/9/1941
2/10/1940
9/8/1922
12/09/1893
05/11/1897
12/17/1911
01/14/1894
04/16/1899
7/31/1922
08/27/1895
11/21/1927
8/8/1940
7/15/1924
12/1/1911
11/16/1924
12/12/1944
7/31/1932
12/21/1967
3/4/1930
1/5/1956
7/14/1925
07/13/1894
5/13/1933
8/30/1917
9/24/1925
8/19/1928
09/05/1894
8/14/1922
04/02/1892
10/20/1937
9/10/1930
01/20/1889
04/05/1895
1/21/1931
10/14/1843
04/02/1875

7/29/2024
5/7/2013
5/1/1999
10/7/1982
5/5/1981
10/1/2000
11/8/1948
1/12/2000
8/7/1987
5/28/2013
1/6/2015
2/18/1957
1/9/1957
12/6/1993
3/15/1963
10/27/1962
11/4/1944
5/1/1955
11/10/1948
7125/2007
5/13/1945
12/31/1988
9/25/2005
10/21/2015
3/27/2006
10/7/2015
7/16/2009
8/21/2012
12/26/1982
2/5/1969
1/1/2023
4/26/1968
8/31/2015
4/4/2018
10/15/1969
2/1/1976
10/18/1983
7/21/2012
7/8/2013
10/10/1923
2/17/1953
12/26/1999
2/3/1922
3/7/1971

7/3/1943
10/9/1942
7/3/1943
2/25/1955
12/15/1917

10/25/1960

7/23/1918
8/14/1918

4/21/1917

2/26/1918
11/7/1945
7/10/1958
1/13/1943
719/1942

2/10/1943

11/26/1943
7/8/1918

10/18/1940

8/1/1918
10/15/1942
6/15/1918
3/17/1958

7/22/1918
9/18/1917
1/11/1951
08/29/1864



Klahorst
Rondou
Jorgenson
Ruwoldt
Wolff
Vanden Berg
Kuck
Chavez
Deeg
Benjamin
Schultz
Koester
Pingel
Karrow
Gutche
Porlier
Ecker
Wenzlaff
Wenzlaff
Wenzlaff
Wilke
Elsner Sr.
Hurst
Storch
McGinty
Johnson
Johnson
Feide
Molling
Mann
Wojahn

Sabater-Tirado

Steinfeldt
DeFord
DeFord
Hand
Wheeler
Pollo
Brinkman
Schaefer
Holeton
Knuijt
Neveau
Zempurs

Henry H.
Clifford J.
Harvey
John
Helmuth O.
Elmer ).
Carlton
Joseph J.
Lynn
Louis V
Junior H.
Walter
Ernest
Herbert H.
Melvin E.
Warner A.
Robert F
Richard G.
Richard W.
Walter
Paul C.
Willis W.
Harry
Carl August
JamesT.
Robert
George
William
Joseph J.
Marie M.
Henry
Frank
Thomas
Marquito
Rodney
Norman
Richard A.
John Jr.
Earl
Donald
Joseph R.
Jeffery )
Alfred G.
Indulis G.

Henry

02/19/1892
3/29/1924

9/28/1948
12/16/1892
7129/1924
10/8/1915
7/25/1960
5/29/1943
08/05/1897
1/10/1925
09/12/1895
03/15/1890
1/16/1914
4/4/1927
1/1/1916
7/31/1917
03/01/1878
1/6/1910
07/15/1897
12/29/1893
09/08/1899
9/30/1924
08/28/1887
8/21/1906
6/21/1927
01/26/1892
11/4/1926
4/19/1915
1/28/1916
08/20/1891
7/15/1967
4/13/1941
4/9/1951
6/19/1938
2/1/1934
10/13/1895
06/29/1895
11/26/1932
9/7/1926
4/4/1938

8/10/1929
10/9/1926

5/31/1969
1/6/1984
8/17/1988
6/26/2012
3/27/1963
1/27/2008
2/3/1999
10/3/1979
11/27/2023
4/15/1967
10/13/2003
2/18/1952
4/14/1957
8/15/2002
5/9/2001
6/16/1982
2/24/2002
11/24/1929
2/24/1944
12/4/1962
11/18/1963
10/28/1977
1/2/2015
8/16/1950
5/12/1971
6/17/2007
6/16/1972
4/30/2024
6/27/1999
1/6/2003
3/1/1947
5/16/2018
3/31/2024
3/27/2019
12/1/2017
8/30/2004
9/28/1980
10/23/1980
7/18/2024
12/27/2012
8/30/2010
2/20/2003
9/2/2017
2/19/2021

6/14/1918
2/15/1943
9/15/1942

4/25/1918

11/77/1942

9/28/1962

7/3/1917

12/12/1942

5/25/1918
2/4/1942

4/4/1944

8/10/1942

8/10/1942

10/22/1918
9/15/1914

2/14/1908

4/25/1942

7/25/1918

3/14/1941

7/8/1918
3/30/1988

9/10/1954
6/19/1916
7/19/1916



Lemke
Yingling
Giebisch
Losselyong
Martell

De Janes
Yaeger
Bergan
Fischer
Nabbefeld
Ohler
Behm
Zarins
Roth
Arenz
Gasper
Boettcher
Ross
Stoeger
Peotter
Skeens
Skeens
Skeens
Knostenberg
Svetlauskas
McComber
Bartelt
Porter
Cotter
Henschel
Johnson
Pettegrew
Schmelzer
Jensen
Jensen
Kahler
Voigt
Notaras
Notaras
Nagan
Bartelt
Bartelt
Doire
Dresang

Edward C.

Francis H
Herbert

Donald F.

Michael

Robert Floyd

Harold G.C.

Robert L.

Cyril J.

Arthur John

Richard E

Francis A

Gunars

Walter E.

Donald E.

Merton A.

Adelbert L.

William August

CharlesF.

Gilbert E.

Sharon K
Lowell F
Michael Anthony
John U
James

Dennis G
James A.

David L
James C.
Rodney A.
Dennis Clark
Percy
EugeneR.
Mark P
Arthur Robert
CharlesF.

Steven

Paul A
John George
Robert F
Harvey A
Donald H. E.
George Victor
David L.

Draper

03/19/1890
8/29/1927
3/16/1919
9/21/1935
3/17/1953
8/5/1915
6/22/1926
1/3/1931
12/5/1938
2/15/1929
2/1/1945
3/21/1909
9/7/1932
4/26/1919
6/24/1920
3/1/1923
10/14/1921
03/06/1875
3/14/1910
2/14/1926
3/2/1945
1/21/1946
10/22/1967
5/27/1938
11/9/1946
1/28/1939
4/23/1929
7/14/2014
8/28/1932
1/22/1944
1/12/1940
06/06/1899
1/28/1955
6/22/1961
8/23/1927
12/30/1900
12/17/1952
03/15/1893
11/27/1926
11/11/1920
8/31/1906
1/7/1925
2/2/1950
3/16/1936

1/5/1983
2/12/2002
8/12/1998
8/19/2007
12/3/2011
2/20/1985
5/25/1994
4/8/2003
12/24/2004
10/21/1997
4/16/2006
5/7/1994
11/24/2011
1/30/1996
3/29/2000
9/22/2003
12/2/2009
10/22/1963
9/11/1975
3/17/2008
8/29/2020
3/16/2015
9/2/2013
3/7/2023
2/11/2020
10/16/2020
8/9/2010
12/17/2014
9/11/2010
7/29/2021
6/1/2022
6/22/1991
3/14/2016
2/22/2023
6/4/2001
4/4/1972
8/26/2014
7/16/1957
11/5/1979
2/18/2007
9/21/1987
3/22/1987
6/3/2006
8/7/2006

7/23/1918

1/19/1942

6/4/1942
12/28/1944
12/7/1951
9/10/1958
5/2/1946

12/20/1943
1/1/1954
8/12/1941
11/25/1941
11/18/1942
04/28/1898

12/7/1942
7128/1944

6/8/1956

10/1/1918

5/15/1947
11/25/1942

5/2/1945

10/27/1972



Doire
Gabathuler
Ritchie
Heiges
Greunke
Stillman
Washechek
Laemmrich
Radtke
Uebel
Klahorst Jr.
Cavert
Relien
Wheeler
Carr
Dorchester
Giles
Gibbs
Stapel
Lemke
Schucknecht
Dame
Grogan
Newhouse
Busch
Harper
Marcinek
Losse
Hussner
Bruehl
Radick
Haroski
Kasten
Kasten
Ferron
Haferbecker
Reetz
VanRooy
Missling
Larsen
Hansen
Bloomer
Kunstman
Doerfler

George
Roland L.
Garrett B.

Howard M.

Emmery
Ellicott
Geo. J.
Robet P.
Norman A.
Moritz E.
Edward

Kenneth G.

Gilbert J.
Clifford A.
Charles
Daniel

Albert Edward

Charles
Carl A
Howard
Walter H.
George C.
Jerome J.
Eugene
Benjamin
Glenn
Robert
Howard H.
Helm C
William C.
Michael
John
Robert
Herman
Willard P.
Howard
Wayne
Thomas
Ralph J.
Niels C.
Allen J.
John F.
Frank C.
Mathias

Louis

Pete

5/15/1923
4/2/1927
4/15/1920
6/4/1919
12/30/1893
12/29/1895
3/2/1919
12/20/1939
4/16/1915
01/25/1873
11/20/1919
7/30/1910
10/20/1914
10/1/1930
4/30/1928
4/30/1933
3/4/1921
10/18/1943
3/23/1930
7121/1927
09/06/1895
12/11/1896
7/20/1929
9/19/1933
3/18/1942
5/21/1932
7/17/1929
4/4/1914
04/25/1897
9/25/1924
01/01/1889
5/6/1920
1/13/1937
11/29/1889
11/16/1911
6/28/1913
7/17/1934
7/13/1936
10/13/1924
9/18/1918
4/18/1930
10/17/1899
06/07/1895
07/11/1872

10/3/2015
12/20/1990
5/8/2007
1/2/2007
6/22/1954
1/12/1985
1/11/1989
12/19/1999
3/17/1997
11/1/1951
6/12/2007
9/6/1993
6/25/1990
4/21/1996
1/30/2013
3/19/2010
6/7/1982
1/23/2014
2/5/2009
12/6/2017
6/30/1931
3/9/1976
3/9/1999
3/11/2015
12/16/1992
3/9/2014
10/25/2017
6/28/2005
2/22/1972
8/19/1994
12/15/1957
11/18/2003
7/23/2024
9/1/1971
3/26/2003
11/27/2005
12/29/2016
5/14/1997
1/16/2000
10/20/1993
12/21/2017
10/25/1965
11/29/1965
4/21/1930

12/12/1941

5/29/1918
3/12/1944
10/13/1958
2/4/1942
04/28/1898

5/28/1944
9/13/1949

3/28/1944

7/18/1918
7/16/1918
9/25/1951

2/20/1960

5/28/1941
7/6/1918

5/22/1943
4/23/1918

7/8/1943
2/15/1949

3/11/1959
2/24/1943
3/21/1941

1/8/1918
2/13/1918
06/15/1898



Doerfler
Jahnke
Macklin
Koch
Hoffman
Clark

Clark
Peske
Belling
Kuehnl
Flahtery
Flaherty
Paul

Reitz
Conkey
Fyfe
Brophy
Hansen
Randall
Reeve
Winslow
Robbins
Kolosso Sr.
Miller
Owen
Knutson
Playman
Hackworthy
Morse
Consolo
Consolo
Vanden Boom
Drootsan
Langdon
Fietzer
Kontny
Kirchner
Wesolowski
Losselyong
Schleitwiler
Chastain
Godfrey
Gurnee
Snell

Reno S.

Wm. Edward

Wilmot
Frank C.

Kenneth B.

John B.
JohnT.
Fred C.
John
John
Janice
Kevin
William
Herbert
Theodore
Donald
JamesR.
Wayne F.
Levi
James
Kenelm
Dale
Jerome E.
Willis
James B.
Douglas
Harold
Herbert
ErnestB.
Suzanne
Thomas
William
Thomas
Roy
Douglas E.
Anthony
Robert D.
Joseph
Daniel
FrankJ.
Charles
James W.
W.T.
George

McGregor

Theodore

Walder

Dean

W

Ronald
Nicholas

12/23/1899
3/6/1918
5/2/1918
06/01/1896
9/29/1922
10/13/1899
11/30/1943
02/15/1893
12/29/1935
9/21/1949
2/3/1936
4/4/1932
3/9/1938
10/29/1932
12/11/1819
3/10/1926
3/21/1940
11/10/1927
01/01/1829
01/01/1834

9/15/1943
1/19/1936
6/27/1910
10/29/1938
4/6/1921
08/24/1894
10/09/1891
09/10/1894
1/8/1941
4/2/1939
5/10/1951
8/25/1937
8/7/1945
1/16/1943
712511975
2/27/1947
6/23/1938
9/21/1935
8/17/1914
10/17/1930
08/07/1835
01/01/1833

9/11/1996
10/19/1982
3/12/1998
7/19/1991
3/8/2010
12/27/1962
12/8/2013
1/24/1967
11/11/2012
4/23/2000
7/8/2024
3/23/2023
5/13/2007
8/30/1998
03/17/1880
11/7/2021
10/22/2006
7/19/2010
2/7/1911
11/3/1906
5/29/1969
8/5/1983
4/11/2009
2/4/1992
8/2/1994
6/19/1990
6/15/1971
4/16/1961
8/1/1936
3/15/2019
3/4/2023
8/12/2023
12/28/2022
6/12/2024
6/11/2021
8/23/2023
9/1/2021
12/6/2013
4/14/2004
10/6/2016
8/21/2023
5/31/1911
07/20/1898

9/30/1918
2/24/1942

9/18/1917

5/28/1918

6/17/1969

01/16/1862

07/16/1861
09/18/1861
8/30/1918
8/16/1967

10/2/1944
11/2/1955
2/24/1943
9/25/1918
12/12/1917
6/10/1918
12/27/1961
12/5/1961
9/25/1991
9/1/1955

4/26/1995

10/20/1961
10/11/1955

71411957

08/25/1862



Dwy
Underhill
Schoen
Schiller
Beilke
Greenman
von Allmen
Zuehlke
Christianson
Hogenson
Patton
Heckert
Meidam
Smith
Shellard
Sample
Kowald
Kowald
Lindloff
Fairbanks
Lashway
Lester
Waldo
Edwards
Sykes
Hoppe
Law
Bogan
Danielsen
Lyman
Smith
Kugel
Porter
White
Sproat
Meidam
Stark
Alexander
Stark
Wolcott
Stegamann
Turner
Petraske
Gass

Wilson
Robert A.
William
LaVern
Kenneth
Edwin
Joseph
William
Lewis M.
John
Worthington
Herman Sr
Dennis Sr.
Shelby
Albert
Charles
Roger
Margaret
William K.
Sylvester
Henry
Richard
L.H.
Nathaniel M.
Lewis H
Earl
Ransom
Cylus
Ralph
Gerald H.
Paul
James M.
James
Lyman L.
William
Stephen
John J.
George A
James J.
James
William L.
Henry
Glenn
Frederick

E

H.R.
Gardener
R

H

Robert

Arista

Mathias

11/21/1819
5/1/1921
7/23/1936
2/8/1933
12/26/1925
2/10/1922
9/3/1925
02/16/1874
12/16/1923
8/15/1934
01/26/1841
02/25/1845
04/28/1846
9/26/1923
8/9/1933
1/5/1920
8/17/1930
4/8/1932
2/23/1927
01/10/1820
1/18/1912
11/01/1840
03/30/1841
07/05/1837

8/22/1923
04/19/1834

10/20/1917
1/30/1932
9/4/1916
6/5/1927
12/2/1920

01/01/1826
05/27/1848
1/7/1910
03/25/1876
6/15/1938
04/04/1844

01/01/1834
1/1/1918
03/01/1845

02/16/1878
9/24/1983
4/14/2016
7/15/1996
12/2/1992
2/4/1993
6/13/2013
2/1/1969
714/2004
11/3/2004
12/22/1909
1/4/1923
12/21/1928
4/25/2003
10/13/2006
5/15/2001
4/1/2017
11/18/2014
6/3/2017
10/26/1889
11/22/1993
01/08/1882
04/06/1895
7/20/1908
05/14/1864
10/27/2010
2/17/1904
2/28/1918
7/6/1989
2/27/2007
9/6/1999
1/13/2002
7/3/2010
03/17/1873
08/20/1867
7/15/1937
4/8/1965
5/2/1938
12/20/2014
8/15/1920
12/23/1901
01/01/1879
10/26/2003
7/13/1924

2/25/1953
3/30/1944
5/15/1943

04/28/1898

7/16/1952

06/28/1861
10/04/1864
10/07/1864

6/8/1953
1/4/1943
3/1/1951
8/28/1950

09/30/1864
9/1/1942

08/06/1862
04/17/1861

1/18/1918
2/23/1944
2/2/1950
5/26/1944
6/4/1945

06/28/1861
06/28/1861

1/2/1943

04/28/1898
08/07/1862

11/25/1863



Gilson
Smith
Orbison
Orbison
Orbison
Harn
Humphries Sr.
Gurnee
Gurnee
Kutler
Jones
Gallagher
Briggs
Damon
Peterman
Benoit
Dallas
Monroe
Bullock
Stevens
Koleske
Buchanan
Buchanan
Buchanan
Purdy
Purdy
Blood
Ming
Matschke
Ryan
Ryan
Ryan
Patton
Decker
Kruschke
Kuebler
Pomeroy
Pomeroy

Pomeroy Capt.

Ducklow
Miller
Merrill
Merrill
Russell

Samuel H.

William Corp.

Mary
Thomas
Frank
Mark
James W
David C
Franklin S.
Fred W.
Henry
Francis
Lewis A.
Richard O.
Steve
Louis
Laughlin D.
James
Lovell
Charles
James
William
William
James
Roy H.
Thomas Lee
E.J.
Samual
Fred
David J.
Samuel Sr.
SamL.Jr.
Zoroaster
Elmer Ford
Walter F.
james

Henry, Lt. Col.

Ralph
Hugh
William
Roland

Willard (Pvt)

Wilber F
Charles

E
Harwood

Miner

Norton
J

02/03/1823

01/07/1898
05/24/1888
4/14/1920
2/19/1941
2/11/1913
1/24/1918
10/24/1933
01/01/1835
05/16/1841
03/25/1834
01/21/1845
7123/1934
5/27/1961
05/21/1846

01/01/1824
11/4/1940
02/15/1843

6/9/1920

03/25/1890
7/1/1953

04/16/1848
06/18/1818
05/31/1824
06/20/1840
05/22/1789
03/13/1824

01/01/1836
10/07/1891
8/28/1932

11/22/1824
11/01/1861
09/14/1866
9/18/1920

08/13/1889
11/29/1874

09/02/1841

04/17/1881
02/04/1894
9/10/1980
10/4/1963
4/7/1980
1/18/2014
7/3/1959
7/20/1972
2/11/2005
1/1/2000
03/18/1888
11/14/1898
5/23/1923
12/17/1995
5/11/1991
11/09/1881
01/01/1894
12/24/1899
03/26/1895
1/1/1911
2/3/2020
5/14/1920
2/13/1993
6/11/1964
8/9/1971
712712022
09/27/1885
01/10/1896
9/8/1907
1/30/1917
04/12/1876
3/28/1907

1/1/1911
11/16/1954
8/14/2015
02/29/1876
1/4/1921
10/25/1940
6/23/1985
4/15/1953
03/25/1899
2/24/1900
04/09/1877

10/09/1861

10/13/1918

7/31/1942

10/30/1943
6/13/1945

08/01/1862
01/01/1862
11/21/1863
12/16/1861
1/7/1943
7/19/1979
05/13/1864
12/24/1864

11/12/1861
04/13/1865

5/22/1942
6/14/1918

01/02/1862
03/24/1862
02/24/1865
08/05/1862

02/18/1862
07/16/1861

11/01/1861
04/28/1898
04/28/1898

9/3/1918
04/28/1898
02/03/1865



Adsit
Galpin
Galpin
Galpin
Anderson
Spencer
Goodland
Claspill
Conner
O'Bright
LaBorde
Clark
Timmel
Freeman
Wood
Marston
Smyrneos
Marston
Marston
Marston
Weber
Davis
Davis
**Everts
Dunn
Robinson
Hehne
Soper
Ashman
Carey
Cole
Leimer
**Breitung
Breitung
McKendree
Ballard
**Brown
Lake
Schricker
Pearson
Pierce
Apel
Kirchner
Wettengel

Franklin
Alfred
Harold
Algernon
John H. A.
Frank
Clark
John H. Sr.
James
George R.
Eugene F.
Norman B.
Alfred R.
Hiram
George
Joseph
Charles
Joseph
Robie
Joseph Hilton
Russell
Evan
Allen E.
A. B.
Thomas C.
Andrew
Mildred L.
Amasa
John
James B.
Charles
Charles
Henry
Albert A.
William
Allen W.
Martin
JohnR.
Gerald
Silas
Allan
John
George
Frederick

Elias

Syndey

Gilbert

Guernsey
Gerry
Hilton

Hilton
Drake

G
Albert

=>»0 -

William

07/29/1839
06/20/1841
03/27/1848
10/23/1854
02/12/1896
04/24/1852
05/18/1892
01/16/1822
06/16/1841
5/9/1931
10/4/1920
05/11/1831
3/23/1928
01/03/1844
07/05/1898
06/01/1829
2/24/1921
10/7/1922
06/17/1841
10/07/1895
10/10/1935
08/19/1843
10/24/1845

01/01/1829
01/01/1825
04/07/1893
09/18/1828
01/01/1846

01/01/1841
01/12/1847

11/11/1835

09/13/1840
03/21/1848
09/27/1839
9/15/1944

09/30/1832
7/29/1938

06/26/1848
10/23/1832
08/15/1836

02/11/1891
5/19/1924
4/24/1907
10/1/1932
3/10/1925
4/24/1921
712211929
06/24/1885
2/8/1906
9/14/1992
7/18/2000
7/14/1906
2/11/1988
12/3/1926
4/16/1949
10/6/1920
2/2/1997
8/15/2021
10/08/1862
12/16/1938
1/28/1988
07/18/1880
11/14/1930
10/25/1873
1/1/1918
01/01/1890
2/27/2000
02/12/1883
01/26/1892
4/17/1900
12/9/1908
01/27/1879
04/30/1864
3/26/1918
07/02/1863
7/5/1926
5/19/1918
7/12/1923
4/25/2023
9/7/1909
11/29/1997
09/20/1873
03/03/1896
04/24/1882

10/10/1861

08/15/1862
09/16/1861
6/5/1917

1/9/1918

1/20/1951
5/21/1942
12/24/1864
1/23/1946
09/12/1861
10/29/1918

10/10/1942

07/28/1862

8/10/1953
10/25/1863
03/01/1865

09/18/1861
11/9/1918
10/26/1861

11/19/1863

08/14/1862

10/27/1863
01/11/1862

01/05/1862
08/13/1862
5/10/1965
08/04/1862
1/10/1962

03/01/1864
08/16/1861



Strong
Armstrong
Sandborn
Johnston
Johnston
Johnston
Green
Scheil
Braeger
Braeger
Braeger
Braeger
**Knapp
Brown
Wing
Gillespie
Eggleston
Eggleston
Reams
Wolfram
Hoefer
Gehring
Gehring
Everetts
Bates
Babcock
Hansen
Hanson
Bushey
Burley
Gooding
Hauert
Jones
Schulz
Xiong
Neff
**Kesting
Schlegel
Ritger
Wolf
Spencer
Spencer
Spencer
Lee

Henry F.
Clarence
Monroe
William Col.
George C.

Fremont Faville

William
Oscar
Clarence A.
Herman
Marvin
George W.
Lonrig Corp
Jason
James Corp

lvon Alexander

George D.
Raymond L.
Olin M.
Christian
Fred William
John L.
Gottlieb

A. B.
Robert G.
D.C.

Jens
George
George P.
Lawrence
CharlesL
Edwin

Billie
Joseph H.
Neng
Christen
Charles
Harry
Arthur
Edward
Frank E.
Frank Sibley
Dorothy
Rufus V.

Frank

Johann

01/01/1838
6/1/1907
12/18/1847
11/07/1798
10/11/1883
03/09/1899
01/01/1840
02/17/1889
11/10/1893
02/18/1898
12/5/1926
7/9/1928
01/01/1838
01/01/1817
03/01/1840
1/1/1907
10/04/1840
04/27/1880
7/24/1916
07/12/1832
10/01/1847
10/10/1841
01/01/1834
01/01/1825
4/28/1931
11/21/1843
09/18/1828
02/22/1886
06/29/1833
4/9/1910
9/2/1914
08/20/1897
8/16/1928
12/22/1893
4/4/1947
01/01/1833
01/01/1824
08/04/1892
02/02/1881
04/25/1891
01/01/1893
2/6/1922
1/1/1922

09/20/1896
5/9/1986
09/01/1876
09/02/1881
6/23/1906
12/27/1992
06/30/1894
10/18/1977
6/30/1963
10/29/1966
8/13/2013
4/23/1993
01/01/1862
07/21/1861
3/7/1923
10/21/1943
06/06/1882
7/18/1955
12/15/1986
12/01/1894
2/28/1913
10/24/1924
4/26/1902
01/01/1873
11/4/1974
02/04/1888
5/5/1904
11/23/1946
2/1/1917
2/16/1980
4/17/1996
7/15/1966
11/25/2004
2/28/1965
12/11/2020
08/10/1899
01/01/1898
12/11/1954
1/14/1951
11/5/1950
4/7/1930
9/16/2016
3/24/2005
1/1/1910

10/03/1861

9/30/1918
09/03/1861
12/14/1917
9/18/1917

2/26/1946
04/20/1861

02/27/1864
3/2/1942

06/28/1861
05/16/1898

10/01/1864
01/18/1864
08/21/1862
09/03/1864

5/3/1948

11/27/1863
7/22/1918
11/12/1863
6/13/1944
11/9/1942

5/25/1918

11/21/1862
02/24/1865
5/24/1918
10/29/1918
5/16/1918
4/7/1919
9/22/1942

10/21/1861



Strobl
Hacket
Selig
Brainard
Horn
Schultz
Swamp
Swamp
Franklin
Blom
Russell
Rule
Rule
Grube
Lambie
Verstegen
Miller
Schleis
Scholz
Laabs
Laabs
Millheiser
Chadek
Lansing
Hecht
Reichelt
Baer
Packard
Spychalla
Carini
Verity
Engler
Gennigen
Puffer
**Puffer
Puffer
Trettien
Town
Hoffman
Schutte
Gibson
Ochsner
Borchers
Jones

Howard
Robert
Edward F.
A. K.
Rueben
Walter J.
George
Gordon L.
Edward R.
Dennis P.
Abraham
Russell
Clinton
Fred

Del
Michael H.
Harold
Edward
Gottlieb
Mahlon W.
Marguerite
FrankJ.
Edward
Abraham
Albert O
George C.
Albert
Strong C.
Frank
Dominic
William Corp
CarlH.
Paul
Waldo J.
John
Richard
Fredrich
Ephraim
Archabald
Frederick
Arrington
Friedrich
Fred
William

®

—

W

Charles
John

William

9/28/1932
4/2/1944
11/25/1888
10/31/1828
9/29/1920
03/29/1894
11/5/1920
8/12/1922
12/19/1825
9/23/1936
06/10/1844
10/26/1880
01/30/1890
09/29/1852
04/25/1895
01/19/1895
04/11/1899
12/6/1921
12/21/1823
6/9/1918
1/12/1913
03/10/1817
11/30/1926
04/25/1819
01/06/1871
11/4/1922
7/11/1917
01/01/1827
03/08/1896
6/8/1937
09/18/1825
8/1/1906
10/26/1934
06/16/1893
03/18/1846
1/12/1932
10/19/1821
06/03/1831
3/9/1925
1/9/1927
04/24/1790
02/11/1832
02/01/1812

3/18/1979
9/6/2013
11/30/1951
1/9/1901
11/24/1943
4/12/1971
717/1968
11/23/2007
08/22/1898
8/13/2020
10/14/1891
12/24/1926
1/11/1977
9/20/1926
8/1/1985
6/10/1931
12/26/1987
8/5/2007
05/25/1899
10/11/1999
8/26/2000
07/13/1886
4/20/1979
08/23/1888
5/18/1951
6/16/1994
2/26/1990
6/21/1903
11/1/1984
5/20/2024
01/27/1899
3/21/1972
1/14/2016
2/9/1960
12/12/1864
4/28/2015
03/19/1891
10/20/1890
9/7/2015
12/16/2015
09/16/1860
12/15/1909
07/28/1881
8/24/1915

2/25/1953
6/20/1966
7/18/1918
08/15/1864
8/12/1942
4/2/1918
9/26/1942

02/27/1864

5/25/1918
5/25/1918

4/2/1918
9/18/1917
8/5/1917

10/04/1864
10/31/1941
11/22/1944
08/15/1862
1/18/1944

08/25/1864
04/28/1898
11/18/1942
10/15/1940
08/27/1864
4/21/1917

09/03/1864
6/6/1942

1/26/1943

08/25/1864

03/04/1865
01/24/1862
03/08/1864



Busse
Grundeman
Limpert
Limpert
Cavert
Johnson
Steenis
Walker
Goldbeck
McGrath
Bentley
Noble
Sherriff
Hanchett
Will
Darling
McSorley
Palmer
Neumann
Sabee
Sabee
Gartmann
Kleinhans
Wood
Wood
Scott
Pierce
Gosz
Gosz
Nichols
Mory
Snider
Albrecht
Comella
Hoffman
Krause
Bullock
Czechowicz
Janda
Sager
Sager
Reetz
Kluess
Gowey

John
Erwin
John A.
George J.
Charles
Stanley
Peter
Gordon
Charles
Morris D.
Charles
George
Robert
James
Herbert
Joseph
Raymond
Samuel
Fredrich
Agnes
James
Ervin William

Theodore J. Rev

Grayson
Carolyn
Bruce Robt.
Kenneth W.
Clarence
Richard
William R.
George
Egbert L.
Sylvester
Frank P.
Willis C
Leo H.
Loring B.
Dennis S.
Rudolph
Robert K.
EugeneR.
Walter
Raymond
Daniel

Bruno

Willis
F

ve)

Horan

Julius

A

03/10/1872
05/05/1887
8/21/1900

01/21/1893
10/08/1824
12/12/1927
04/07/1839
1/17/1916

03/15/1894
03/10/1810
07/29/1840
10/07/1827

01/01/1842
02/21/1892
6/12/1938
12/25/1927
09/27/1825
11/15/1827
9/24/1922
2/26/1916
10/19/1947
3/28/1924
713/1921
8/12/2013
9/12/1914
10/16/1918
5/6/1920
3/15/1947
3/13/1931
08/15/1898
01/01/1838
2/17/1922
12/10/1927
08/06/1897
07/15/1894
12/13/1834
9/22/1951
2/12/1930
9/30/1918
7/20/1923
10/23/1897
01/01/1896
712211947

02/25/1897
1/1/1973
3/21/1944
7/16/1957
1/1/1904
12/9/2015
03/25/1885
8/14/2014
3/19/1978
12/27/1887
5/20/1925
11/11/1899
1/1/1912
1/26/1929
4/27/1922
6/5/1983
5/1/2005
10/08/1863
9/23/1910
1/8/1979
1/16/1980
4/1/1968
2/27/2002
6/3/2019
5/13/2013
9/2/2002
12/10/2000
3/23/2003
6/12/2013
1/11/2022
8/18/1948
1/1/1918
10/7/1972
8/18/1986
8/3/1962
1/1/1943
3/25/1914
7/19/2005
10/23/2004
7126/1963
4/30/1969
5/31/1944
12/1/1918
11/17/2022

03/23/1865

1/28/1954
8/30/1918
02/20/1864

06/28/1861

4/1/1918
12/30/1861
08/12/1862
08/11/1862
08/28/1864
07/30/1863
4/25/1918
2/17/1958

09/07/1861
08/14/1862
5/25/1944
5/7/1940
5/16/1967

8/2/1943
9/28/1942
11/10/1941

7/5/1918

10/10/1942
1/14/1946
11/11/1918
5/25/1918
11/23/1863
4/19/1971

2/711940
12/14/1942
6/5/1918
7/24/1918
6/20/1966



Eick
Schaefer
Pohlman
Gillett
Falk

Falk
Schley
Zumach
Pond
Hoeppner
Hoeppner
Woldt
Woldt
Lillge
Jones
Bethe

De Bruin
Zimmerman
Williams
Sengstock
Acker
Bomier
VanLoo
Ward
Worcester
Merollo
Ehrhardt
Merollo
Bergner
Treiber
Kranzusch
Barnhart
Hoffmann
Wiegand
Wurm
Boettcher

Grapengieser

Hoffman
Merkle
Kimball
Mentzel
Stricker
Miller
Loveall

Ernest
CharlesF.
Peter Henry
Irving E.
Regina V.
Stanley W.
Norman
Irvin W.
Charles Sr.
Paul

Fred Jr

Earl

Gilbert W.
Melvin R.
Newland P.
Everett
Mark
Arnold
David
Victor
Ralph L.
Raymond W.
Clarence
Richard
John Bigelow
Daniel

Earl

Daniel
Robert B.
David A.
James Henry
Samuel H.
Rudolph H
William
Emil C.
Herbert A.
Earl H.
EmilC
ChesterA.
Nelson W.

Donald "Don" D.

Nicholas H.
Robert
ThomasR.

Wilson
L

D
L
M

02/01/1874
01/01/1872
07/19/1892
09/19/1873
8/4/1923
9/7/1919
6/13/1943
03/15/1896
02/17/1897
12/27/1886
11/26/1891
8/10/1929
2/24/1921
6/8/1924
3/16/1908
04/10/1874
4/26/1946
5/2/1935
2/24/1967
11/2/1918
5/1/1927
03/21/1898
12/8/1906
6/30/1936
8/28/1923
5/9/1921
4/8/1915
12/27/1898
9/8/1949
1/9/1938
10/27/1926
03/01/1843
09/29/1895
1/21/1914
12/16/1905
09/17/1892
9/19/1907
02/06/1878
11/06/1896
01/01/1848
6/4/1956
1/18/1942
7/16/1933
11/26/1932

3/1/1906
3/11/1930
8/4/1929
11/29/1937
3/25/2010
9/2/1996
8/8/2024
1/7/1975
8/29/1971
3/9/1979
7/17/1971
8/27/2024
9/19/2004
6/2/2009
4/1/1962
9/1/1930
9/10/2018
12/9/2017
12/2/1986
8/8/1997
4/10/2022
8/5/1970
8/29/1979
6/2/2015
12/4/1985
5/27/1974
10/22/2010
4/1/1981
1/8/2000
12/23/2002
9/24/1986
3/21/1926
8/30/1975
1/21/1914
2/26/1996
10/14/1953
12/27/1969
4/17/1946
12/26/1987
4/8/1901
11/11/2021
10/22/2009
5/22/2006
6/7/2013

06/16/1898
3/5/1900
5/25/1918
06/30/1898
5/18/1944
1/19/1940

7/1/1918
5/6/1957
5/25/1918
5/25/1918

10/26/1942

6/2/1941
04/28/1898

7/25/1985
4/19/1943

8/26/1942

12/14/1942
5/4/1943

5/8/1918
9/24/1969
7/14/1956
11/12/1944
08/16/1864
5/14/1917
03/27/1864
4/25/1942

6/24/1942
04/28/1898
8/13/1918
10/21/1864

4/9/1964



Mahloch
Tobin
Tobin
Kronberg
Sykes
Buske
Crouch
Arnell
Skarweski
Weber
Fenner
Stabe
Robinson
Gottschalk
Wutt
Krueger

Hartmanstorfer

Miller
Humphrey

VanderZanden

Bertrand
Newling
Sparks
Brandt
Hollenback
Mitchler Sr.
Paddock
Saxton
Lohrenz
Lowery
Neville
Miller
Klopstein
Blaese
Grobe
Morgan
Craig
Nygaard
DuBord
Doering
Lauer
Stierman
McCarthy
Chapman

Ronald J.
ErnestJames
James Lee
Douglas
Richard
William
Jesse
Joseph P
Gaylord A.
Norbert Arthur
Donald B.
Allen

G.L. Prt.
Lida Mae
DelmarA.
CarlF.
Frank

David Ervin Capt.
John

Scott D.
StevenR.
Maurice
Dan

David L.
Jerome N.
Gerald Geo.
Oscar

W.J.

Wm.

Jaime M.
Almond
George
Orville C.
Roger C
Laurence D
William J.
Clinton Arthur
Erick Dan
James
Ronald
JamesR.
PaulT.

Leo A

Clyde K. (Jr.)

5/29/1951
7129/1920
9/9/1948
2/17/1962
11/01/1875
04/24/1870

10/8/1915
11/29/1921
3/22/1932
5/2/1925
11/7/1919

7/30/1945
12/23/1934
05/13/1848
8/3/1911
8/31/1957

6/19/1968
11/8/1953
9/18/1922
2/8/1931
3/7/1931
12/24/1928
6/9/1933

02/23/1827
6/16/1976
5/6/1931
10/5/1944
5/13/1918
11/15/1932
6/23/1921
2/4/1922
2/23/1915
11/16/1922
5/22/1940
8/19/1946
1/22/1949
8/8/1950
7/24/1945
2/13/1945

9/9/1993
3/17/1987
3/8/1995
5/4/1995
10/26/1963
3/4/1939
02/14/1894
7/20/1978
2/12/1995
4/23/1995
9/18/1994
9/12/1986

7/31/1971
6/26/1980
12/13/1900
11/25/1982
7/1/1985
9/19/1901
2/26/1992
7/14/2006
12/22/2006
9/4/2020
5/7/2007
8/24/2007
11/4/2007
7/13/1911
12/20/1894
3/6/1907
10/5/2005
4/4/1990
11/15/2014
9/17/1992
2/20/1995
7/8/1995
7/13/1997
4/28/1998
12/11/2017
11/25/2014
6/7/2013
12/28/2021
1/24/2008
1/20/2022
12/12/2020

4/19/1976
8/11/1942
6/5/1969

04/28/1898
12/16/1896

2/27/1942
712/1942
7/29/1953
5/22/1944
4/8/1942

4/27/1967

10/01/1864
10/27/1942
7/15/1979

8/7/1986
9/30/1971
11/23/1942

1/18/1952
9/4/1946
10/23/1969
09/02/1864
08/21/1862
10/01/1864

5/17/1949

9/25/1941

4/16/1952

9/28/1944

10/8/1940

6/13/1940

1/22/1969

2/19/1970



Weyker
Sanchez
Schmitz
O'Donnell
Weller
Prust
Sagert
Berggren
Sonnleitner
Bradley
Rusch
Kuehn
Herber
Beschta
Fink
Johnson
Williams
Barnard
Lemmers
Clements
Cerbolles
Hartwig
Hartwig
Joos
Tierney
Murray
Kerrigan
Fries
Gosha
Schmelling
Tubbs
Fellion
Schinderle
Bellrichard
Judge
Kamasky
Hurley
Bourassa
Krause
Lamers
Strehmel
Smith
Wrege
VanHandel

Andrew
Arturo
JohnE.
William J.
William
Henry

Charles Wm.

Russell E.
Joseph John
Gregory

Gordon A. Sr.

Joseph
Francis N.
Norman A
Robert H.
Donald D.
Richard G.
Allan L.
Stephen
Douglas

Rudolfo "Rudy"

EarlW
Albert C
Rudolph
Gerald E.

Gordon James

Earl J.
John M.
Charles
Theo.
Byron B.
John B.
Arthur J.
Andrew A.
Basil T. Sr.
Mary M.
Terrance
MichaelJ.
Theodore R.
Dennis D.
John
Corwin L.
Marvin
Anthony J.

James

1/26/1965
1/7/1942
01/03/1894
01/01/1878
01/01/1821
07/14/1895
3/9/1940
10/26/1913
3/20/1919
2/14/1969
2/27/1927
03/11/1826
8/20/1922
1/5/1912
4/30/1937
10/11/1936
12/2/1927
9/29/1936
2/6/1932
7/5/1952
12/22/1977
11/01/1894
12/04/1894

10/16/1937
2/19/1953
10/28/1918
6/18/1942
03/21/1840
03/24/1840
07/13/1837
06/03/1831
5/30/1922
2/9/1939
7/19/1928
3/3/1914
12/24/1943
2/3/1949
2/14/1947
12/11/1950
11/29/1933
6/8/1931
12/9/1941
8/26/1926

12/4/2024
7/12/2013
10/19/1971
6/30/1946
07/10/1899
5/28/1966
9/12/1997
11/12/1995
11/20/1996
7/16/1995
12/9/1985
09/09/1899
11/27/1988
10/14/1981
5/27/1998
10/1/1998
11/8/2001
1/15/1999
5/25/2023
3/20/2018
5/26/2019
1/12/1982
3/14/1966
07/03/1885
2/1/1971
11/22/2000
1/21/1999
2/25/1998
1/17/1941
11/20/1887
8/4/1924
8/1/1924
2/11/1999
7/25/1999
3/4/2000
8/3/2004
9/21/2021
7/16/2020
8/30/2021
7124/1994
6/30/2009
1/21/1995
2/22/2021
6/24/1991

5/25/1918
06/24/1898
01/01/1864
5/25/1918
10/26/1961
4/15/1941
1/5/1943
11/30/1993

01/11/1862
5/22/1945
9/26/1947
2/18/1957
1/26/1956
1/13/1949
8/4/1955
3/19/1952

7/13/1917
7/3/1918

2/15/1955
6/21/1971
1/19/1942
10/31/1962
12/28/1863
12/30/1863
09/07/1864
08/14/1862
10/8/1942
3/8/1957
9/30/1946
3/15/1945
3/15/1965

6/24/1970
8/25/1954
7127711949

10/26/1948



Hough
Fraser
VanHandel
Cleveland
Wilson
Glander
Pozolinski
Gundlach
Taylor
Cutshall
Brandner
Knapp
Kolngen
Hurd
Stiener
Kamasky
Rupiper
Vinci
DelLong
Peterson
Bahr
Purath
Carlson
Jewett
VanHandel
VanHandel
Waters
Barney
Graham
Ince
Hoffman
Ruth
Goodman
Wunderlich
Christensen
Coakley
Richards
Collins
Fransway
Mahloch
Beach
Schoepke
LaBerge
Fenno

Shannon L.
William
Cornelius J.
Jay

Francis G.
Otto C. Sr.
Joseph H.
Audrey R.
Kenneth D.
Hudson W.
Joseph
Luke
Nicholaus
Henry Harrison
John B.
Edmund J.
Donald J.
Harold
Donald V.
Ralph
Willian
Frederick
Clarence D.
John D.
Edward H.
Raymond
Emery
Steven C.
Michael
Frank
Harry K. Sr.
William L.
Solomon
Michael
Carlyen H.
Robert
JamesE.
Joseph C.
Charles
Christopher
S.E.
Gerald
Roger G.
Miles H.

Herbert

JOHN

5/14/2008

11/9/1909
03/22/1895

06/14/1892
12/27/1927
5/24/1924
10/21/1928
7/31/1935
03/22/1836

01/18/1841
05/02/1841
12/01/1827
4/20/1918
10/28/1932
3/15/1927
8/3/1929
8/16/1909
11/25/1934
06/16/1820
3/26/1920

9/16/1918
8/23/1921
6/22/1947
7/19/1946
5/25/1967
8/24/1919
7/29/1931
3/23/1944
1/4/1925
10/25/1950
9/15/1908
4/26/1929

7/5/1938

8/25/1968

2/27/1935
4/2/1909

7/5/2008

9/12/1964
6/12/1961

10/27/1964
7/2/2001
2/22/2008
5/2/2021
1/12/2001
5/11/1923

11/2/1921
2/3/1921
12/06/1893
12/10/2008
7/13/2002
1/25/2006
9/30/2002
6/21/1999
2/8/2004
4/12/1904
8/24/2004
11/21/1862
10/25/1976
2/18/1967
11/9/2014
4/13/2004
3/27/2015
8/23/2002
9/5/2003
12/25/2004
6/26/2010
1/4/2006
6/3/2000
12/7/2011

4/11/1982
7/24/1912
8/11/1990

1/8/1987
1/11/1984
06/10/1866

6/14/1994
06/28/1861
7/14/1945
4/10/1917
05/14/1864
5/25/1918
3/6/1946
5/24/1944

1/31/1955
03/06/1865
08/18/1864

02/24/1864
03/20/1865
3/22/1944
3/15/1950
3/22/1944
3/26/1951
8/21/1940

01/31/1865
4/3/1942
08/26/1862
1/1/1942
10/27/1942

3/19/1965

9/7/1950
8/10/1948
6/2/1964

712211942

05/20/1863
7/3/1964
02/17/1865

1/20/1958
10/14/1943
08/15/1862



Hartel
Maloney
Gabrielson
Huckins
Attwood
Brady
Brownell
Volpe
Kiar
Craven
Frazier
Dalke
Hartel
Parker
Dahms
Sanger
Godschalx
Seidl
Carroll
Trams
Lewis
Cook
Bennett
Kuusisto
Hammond
Hammond
Springer
Wingert
Haas
Schmitz
Janssen
Britton
Bruss
Asmus
Staedt
Wilson
Decleene
Wilfer
Horn
Mitala
O'Brien
Powell
Annen Sr.
Mach

JohnF.
Francis D.
Floyd
George
Andrew
Henry
Tellinghast
Geno
RobertT.
Daniel H.
Drew C.
Ronald
Margaret
Ronald A.
Steve
Herbert J.
Maria
Thomas
Bret C.
Curtis D.
Valerie M.
Allen
Michael J.
Ronald, Sr.
James Gordong
Benjamin D
Kenneth W.
Eugene
Louis A.
Robert
James
GeneE.
Llyod

John R
Thomas
James A.
Bernard J.
MichaelJ.
Henry H. Jr.
Joseph
George, Jr.
Duane L.
Harold W.
Robert L.

3/18/1920
6/15/1929
1/23/1928

03/04/1836

3/14/1927
11/30/1919
5/31/1939
9/14/1926
2/21/1931
1/15/1923
5/15/1933
6/20/1947
5/17/1938
10/10/1921
8/4/1941
10/27/1965
2/15/1934
8/27/1953
5/27/1942
10/7/1950
3/10/1943
12/12/1961
1/29/1961
11/12/1928
2/3/1924
8/27/1933
10/27/1928
5/19/1949
7/23/1932
10/2/1937
9/13/1916
2/3/1939
7/15/1933
1/14/1950

5/23/1919
8/12/1946
2/23/1927

4/10/1933
2/16/1925

2/19/2001
6/25/2008
11/30/2016

12/11/1903
1/31/1908
4/20/1914
12/25/1991
9/23/2002
12/7/2009
12/19/2009
4/22/2013
12/29/2013
6/18/2017
2/13/2024
11/30/2017
8/8/2018
3/19/2024
7/11/2019
1/1/2019
4/11/2020
5/8/2018
6/25/2018
8/27/2016
3/7/1991
7/23/1996
12/17/2001
1/1/2015
7/10/2014
12/17/2022
1/5/2015
11/10/2011
1/29/2010
7/13/1994
12/9/2011
4/27/2000
3/27/2012
2/28/2004
4/3/2002
5/18/2012
6/6/2018
5/31/2005
12/5/2007
3/30/2013

10/2/1940
1/9/1951

09/28/1864
08/15/1863
07/30/1862
7124/1952
6/7/1942

4/2/1945

3/3/1967

3/26/1959
6/20/1987

11/24/1982
6/20/1946

12/30/1942

7/1/1969
11/10/1941

5/11/1945
7/21/1965



Kennedy
Rosewitz
Kuebler
Kent
Alsbury
Melzer
Yach
Von Holt
Lemke
Sheldon
Onkels
Belling
Tesch
Immel
Ernst
Ernst
Calto
Timm Jr.
Timm
Timm Sr.
Heiden
Wiedemann
Dyer
Conkey
Azzi
Ryan
Stein
Heeter
Bauer
Calahan
Field
Vail

Lee
Reifsnyder
Stephan
Wolff
Noffke
Prentice
Reese
Mory
Mory
Werner
Leppla

Van Heukelom

Ronald

Jerry

John|

David

CharlesR.

Willilam G.

Jerome S.

William

Richard W.
Willard R.
Melvin K.
Richard E.
LesterE.
Norman W.
Alvina D.
Delbert
George Wm.
Marvin W.
Jane A.
Marvin
Dean
Daniel
JohnD.
Julian H.
Frank
Francis D.
JohnD.
Charles
Billy A.
John F.
Walter F.
John

0. Richard
S. Boyd
John J.
Delbert
Roy O.
Eldon Nathaniel (Jr.)
Jessie D.
Arthur E.
George
Martin
Harold M
George

Merle

Horan

4/21/1931
5/31/1932
4/4/1927
12/9/1929
11/6/1942
10/27/1934
11/16/1918
10/23/1941
4/27/1926
7/28/1914
7/18/1930
9/4/1909
8/25/1918
8/11/1931
2/28/1926
12/22/1926
9/4/1912
1/17/1949
2/15/1949
1/15/1925
4/13/1949
4/6/1944
9/4/1923
9/30/1925
1/5/1922
2/1/1932
9/8/1925
4/16/1918
4/26/1917
10/12/1924
6/21/1935
12/19/1926
7/8/1929
3/14/1921
1/20/1922
4/19/1924
8/8/1920
1/5/1929
03/01/1849
06/23/1895
1/1/1989
8/8/1926
1/21/1900
05/19/1843

9/5/2024
12/16/2022
11/3/2009
11/1/2021
9/22/2014
10/13/2008
5/22/1996
11/16/2025
10/3/2022
4/14/2011
10/30/2000
11/6/1997
9/30/1998
7/24/2001
5/15/1992
6/25/2010
6/5/2002
5/2/2010
10/16/2002
9/4/2013
1/24/2023
6/15/1994
11/25/2010
71712021
6/10/2007
1/10/2000
9/29/1998
1/2/1997
4/1/1993
1/17/1999
9/2/2009
9/26/2011
9/2/2017
8/4/1996
9/14/2017
1/28/2013
3/21/1999
9/2/2020
07/16/1896
9/5/1938
6/18/1948
9/2/1998
9/26/1960
09/24/1897

4/18/1941

2/25/1942

7/18/1952

5/29/1943

6/8/1961

6/29/1942

12/17/1943
6/1/1953

10/23/1942
9/9/1942

12/29/1863

2/12/1917

10/21/1918
10/10/1861



Harwood
Brettschneider
Johnston
Sherry
Sherry
Scott
Ames
Stroebe
Kirsch
Zimmerman
Lemke
Wirth
Hinnenthal
Hinnenthal
Saiberlich
Dite
Halfmann
Saiberlich
Waedel
Cate
Wegenke
Thompson
Thompson
Thies
Leman
Leman
Kruschke
Zuehlke
Thalke
Merrill
Dutton
Hayden Dr.
Rochon
Acher
Brown
Bartmann
Clark
Reeck
Gruenstern
Schultz
Burroughs
Cooley
Brockmann
Brockman

Paul
Elmer
Alden M.
Carl
William
Ira C.
William
Reinhold
Nicholaus
Robert
Fred

John
Donald
HugoH
Henry
Ferdinand
PhilB
Raymond A.
Friedrich
Alden G.
George
William E.
Charles M.
John
Angelo
Craig
Herman
Julius
Charles
William
Arthur H.
Franklin L.
Lawrence
Aaron J.
Jonas
John Fred.
Charles Lewis
Marlin
Reinhold
William
Robert
T.F.
Friederick
Fred

Allen
Joseph

>

Drager

w
Wallace

10/12/1944
01/01/1897
06/21/1889
02/07/1896
1/28/1925
05/01/1837
10/25/1832
03/08/1841
09/07/1837
11/2/1953
05/08/1835
11/30/1832
7/8/1930
06/30/1895
01/01/1827
02/04/1847
08/20/1891
06/20/1897
01/01/1828
04/13/1837
7/18/1917
03/07/1870
10/02/1899
8/29/1925
12/13/1889
9/1/1922
01/01/1857
03/19/1839
08/01/1891
10/23/1843
8/16/1912
04/21/1849
4/5/1915
01/01/1828
01/01/1811
02/04/1897
01/04/1879
4/12/1937
7/5/1917
06/01/1828
4/29/1921
09/08/1823
12/22/1831
05/19/1882

8/28/2023
4/16/1926
10/21/1967
9/24/1997
1/10/2012
6/11/1909
11/07/1898
08/06/1899
4/24/1925
3/26/2011
12/12/1905
7/23/1916
8/23/2024
1/25/1981
7/25/1910
4/17/1917
8/21/1980
6/21/1988
2/25/1914
1/1/1906
4/26/2006
3/1/1939
1/17/1959
711/1974
4/20/1933
3/31/1987
1/1/1903
3/4/1918
11/20/1948
08/17/1895
9/21/2006
07/17/1895
9/6/1979
09/08/1894
12/27/1893
4/15/1983
9/9/1944
3/23/2024
7/8/1972
6/11/1914
4/15/1983
1/14/1901
7/21/1904
10/24/1951

4/13/1917
8/13/1917
2/27/1918

10/10/1864
06/16/1864
03/11/1865
09/17/1861

12/18/1861

9/7/1917
09/28/1864
01/18/1864
3/29/1918
10/15/1918
08/14/1862
12/28/1861
5/22/1942

11/12/1917
2/22/1944
12/9/1913
12/9/1913

09/23/1864
8/2/1917
01/28/1865
2/7/1943
01/15/1864
3/3/1943
09/08/1864
12/31/1861
6/24/1917
04/28/1898
1/1/1955
4/11/1941

7/25/1939
01/04/1864
03/09/1865



Wilson
Wilson
Roesken
Johnson
Reynolds
Cleggett
Waltman
Groth
Schulz
Hrdlick
Miller

Voge

Meyer
Meyer
Kruse

Jones
Friedrick
Zimmerman
Zimmerman
Lillge

Lillge
Witthuhn
Diener
Zschaechner
Riesenweber
Kanouse
Kanouse
Herrmann
Bilter
Rohan
Krueger
Blackwood
Rogers
Stowe
Saiberlich
Bixby

Bixby
Sannes
Christensen
Dutcher
Peotter
Abbott
Brain
Mather

George
William
Juergen H.
Arlin E.
Charles C.
William
Frank
Norman C.
Samuel
Richard
George F.
John F.
Gerald
Raymond
HenryR.
Mark L.
August C.
John D.
Karel
Edwin J.
Henry
Elmer
Henry
Robt. H.
Charles
Abijah
Ralph
Robert K
Benjamin
Benjamin
John W.
Josiah
Richard

Dennis Gilbert

Henry A.
Charles
Philip
Kenneth E.
Robert A.
John W.
George E.
Leslie
Thomas
Willard G.

Joseph

Kenneth

Wood
Elijah

Eaton
Earl

Howard

02/22/1895
03/29/1847
11/11/1951
10/26/1936
08/07/1848
01/01/1832
09/05/1886
8/14/1946
05/21/1891
9/9/1927
01/01/1882
08/11/1879
9/22/1924
8/10/1930
4/14/1926
2/7/1962
12/17/1826
08/16/1832
11/23/1917
11/02/1891
10/16/1889

01/01/1830
3/26/1908
03/08/1839
08/24/1845
04/13/1880
10/21/1916
04/25/1894
6/13/1922
9/2/1917
10/12/1844
9/28/1931
03/11/1844
3/17/1911
4/25/1919
9/5/1916

1/22/1925
8/1/1918
05/28/1896
10/3/1933
01/10/1853

11/4/1929
12/17/1928
3/11/2010
10/17/1992
8/9/1920
5/20/1916
7/12/1933
12/4/2017
3/28/1958
1/20/2009
1/15/1917
8/2/1957
7/11/1994
4/23/1997
11/1/1986
6/24/2021
9/15/1919
1/10/1922
8/30/1997
4/5/1925
10/18/1940
10/17/1918
1/24/1918
2/8/1989
5/18/1924
5/31/1928
8/29/1911
9/21/1975
3/19/1921
5/23/1994
2/5/1937
8/16/1911
12/29/1997
6/23/1917
10/25/1958
3/28/1943
4/14/1945
5/25/2009
1/3/1969
7/6/1993
9/20/1972
9/10/1976
5/27/1947
12/6/1918

1/15/1918
03/04/1861

1/9/1956
01/05/1864

5/25/1918
5/28/1965
12/12/1918

7/15/1917

3/5/1947
712711944

02/27/1865
10/03/1864
9/9/1942
9/18/1917
7/8/1918
9/3/1918
09/28/1864
1/5/1943
03/03/1864
08/24/1864
04/28/1898
1/22/1942
4/10/1917

01/23/1863
1/6/1951
08/31/1864
7/24/1943

10/14/1943
1/30/1918
5/11/1955
3/30/1942
10/2/1918



Bishop
Bishop
**Kemp
Feavel
Feavel
Feavel
Hebbring
Hulbert
Mitchell
Mitchell
Smith
Waldron
Langstadt
Watkins
DeBruin
De Bruin
Andrews
Becker
Hoffman
Gerdin
Pleckham
Norenberg
Brown
Phillips
Parker
Rehfeldt
Santkyul
Landry
Schafelke
Parkinson
Voigt

De Young
Baetz
Hartzheim
Schwingle
Buchanan
Reinke
Sonsthagen
Beula
Lewis
Gottschalk
Stadler
Wofford
Grootemont

Glenn
Arthur J.
Charles B
Harvey
Robert
Leland
William
Clyde Ira
Robert
Robert
Leslie C.
Jonathon G
Godfried
Robert
Henry P.
Harold F.
James
Robert M
FrankJ.
Oscar

Frank

Carl

William M.
Charles Theo.
George J.
Rudolph
Henry H.
Thomas W.
Henry A.
George
Martin W.
Francis W.
Sheldon P.
Emery Walter
Eugene
Merlin

Robert

Allen

Richard
Chester
Donald
Marvin

Noble

John

T>Ps-r--oro

Andrew

Sanford
Sanford

Joseph

3/29/1939
08/17/1892
02/11/1881
12/11/1895
9/17/1948
8/7/1900
11/13/1949
8/6/1930
12/03/1877
8/2/1909
08/05/1896
3/10/1910
10/18/1835
03/25/1892
3/7/1937
1/6/1930
10/16/1907
11/5/1931
12/05/1875
05/31/1889
12/30/1898
04/30/1887

10/26/1899
03/03/1886
08/23/1895
01/11/1887
09/11/1895
11/11/1891
03/22/1890
03/14/1889
9/7/1916
04/09/1898
5/14/1918
9/21/1936
7/10/1914
4/4/1949
2/12/1962
7/10/1926
8/15/1921
4/15/1943
9/30/1938
11/6/1931
1/16/1924

3/10/2013
8/21/1974
5/13/1932
10/2/1918
6/13/2015
4/30/1971
11/19/1949
9/14/2001
5/17/1926
7/20/1966
9/11/1976
4/6/1974
5/15/1931
6/27/1980
10/14/2010
3/20/1999
1/25/1980
11/27/1992
6/22/1937
5/6/1939
8/27/1939
7/15/1918
7/15/1918
3/30/1925
8/22/1940
12/3/1947
9/5/1952
6/12/1956
11/6/1959
5/11/1960
7/29/1960
8/19/1978
4/6/1980
10/14/1985
9/10/1992
5/3/1999
9/30/2024
4/4/1990
8/30/1992
11/26/1995
7/19/1999
4/27/2003
8/9/2021
11/22/2002

7/22/1918
7/13/1901
5/25/1918

4/23/1943

9/16/1947

6/14/1918
9/15/1942
01/25/1862
9/20/1917

716/1945
2/24/1943
4/14/1952
03/01/1897
10/15/1917
7/8/1918
8/6/1917

6/22/1916
5/9/1917
4/25/1918
8/14/1918
2/6/1943
5/15/1918
4/15/1917
8/14/1918
3/25/1941
11/20/1917
4/25/1942
9/29/1953
3/16/1944

5/24/1944

7/29/1964
12/10/1958



Thompson
Weisshahn
Wells
Tedford
Landis
Krause
Smith
Oenes

De Noble
Younger
Rouman
Rademacher
Stelzer
Barney
Whitcomb
Smith
Sawyers
Sell
Duvernay
Schmitz
Smith
Smith
Weir
Mielke
Lundt
Meagher

Hopfensperger

Chapman
Weller
Learman
Learman
Retzlaff
Krasinski
Smith
Prindle
Schneider
Schneider
Radtke
Much
Ultang
Rowe
Endter
Endter
Kasten

John
Clifford
Day
Clinton
Ralph
Arthur
Wendall
Erwin
Lloyd
Frank B.
John
John
George
Milo
Robert
Douglas
Robert
David A.
Ronald
Richard
Dean Allen
Philip
Donald
Joseph
Warner
William
Clarence
Charles
John
Llyod
Anthony
Gerald
Roman
Lloyd
Kenneth
Elmer
Thomas
Paul
Richard
James
Julian
Richard
Robert
Herman

Wilbur
F

<< 0 m

Julian

o)

®

Mmoo O 00 T

@ sNs=sm

Alvin
Herrick
A

o T m “—

12/4/1925
12/2/1931
5/11/1931
10/29/1940
08/29/1897
10/9/1927
11/2/1922
2/16/1929
10/27/1924
05/02/1896
1/18/1923
3/17/1944
9/3/1929
5/3/1916
12/30/1929
9/1/1954
4/19/1925
10/5/1954
9/11/1944
5/30/1926
4/18/1925
4/8/1948
5/24/1935
1/24/1934
11/9/1924
3/27/1927
5/18/1912
1/8/1922
4/11/1915
8/19/1941
6/26/1973
3/6/1941
7/9/1913
05/25/1896
10/5/1913
06/29/1885
1/29/1927
6/14/1924
2/28/1952
10/11/1938
10/6/1917
6/9/1939
8/21/1942
10/21/1867

12/11/2015
11/17/2001
11/15/1993
3/18/2003
12/26/1978
12/12/2006
1/8/2015
3/7/1992
9/16/1996
10/16/1943
2/16/2013
5/18/2025
7/15/2001
5/22/2002
1/13/2003
10/23/1989
10/23/2015
4/16/2020
10/13/2011
3/10/2000
3/4/1980
3/4/2014
10/23/2023
2/9/1994
10/14/2013
6/17/2002
9/21/1964
5/7/2007
4/3/2009
6/3/2025
3/29/2004
3/20/2013
4/6/1979
3/22/1968
12/4/1986
9/7/1968
5/17/1953
9/10/1998
8/20/2000
7125/2016
11/15/2010
6/3/1973
5/20/2022
11/1/1933

5/31/1951
3/18/1949
10/21/1958
6/8/1942

2/10/1943
8/23/1943

1/6/1954
5/16/1934

7/31/1972

711/1944

12/1/1952

9/17/1943
9/3/1942

3/5/1941
7/30/1917
7/15/1941
2/19/1915
7/11/1945
11/15/1943
10/18/1972

9/19/1961
9/15/1967
5/15/1918



Kasten
Moder
Schultz
Walters
Shepherd
Schultz
Pasch
Burmeister
Goodrich
Goodrich
Herrmann
Enos
Jabas
VanderLois
Wagg
Johnson
Downer
VanWyk
VanWyk
Delong
Haugen
Meidam
Hamilton
Graef
Reuss
Reuss
Tradewell
Gruentzel
Weimar
Wunderlich
Rogers
Farwell
Holub
Wendt
Lenz
Latzko
Friedwald
Vaughn
Conard
Reynolds
Morris
Carlson
Noyes
Boldt

Ervin
Luke
Theodore
Walter
Sewell
Ferdinand
Robert

Fredrick C.

Bertrand
George
Nicholas
Truman
Richard
Russell
Fred
Robert
Arthur
Paul
Frank
Leonard
Karl
Miles
Harold
Aldor
Clarence
James
Jean
Bette
Edmund
Lyle

Holbrook, (Bud)

Francis
Sylvester
Wilburn
William
Robert
George
Russell
Ralph
Laurence
Marion
Harold
Russell
Oscar

E

Thomas
Bernhardt
J

L

G

F
Robert

L

F

E.G.

W
Brooks

Lewis
Edward

g S ®O@IIzZzmMm=s
w

OsS->»®mromao

Peter

6/12/1909
8/4/1947
10/14/1894
07/04/1869
08/06/1828
04/14/1822
01/01/1875

01/01/1874
2/18/1913
03/28/1828
03/26/1826
4/21/1929
4/7/1926
01/15/1876
3/19/1922
10/5/1914
06/16/1896
12/4/1902
10/28/1878
06/18/1891
9/16/1918
4/5/1903
03/01/1889
7/1/1915
3/20/1913
8/17/1924
8/18/1922
11/20/1838
7/21/2004
7/21/1925
5/13/1913
4/27/1921
5/11/1924
6/10/1957
8/19/1924
5/25/1914
6/17/1919
10/6/1917
4/20/1923
10/14/1932
10/1/1927
6/12/1929
12/11/1895

5/4/1981
2/3/2015
2/26/1963
6/4/1900
9/26/1909
08/20/1899
08/22/1899
1/1/1902
3/8/1931
6/30/1950
6/14/1912
7/28/1900
10/17/1970
2/27/1979
8/18/1900
2/16/2012
4/7/1998
10/30/1921
8/16/1992
21711922
8/13/1958
12/28/1997
9/30/1958
4/28/1949
4/11/1957
2/6/1998
2/18/2005
7/14/1979
4/1/1902
8/1/2004
6/9/1992
9/10/1940
7/20/2002
3/23/2007
12/4/2017
6/6/2018
3/5/2005
7/11/2002
6/30/1998
9/3/1999
5/12/2013
7117/2002
1/6/2003
2/8/1970

12/28/1943

08/31/1864
02/22/1865
04/28/1898
12/28/1864
04/26/1898

10/13/1864

6/20/1946
2/17/1944
04/28/1898

4/15/1915

11/19/1917
3/30/1943
3/1/1941

11/1/1939
12/9/1942
10/9/1944
4/5/1943
10/14/1861
9/24/1942
1/7/1942

7/20/1942

2/20/1942
4/5/1941
8/6/1941
2/15/1943

4/3/1942

7122/1918



Brannan William
Boldt Oscar
Vanden Boogaal Elmer
Deckers Adrian
Balch Robert
LeGault Douglas
Kuenzli Quentin
Guyon William
Hermanson Matthew
Lamers Stephen
Lamers Richard
Van Zeeland Larry
Bosser Alfred
Troy Stanley
Nielsen Arthur
Parker John
Ronk Robert
Stabile Michael
Buss George
Buss Rick
Lamers Denny
Malott Gregory
Goldgar Bertrand
Miller James
Gabert Stanley
Schubbe Burnell
Lor Nhia
Tracanna Peter N.
Griffin Gary
Fahrenkrug Carl
Fritz Sydney
Burmeister Roy
Rector Robert
DeZemler Charles
Schroeder Carl
Brownlee Robert
Gast Daniel
Heckert Herman
Stratton Dale
Kallio Robert
Hayford Donald
Vaughan James
Knauf Charles
Plainse Ross

- mO X ITmMQO-—0O>» T "0ZX

H

M

J
Wallace
F

'n‘—mé

Roy

12/28/1925
4/20/1924
7/20/1920
4/20/1921
10/18/1924
10/27/1918
2/8/1917
8/20/1933
5/27/1988
2/28/2019
11/14/1922
6/1/1960
04/27/1890
8/14/1940
9/27/1920
7131/1927
6/7/1922
6/10/1951
2/20/1930
6/30/1952
7/8/1948
5/21/1956
11/17/1927
5/13/1921
7/12/1915
7/2/1930
2/10/1937
7/1/1937
9/17/1932
3/14/1931
7/17/1929
4/2/1928
7/23/1933
7/14/1915
09/08/1897
712711921
4/24/1950
08/09/1874
12/12/1928
10/1/1939
9/6/1931
9/18/1934
6/7/1917
9/18/1925

10/27/2009
6/9/2020
10/2/2009
3/22/1988
10/13/1989
4/8/1978
3/5/2007
6/11/2019
4/28/2011
5/25/2019
10/16/1981
10/16/2017
12/29/1965
12/14/2022
10/27/2013
6/26/2017
3/9/1990
11/17/2015
6/22/2002
1/20/2020
10/29/2022
3/31/1990
10/14/2009
10/28/2016
2/1/2010
1/9/2015
2/25/2018
5/20/2018
4/6/2017
9/15/1998
1/26/1987
5/16/1993
5/18/2024
10/27/1987
12/9/1969
4/25/1972
2/14/1995
11/3/1957
2/24/2013
2/14/2014
5/15/2017
3/24/2016
6/3/2008
1/17/2013

10/15/1940

10/1/1942

8/17/1917
71711964

1/23/1951

9/13/1973

4/25/1942
2/5/1918

3/24/1971

2/28/1944



Pederson
Elmer
Walter
Nutting
McConagha
Sitterson
Roth
Butch
McConnell
Balestrieri
Kerschl
Ehlert
Ehlert
Miller
Lundgren
Sloane
Brown

De Leest
Logan
Simpson
Myers
Nelis
Spencer
Wolter
Maves
Ballard
Ballard
Ballard
Peterson
Muttart
Schneider
Stansbury
Reckard
Tischer
Pardee
Melchert
Miles
Brooks
White
White
Wallace
Lahee
Dane
Heil

Peter
Wayne
Robert
Harry
William
Cephas
Donald
Amel
Richard "Dick"
Jerome
Freidrich
Dennis
Elroy
James
Richard
Henry
Charles
Robert
Anthony
Albert
George
James
William
Robert
Robert
Harry
Jesse
Jesse
Russell
Raymond
Andrew
Emory

J. Marion
Fredrick
Charles
Donald
Samuel
Frederick
William
Edwin
Robert
Horace
Peter
Stephen

Clarence

— > mr m

m I T OMmMmmT T OMm<=>»>»

Kirtland
T

P

Earl

Joseph

ms>>

= m XX XV I

10/13/1893
12/2/1936
11/10/1941
11/15/1899
08/04/1890
4/8/1916
11/22/1935
2/1/1919
12/7/1931
1/8/1921
4/14/1926
12/18/1949
5/11/1926
9/20/1938
7/11/1925
08/12/1854
04/27/1845
10/26/1919
05/04/1831
03/29/1847
10/24/1824
4/26/1936
01/01/1843
5/4/1918
6/4/1918
07/14/1887
05/01/1894
08/27/1833
7/29/1924
02/03/1897
02/13/1889
08/29/1839
01/01/1843
01/01/1835
08/13/1895
12/8/1922
10/15/1920
3/24/1925
08/02/1849
12/08/1840
07/18/1835
12/28/1821
01/16/1840
4/7/1948

7/31/1979
5/30/2004
5/29/2018
11/7/1987
12/21/1983
10/19/1963
3/16/1986
12/3/1990
2/22/2023
6/17/1998
9/15/1987
10/5/1974
7/19/2013
3/28/2025
1/15/1992
1/14/1915
11/11/1938
6/27/1993
11/27/1900
9/9/1926
08/01/1891
7/26/2004
09/26/1862
1/9/1945
5/11/2002
3/7/1978
7/2/1986
11/09/1894
3/20/1989
7/20/1982
6/9/1946
04/02/1899
10/01/1868
07/08/1893
4/22/1955
7123/1974
6/4/1973
9/9/1985
04/26/1882
5/9/1901
12/29/1885
08/14/1899
08/09/1880
3/12/2020

5/7/1918
4/25/1960

5/13/1918

6/13/1944
10/19/1955
12/5/1942

10/12/1970

11/20/1961

03/18/1865
05/02/1863

01/09/1862
09/03/1864
02/18/1865
1/28/1957

10/01/1862

11/13/1942
6/30/1916
7/3/1917
08/23/1864
6/30/1943
8/13/1918
8/15/1917
08/20/1861
01/06/1863
02/22/1865

2/2/1943

7/15/1942

6/10/1943

02/12/1864

05/07/1861
08/11/1862



Meek
Derks
Breitzman
Sorenson
Laubenstein
Mitchell
Torres
Bravick, MD
Bradford
Schneider
Buckland
Spencer
Jakl

Cole
Brandt
Newell
**Fuller
Fernandez
Stewart
Whitman
Rice
Burton
Weiland
Kretzschmar
Newhouse
Timmins
Timmins
Barlow
Hidde

David
Larry
Marvin
LeRoy
Jerome
Thomas
Jesus
Donald
Alfred
Frank
Comfort
Lyle
Dennis
Frank
Chester
Braton
Charles
Albert
Issac
John
Otis
Francis
Gary
Hanns
Wesley
Lynn
Thomas
Raymond
Roland "Jack"

Vanden Boomer Arnold

Dodd
Never
Zwack
Reff
McSorley
Herrling
Clark
Alexander
Jenkins
Bitter
Selingo
Jesser
Pooler
Auterburn

Brooks
Lee
James
Charles
Jeffrey
Dennis
Dean
Harold
Jerry
William
Robert
Eugene
Larry
Herbert

Royce

I T “—

W)

Starr
Mannly

> O mr x>

Story

George
Laverne

Z o m

Joseph

Bertae
Robert

mMEOE>-mMI-mg -

1/21/1943
2/13/1938
9/24/1920
11/2/1928
7/24/1934
03/06/1847
9/10/1947
9/4/1926
03/20/1897
10/13/1886
04/18/1846
5/10/1911
7/17/1939
12/11/1873
1/25/1917

08/22/1814
02/13/1881
01/09/1838
08/11/1837
6/24/1922
6/17/1928
11/16/1946
12/20/1923
12/31/1929
9/11/1955
11/12/1928
12/31/1941
4/4/1933
5/19/1926

3/2/1938
12/1/1927
5/2/1940
9/10/1949
4/13/1932
4/16/1937
2/12/1906
3/15/1936
12/27/1925
7/25/1921
1/13/1941
8/31/1928
6/16/1916

2/1/2021
8/8/2019
11/23/1972
2/15/1988
4/13/2024
4/29/1919
5/21/2013
12/13/2021
12/29/1973
8/14/1951
1/10/1924
8/21/1968
12/6/2018
5/3/1933
2/1/1988
11/19/1962
12/16/1890
10/31/1933
12/6/1915
09/28/1877
12/17/2015
11/26/2013
12/1/2013
5/15/2000
10/16/2024
716/2023
7/30/1997
2/2/2008
2/11/2010
12/11/2019
1/10/2023
714/1997
12/23/1995
3/3/2022
1/22/2007
6/25/1983
5/3/2001
1/19/2004
7/8/2024
8/6/2020
10/7/1984
7117/1998
8/3/2014
6/18/1975

10/17/1963
11/20/1956
10/28/1942
4/11/1951

05/02/1864

9/18/1967

5/1/1918

1/14/1943

08/12/1898

10/29/1942
08/12/1862

09/23/1864
04/22/1861
11/13/1942

2/15/1955

8/8/1974
9/14/1961

9/27/1956
5/31/1963
5/13/1969

8/22/1954
9/12/1960

3/3/1943

6/11/1943



Lingelbach
Piette
Werner
Bremer
Grobe
Brackey
Clarke
Scheig
Godschalx
Fiscella
Swanson
Sairs
Peterson
Peterson
Boon
Murphy

Charles
Robert & Germaine
Frank
Charles
James
Leslie
James
Henry
Raymond
Ben
Robert
George
Talbot
Raymond
Richard
Daniel

Henry

12/14/1917
6/8/1929
11/14/1899
4/10/1931
11/25/1932
9/18/1912
3/14/1936
6/14/1924
12/30/1919
1/2/1911
5/26/1939
2/27/1915
3/16/1922
09/23/1896
8/20/1926
11/10/1917

2/27/2010
4/7/1988
12/24/1964
5/16/1995
9/2/1977
12/7/1991
2/13/2010
2/3/2014
8/4/1997
8/17/1989
8/15/2002
712411976
10/4/1979
6/17/1971
10/24/1959
9/7/1950

3/8/1942

3/29/1951
1/5/1953
713/1942

1/27/1942
9/26/1942
11/26/1957
3/28/1942
8/30/1943
7127/1918
6/28/1944



Discharged Date

06/20/1865
10/19/1864
10/30/1919
05/15/1865
07/16/1865
12/28/1861
02/27/1863
03/21/1865

11/10/1945
9/30/1921
12/17/1918
1/6/1946
05/21/1862

1/19/1945

5/29/1919

2/7/1964

4/25/1954
12/7/1954
5/18/2006
1/29/1954
8/15/1953

12/21/1918
8/5/1919

4/17/1919

2/17/1988

10/29/1946
11/2/1947

Branch

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Air Force
United States Navy

United States Army

United States Marine Corps
United States Army
National Guard

United States Navy

United States Navy

United States Marine Corps
United States Army
National Guard

United States Army

United States Army

United States Coast Guard
United States Navy

United States Air Force
United States Army

United States Marine Corps
United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Navy
United States Marine Corps
United States Army
United States Navy

Rank

PT Boat Captain

War

CivilWar
CivilWar
Spanish American
Mexican
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War |
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War |
World War I
World War |
World War |
World War li
CivilWar
Unknown
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War |
CivilWar
Peace Time
World War I
Peace Time
Korean War
Korean War
World War |
Korean War
Korean War
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War I
World War |
World War I
Peace Time
World War I
World War li
World War I



10/15/1948

7/13/1946

2/26/1946
3/28/1953

9/8/1945

1/24/1946

11/1/1955
1/5/1946
3/4/1946
2/24/1955
1/21/1968

12/20/1945

5/24/1919
8/8/1949

12/04/1864
4/27/1928
11/30/1945

11/7/1945
8/1/1962

6/17/1953
11/1/1963
11/29/1945

12/15/1967

8/10/1962
1/8/1946
1/10/1946

United States Marine Corps
United States Air Force
United States Navy

United States Navy

US Army and Air Force
United States Navy

United States Army

United States Army

United States Air Force
United States Coast Guard
United States Air Force
United States Marine Corps
United States Army

United States Coast Guard
United States Air Force
United States Navy

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army
National Guard

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Navy

United States Army

United States Army

United States Navy

United States Navy

United States Army
United States Army
United States Air Force
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Air Force

National Guard
United States Air Force
United States Army

Peace Time
Korean War and Vi
Korean War
World War I
Unknown
Unknown
World War li
Korean War
Korean War
VietNam War
World War li
World War I
World War li
Korean War
Korean War
World War Il and K
World War li
Korean War
VietNam War
Unknown
Peace Time
World War I
World War |
World War |
World War |
Korean War
CivilWar
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War li
Peace Time
Peace Time
Korean War
Peace Time
World War I
World War li
Unknown
Unknown
VietNam War
Unknown
Unknown
World War li
World War I



10/20/1945

12/11/1918

4/19/1947

11/30/1946

10/28/1945

3/24/1961

2/20/1946
3/13/1960

2/5/1967
10/20/1945

2/6/1946
12/18/1918
6/22/1955
12/3/1945

7/1/1964
3/29/1962

2/24/1988

12/13/1945

10/31/1919

12/21/1918

2/6/1945

6/30/1953

01/31/1863

09/16/1864

11/09/1898

12/24/1918

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Navy

United States Coast Guard

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army

CPL

PVT

World War li
Unknown
World War |
World War I
Peace Time
VietNam War
World War li
World War I
Unknown
Peace Time
World War li
World War I
World War |
World War I
Peace Time
Unknown
VietNam War
World War I
Korean War
World War I
World War |
Korean War
World War li
Peace Time
Peace Time
World War I
Unknown
Peace Time
Korean War
Korean War
World War li
Peace Time
World War |
Korean War
World War |
CivilWar
World War li
Korean War
CivilWar
CivilWar
Korean War
Spanish American
World War li
World War |



11/2/1945
12/30/1918

2/28/1919
12/19/1918
3/23/1946

11/8/1945
2/4/1946
2/5/1957
10/31/1985
12/14/1918
7/15/1919

6/28/1945

5/22/1919

3/28/1946
9/30/1921
11/30/1945
4/16/1943

7/5/1946

7/14/1919
6/17/1977
9/23/1945
3/26/1946

5/4/1948
2/20/1919

2/12/1946
2/9/1946
11/19/1945
8/1/1947
4/1/1948
1/6/1954

8/18/1945

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

United States Navy

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Air Force

Officer

tec4

World War li
World War |
Unknown
Unknown
World War |
World War |
World War li
Peace Time
World War li
World War I
Korean War
VietNam War
World War |
CivilWar
Unknown
World War I
Peace Time
World War |
World War li
World War I
World War |
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War |
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War Il and K
World War I
World War |
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War li
Korean War
World War li
World War I
VietNam War
World War I



3/27/1919

3/13/1919
12/9/1945
1/24/1919

2/21/1950
1/6/1956
6/30/1919

6/15/1943

11/11/1945

12/7/1981

11/28/1864

5/24/1919

09/27/1861

12/16/1918

1/1/1972

11/19/1945

2/5/1946

7/25/1982

7/21/1919
1/23/1919

01/18/1863
10/07/1862

12/30/1944

9/4/1919
4/23/1919

10/11/1918
6/20/1969

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

National Guard

United States Navy

United States Marine Corps

United States Army

United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army

United States Coast Guard

United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

SpS

Peace Time
World War |
World War Il and K
World War |
World War li
World War |
World War |
Unknown
Unknown
Korean War
Korean War
World War |
World War li
World War I
World War |
World War I
World War li
VietNam War
VietNam War
World War I
CivilWar
World War |
CivilWar
World War |
VietNam War
World War I
World War li
World War |
Peace Time
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War li
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War |
World War li
Peace Time
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War |
VietNam War
Korean War



1/16/1919
11/27/1918
9/30/1960

10/31/1951

5/16/1919
6/1/1919

7/28/1919
1/14/1946

04/06/1863
5/30/1919
5/22/1919

01/01/1856
06/02/1865
5/26/1919
03/17/1863
06/20/1865
6/10/1919
09/22/1862
6/27/1919

07/14/1864

3/27/1943

1/13/1919
1/10/1919

10/09/1865
9/4/1918

5/8/1945

8/13/1919
6/1/1919

12/30/1945
5/24/1919

United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Navy

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army

PM2C

Private

Peace Time
World War |
World War |
Peace Time
World War |
Korean War
Korean War
World War |
World War |
World War I
World War |
World War I
World War Il and K
World War |
CivilWar
World War |
World War |
CivilWar
Peace Time
CivilWar
World War |
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War |
CivilWar
World War |
World War li
CivilWar
World War |
World War I
World War |
World War |
World War |
Peace Time
CivilWar
World War |
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War |
World War |
VietNam War
World War li
World War |



7/30/1918
6/15/1946
7/29/1918

05/25/1864
11/13/1954

6/1/1919
5/15/1944
1/10/1945
6/8/1948
11/2/1945
03/23/1899
01/29/1865
9/16/1919
06/14/1865
12/14/1899

04/10/1865
11/09/1898
10/13/1953
11/09/1898

5/24/1919
3/10/1943
10/15/1945

6/18/1946

12/20/1918

5/18/1919
4/14/1919
7/12/1945
1/9/1946
10/28/1945
06/08/1865
12/20/1918
03/15/1864

09/29/1865

05/26/1865

United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Navy

United States Army
United States Army

United States Coast Guard

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army

S1C

PVT.

Corporal

MSGT

Corporal

World War |
World War I
World War |
Spanish American
CivilWar

Korean War
World War |
World War |
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War I
Spanish American
CivilWar

World War |
CivilWar

Spanish American
World War |
CivilWar

Spanish American
World War Il and K
Spanish American
Peace Time
World War |

World War li
World War |

World War li
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War |
Korean War and Vi
World War |

World War |

World War li
World War I
World War li
CivilWar

World War |
CivilWar

World War li
CivilWar

World War li
CivilWar



05/12/1898

2/18/1955

1/21/1919
08/26/1865
10/19/1945
12/11/1918
06/02/1865
7/15/1918
4/19/1919

11/5/1944
8/30/1965
1/1/1952

03/10/1863
6/21/1919
6/6/1919
9/30/1921

12/22/1945
01/25/1863
12/04/1863

1/8/1947
8/30/1945
12/22/1945

1/17/1919

12/10/1918
5/26/1919
7/3/1919
7/31/1945
5/16/1919
12/28/1943
7/31/1918
09/23/1864
11/15/1898

United States Army

United States Marine Corps
United States Air Force

United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy

United States Marine Corps

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

Tech Sergeant

Spanish American
Peace Time
Unknown
Korean War
World War li
World War I
World War |
CivilWar
World War li
World War |
CivilWar
World War |
World War |
CivilWar
World War li
VietNam War
Korean War
CivilWar
Peace Time
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War li
World War I
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War I
World War li
World War I
VietNam War
World War |
Korean War
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War li
World War |
World War li
World War |
CivilWar
Spanish American
CivilWar
CivilWar



11/11/1918
11/2/1945
12/3/1945
1/20/1946

3/21/1919
9/23/1945

12/4/1919
6/26/1946
7/28/1944
10/23/1945
11/30/1945
6/3/1919
3/11/1919
1/17/1919
3/19/1946
12/27/1918

4/24/1918

3/13/1946

5/14/1919
8/22/1946

4/24/1919

10/20/1945

1/6/1945

3/14/1919

4/20/1946

United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Coast Guard

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army

SGT

pfc

PVT
PVT

S/SGT
T/SGT

World War li
Peace Time
World War |
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War |
World War |
World War I
Korean War
CivilWar
World War |
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War li
World War |
Korean War
Korean War
World War |
World War I
World War li
World War |
World War li
Peace Time
Spanish American
World War |
World War |
Korean War and Vi
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War I
Korean War
World War |
World War li
World War I
VietNam War
World War I



11/18/1945
1/1/1945
1/21/1946
1/15/1919

4/14/1919
5/13/1919

7124/1919
11/6/1947
12/30/1918

1/3/1919
8/19/1919
3/24/1919

2/18/1946
7/16/1919
1/24/1919

2/6/1919
9/30/1921

07/28/1865

10/19/1945

7/13/1945
8/13/1919
9/4/1919

1/11/1919

12/1/1945
12/18/1918
4/11/1949
06/12/1865
1/7/1919

3/3/1947

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Navy
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army

United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

US Army and Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy

Cpl
SGT

World War li
World War I
World War li
World War |
Unknown
Peace Time
World War |
World War |
VietNam War
World War |
Korean War and Vi
World War |
World War li
World War |
World War |
World War |
CivilWar
World War I
World War |
World War |
Peace Time
Unknown
World War |
World War |
World War |
Peace Time
CivilWar
World War I
World War li
Unknown
World War li
World War I
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War I
CivilWar
World War I
World War |
World War Il and K
CivilWar
World War |
World War |
World War I



06/23/1865
4/5/1957
2/24/1919

2/18/1946
2/6/1919
5/14/1919
10/24/1946
11/13/1945
3/16/1943
11/10/1898
1/29/1946

10/30/1945

06/14/1865
06/08/1865
08/21/1861
12/13/1919
5/26/1945

10/19/1967
12/20/1920

5/28/1919
07/02/1865
2/15/1977
1/30/1948

04/02/1863
1/8/1919

9/30/1990

11/17/1945
11/8/1918

6/23/1946

5/21/1919

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

National Guard

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force
United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

SP3

PV1/Sp4

MSGT

Corporal

CivilWar
CivilWar
Unknown
World War |
World War li
Unknown
World War li
World War |
World War |
World War I
World War li
World War I
Spanish American
Spanish American
World War li
World War I
World War li
Peace Time
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War |
World War li
VietNam War
World War |
Spanish American
World War |
CivilWar
Unknown
World War I
Unknown
CivilWar
World War |
World War I
Unknown
World War I
World War |
Unknown
World War |
World War I
World War li
CivilWar
World War land W
Peace Time



11/24/1953
1/7/1946
12/20/1945

5/3/1966
6/23/1947
1/10/1946
7/2/1919
2/6/1919
10/13/1918

6/30/1961
1/1/1965
10/15/1943
6/3/1919
6/26/1919

07/01/1865
10/31/1962

9/18/1969
12/4/1943

12/1/1945
3/21/1919
3/14/1918
9/30/1921

5/18/1946
8/4/1919

3/17/1954
12/11/1945

9/10/1951
10/22/1918

11/23/1945

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
National Guard

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Navy

United States Marine Corps

United States Army

United States Marine Corps

World War |

World War I
Korean War
World War I
World War li
Unknown

World War Il and K
World War I
World War li
World War |

World War |

World War |
Korean War
World War Il and K
Peace Time

World War I
World War |

World War |
Unknown
CivilWar

World War Il and K
World War I
World War li
VietNam War
World War li
Unknown
Unknown

World War I
World War |

World War |

World War |
Unknown

World War li
World War |
Unknown

World War Il and K
World War li
World War |
Korean War
World War |

World War Il and K
VietNam and Dese
World War li
World War I



8/13/1917

1/14/1955

9/3/1919
8/7/1920
07/17/1865
3/9/1943

4/13/1946

04/01/1865
9/27/2006
11/30/1945
4/30/1969
6/7/1960
6/30/1919

7/9/1946
8/15/1971
12/14/1946
12/8/1945
6/14/1919

2/27/1946
1/22/1979
2/7/1948

6/27/1919
3/25/1952
12/8/1945
6/4/1970

10/28/1974

3/1/1962
8/14/1954

United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy

United States Marine Corps
United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps
United States Air Force

United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
National Guard

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Air Force
United States Air Force
United States Air Force

FIREMN2C

SGT & 1SG

SSG

sp4 (E-4) (T)
Private

AFCE-3

World War |
World War I
World War li
World War Il and K
World War li
World War |
World War |
CivilWar
World War li
Korean War
World War li
CivilWar
CivilWar
VietNam War
World War li
VietNam War
Korean War
World War |
Unknown
World War I
VietNam War
World War I
World War li
World War |
Korean War
World War I
Peace Time
Korean War
World War |
Korean War
World War li
VietNam War
Unknown
VietNam War
Unknown
Unknown
Peace Time
Unknown
Unknown
Unknown
Unknown
Unknown
Unknown
Unknown



11/4/1948
10/10/1953

7/18/1919
5/20/1945
10/3/1945
1/11/1919
9/26/1918
1/31/1919

8/15/1952

11/5/1945
11/10/1952
12/18/1918
8/15/1917
12/2/1954
10/14/1945
5/29/1946
6/23/1957

3/31/1946
11/7/1945
1/10/1946
1/21/1945

7/21/1919
12/13/1918
12/11/1918
8/12/1970
1/26/1965
1/1/1944
7/1/1945

10/27/1945

3/21/1946

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Coast Guard

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army

MSGT

PVT

SP4

S/STG

pfc

lietenantjunior grade

Unknown
Peace Time
VietNam War
VietNam War
Unknown
World War I
Korean War
World War I
Korean War
World War |
World War li
World War I
World War |
World War |
World War |
Korean War and Vi
Korean War
World War I
World War |
World War I
Korean War
World War |
World War |
Korean War
World War li
World War I
Peace Time
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War I
Peace Time
World War |
World War |
World War |
VietNam War
VietNam War
World War li
World War I
VietNam War
World War I
Korean War
World War I



1/6/1919
4/15/1919
10/26/1945
6/8/1944
7/30/1946
12/15/1945

9/13/1976

12/8/1945
3/19/1972
7/5/1946

8/15/1945

2/7/1919

7/10/1946

8/16/1946
5/16/1919

1/3/1945
10/4/1941
11/25/1946

5/18/1919
1/22/1946
8/29/1945

5/18/1919
9/30/1921
5/27/1919
6/30/1950
09/11/1865
12/4/1918
5/31/1919

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
US Army and Air Force
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy

United States Marine Corps

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Air Force
United States Navy

United States Army
United States Army
United States Air Force
United States Army
United States Army
National Guard

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Air Force
United States Navy

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Air Force
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Air Force
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

PFC

PM2C

52

Capt.
CPL

World War |
World War |
World War |
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War I
Peace Time
World War I
World War |
World War I
VietNam War
World War I
World War li
World War I
Unknown
World War |
Korean War
World War I
World War li
Unknown
Korean War
World War Il and K
World War li
World War |
Korean War
Unknown
World War li
World War I
World War li
Unknown
Unknown
World War |
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War |
World War |
World War land W
Korean War
CivilWar
World War |
World War |



6/8/1933

5/8/1946

11/2/1918
10/22/1945
8/14/1919
2/19/1919
1/18/1946
11/8/1945
7/10/1919
8/10/1962
6/1/1946
9/20/1945

5/19/1919
5/30/1919
12/13/1918
2/20/1946

7/15/1945

1/13/1946
07/08/1899
03/31/1899
9/9/1919
5/20/1919

2/6/1919

1/22/1952

11/11/1945

8/10/1962

12/25/1944
5/21/1943

United States Air Force
United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
National Guard

SSGT

ST. SGT,

World War Il and K
Peace Time
World War |
Korean War
World War |
World War I
World War |
World War |
World War li
World War |
World War |
World War I
World War li
World War |
Peace Time
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War li
VietNam War
Korean War
World War I
Spanish American
Spanish American
World War |
World War |
World War li
World War I
World War |
World War |
Unknown
World War Il and K
Unknown
Unknown
Peace Time
World War |
World War li
World War I



1/12/1954
10/12/1945
2/5/1961

10/29/1945

2/14/1946
8/27/1943
5/13/1949
8/28/1945
7128/1949
2/7/1919

5/13/1919
3/4/1946

1/19/1973
1/7/1942

6/1/1919

11/09/1898
9/13/1955

10/4/1958

7/13/1962
5/16/1919
12/24/1945
7/25/1946

2/16/1945

6/23/1919
5/30/1919
1/11/1919
11/27/1945

10/30/1946

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Navy
National Guard

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army

Pvt. 1st. CLass

SP4

Captain

World War li
Korean War
World War |
Peace Time
World War |
World War I
Peace Time
World War I
World War li
Peace Time
World War li
World War I
World War |
VietNam War
World War li
Spanish American
VietNam War
World War I
World War li
World War |
World War |
World War I
Spanish American
Korean War
VietNam War
Unknown
World War li
Unknown
World War li
VietNam War
World War |
World War I
World War li
Unknown
World War |
World War I
World War li
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War I
World War li
World War I



12/14/1946

12/27/1945
11/14/1944
09/08/1863
7/29/1919

11/11/1898

9/13/1945
1/7/1919
9/22/1945

7/15/1918
2/22/1946
2/3/1919
6/5/1946
6/23/1919
4/25/1919
1/8/1919
4/29/1947
2/4/1946
11/30/1945
711711918
1/25/1919

07/12/1865
2/12/1954
10/2/1956
07/05/1865
1/17/1945

11/25/1945
6/23/1919
5/28/1952
6/3/1919
8/20/1955
6/10/1919
12/14/1918
10/26/1945

2/6/1919

United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
Royal Air Force

United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Navy

United States Army

QM12/C

PVT Co. A 21st Wis Inf.

CPL

World War li
Unknown
World War li
World War I
World War land W
CivilWar
World War |
Spanish American
World War li
World War I
World War |
World War I
CivilWar
World War |
World War li
World War |
World War li
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War |
World War |
World War I
CivilWar
Korean War
Korean War
CivilWar
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War |
Korean War
World War |
Korean War
World War |
World War |
World War I
Peace Time
World War I
World War |
Unknown



11/9/1945

12/10/1918
12/20/1918
9/22/1945
11/5/1945

12/12/1953
1/26/1946

10/2/1953
4/1/1948
9/29/1965
5/16/1919
4/20/1944
2/9/1919
11/16/1920
2/12/1945
2/22/1919
10/18/1945
12/30/1945

8/26/1964

5/25/1945

9/6/1919

3/1/1966

7/29/1955

7121/1944
2/6/1945

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force
US Army and Air Force
United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Navy

United States Air Force

United States Army

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy

Corpl.

SP4

SP4

PFC

Chief Petty Officer

World War li
World War I
World War |
World War |
World War li
World War I
Unknown
Peace Time
Korean War
World War I
Unknown
Korean War
Korean War
World War I
VietNam War
World War |
World War li
World War |
World War |
World War |
VietNam War
World War I
World War li
Unknown
World War li
Unknown
VietNam War
World War |
World War li
Unknown
World War |
World War I
VietNam War
VietNam War
World War li
VietNam War
Peace Time
Unknown
Unknown
Peace Time
Unknown
World War I
World War li
VietNam and Dese



2/23/1946
12/21/1942
3/23/1946
12/9/1963
1/27/1919

10/23/1964

5/9/1919

6/17/1919

4/17/1919

5/7/1919

8/15/1946

7/9/1962

11/23/1945

3/9/1946

12/16/1945
5/17/1919

2/25/1944

12/16/1918
1/17/1946
12/12/1918
3/14/1960

2/20/1919
8/6/1919
10/7/1959
06/27/1865

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Air Force
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Air Force
United States Navy
United States Coast Guard
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Air Force
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Air Force
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Air Force
United States Air Force

United States Army
US Army and Air Force
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Marine Corps
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Marine Corps
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

SGT

1stLt.

LCPL

Unknown
Peace Time
World War li
World War I
World War li
Peace Time
World War |
World War I
VietNam War
Unknown
World War li
World War |
World War |
World War I
World War |
World War |
World War li
World War |
World War li
World War Il and K
World War li
World War I
World War li
Unknown
World War Il and K
Unknown
Korean War
Unknown
World War li
World War |
Korean War
World War I
World War li
World War Il and K
World War |
World War I
World War |
Peace Time
VietNam War
World War |
World War |
Korean War
CivilWar
World War I



1/13/1919
10/4/1945
10/7/1946
9/15/1919
1/24/1946
9/27/1966
5/10/1919
10/13/1946

7/19/1919
2/28/1945

12/22/1945

2/24/1944

2/24/1944

12/17/1918
5/16/1919

9/7/1945

12/20/1918

10/30/1945

3/13/1919
2/14/2001

8/30/1956
5/16/1919
6/27/1919

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
National Guard

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

United States Coast Guard

United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army

Tssg

SGT

World War |
World War I
World War li
VietNam War
World War |
World War I
World War li
Peace Time
Unknown

World War |
World War li
World War |
World War |
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War li
World War |
World War li
World War I
World War |
Unknown

World War li
World War I
World War |
Unknown

VietNam War
VietNam War
VietNam War
Korean War
World War |
World War |
Unknown

Unknown

Korean War
Unknown

Unknown

Unknown



7/9/1919

10/12/1945

5/28/1986
1/6/1946
7/6/1947
12/4/1955
8/9/1961
3/8/1948

11/3/1945
1/1/1956
9/23/1944
3/5/1943
3/22/1944
11/09/1898

10/10/1945
8/21/1946

4/3/1959

12/12/1918

5/15/1947
3/29/1943

7/6/1946

6/8/1976

United States Army

United States Marine Corps
United States Army

United States Marine Corps
United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Air Force
United States Army

United States Navy

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army Cpl.

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force Cpl.

United States Navy

United States Navy

United States Army

United States Marine Corps
United States Air Force
United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army
United States Air Force
United States Army
United States Navy

United States Air Force mst sgt e-7

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy

United States Navy

United States Army

United States Air Force
United States Air Force

World War |
WW I, Korean & Vi
World War li
Korean War
Unknown
World War I
World War li
Korean War
Korean War
World War I
VietNam War
World War I
Korean War
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War li
Peace Time
World War li
World War I
VietNam War
Unknown
Unknown
Unknown
VietNam War
Unknown
Korean War
Peace Time
Unknown
VietNam War
Unknown
World War I
Unknown
Unknown
World War li
World War I
VietNam War
World War |
World War li
World War I
Unknown
World War I
VietNam War
Korean War and Vi



9/27/1945

8/1/1919

12/24/1918
10/23/1945
10/12/1962
12/31/1945
11/14/1898

4/22/1946
11/30/1952

11/7/1944

3/28/1919
2/18/1919
6/4/1953

6/27/1960

6/3/1945
1/8/1919
8/23/1945
1/8/1919

2/13/1946
4/30/1966

2/24/1961
12/1/1945
11/8/1945

4/9/1919
6/21/1919
11/10/1898

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy

United States Coast Guard

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

Master Sergeant

World War Il and K
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War |
VietNam War
World War li
Peace Time
World War li
Peace Time
World War li
World War I
World War li
Korean War
Korean War
Unknown
World War li
VietNam War
World War li
Unknown
World War |
World War |
Korean War
Peace Time
Peace Time
Peace Time
Korean War
World War I
World War |
World War I
World War |
Unknown
Unknown
World War |
World War li
World War Il and K
Unknown
Peace Time
World War li
World War I
Korean War
World War |
World War |
Spanish American



12/20/1918
9/7/1945

8/12/1919

8/27/1919

12/22/1971

10/27/1865

09/27/1861
06/08/1865
12/10/1918
6/3/1969

2/21/1946
10/31/1958
2/26/1946
12/1/1918
6/18/1919
6/27/1919
8/13/1963
12/4/1963
4/20/1993
8/31/1959

10/8/1997

10/4/1963
10/10/1957

7/3/1959

08/29/1865

United States Army
United States Coast Guard

United States Army
United States Navy

United States Air Force
United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Marine Corps
United States Marine Corps
United States Army

United States Army

United States Navy
United States Marine Corps
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Marine Corps
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Air Force
United States Army

US Army and Air Force
United States Air Force
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

Private

alc

SP4E4(T)
SP3(T)

World War |
World War I
World War li
World War |
World War li
World War |
Unknown
World War |
Unknown
Korean War and Vi
Unknown
Unknown
Peace Time
Unknown
CivilWar
World War Il and K
Korean War
World War I
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War |
VietNam War
Unknown
World War I
Peace Time
World War I
World War |
World War |
World War |
Unknown
Unknown
Unknown
Unknown
Unknown
Unknown
Unknown
VietNam War
Unknown
Unknown
World War I
Unknown
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar



9/8/1959
5/11/1946
2/15/1946

10/18/1898

7/15/1956

07/15/1864
08/09/1865
07/16/1865

6/25/1955
11/1/1945
8/1/1952

11/1/1972

07/08/1865
1/5/1946

06/30/1865
06/05/1865

11/10/1945
2/2/1953
9/13/1944
8/19/1946

07/15/1864
03/15/1864

10/31/1945

11/09/1898
03/19/1865

10/23/1865

United States Army
United States Navy

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps
United States Air Force

United States Army

United States Air Force
United States Air Force

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy

United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

sgt

S/SGT

Master Sergeant

Captain

CivilWar
Unknown
Korean War and Vi
Korean War
World War li
World War I
World War li
Spanish American
Unknown
Korean War
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
Unknown
Unknown
World War I
Korean War
Peace Time
World War li
CivilWar
World War li
Unknown
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War I
CivilWar
World War |
World War li
Korean War
World War li
World War I
World War li
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War li
Unknown
Unknown
CivilWar
Spanish American
CivilWar
World War li
CivilWar



07/05/1862

1/16/1920
6/13/1919
5/3/1947

11/12/1945
12/1/1945

07/02/1865
10/07/1865
07/17/1891
07/14/1865
1/6/1956
7/17/1984
09/16/1864
08/28/1865

01/01/1863
04/22/1865

4/2/1964
1/24/1919

12/10/1863
07/25/1863
07/03/1865
03/21/1863

12/29/1862
01/20/1862

02/11/1864
11/09/1898
11/10/1898

2/10/1919
11/09/1898
10/02/1865

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

Srgt

CPL

prvt 1stclass

CivilWar
CivilWar
World War |
World War |
World War li
Unknown
World War li
World War I
Unknown
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
Korean War
Peace Time
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
Unknown
CivilWar
Unknown
World War I
World War |
Korean War
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
Unknown
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War |
Korean War
CivilWar
Spanish American
Spanish American
World War I
World War |
Spanish American
CivilWar
CivilWar



08/25/1862

06/08/1865

8/19/1925

6/18/1919

1/19/1953
12/20/1945
08/22/1865
9/20/1947
05/10/1865
1/14/1919

12/16/1945

10/08/1862

8/9/1956
07/12/1865
08/29/1865

06/26/1862
11/5/1920
09/30/1862

10/27/1865

06/08/1865

05/11/1865
07/02/1863

08/28/1865
06/12/1865
4/21/1967

01/01/1863
12/13/1963

06/27/1865
08/21/1861

United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Navy
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

Privant

private

Quarter Master SGT.

CivilWar
Unknown
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War |
Unknown
World War |
CivilWar
CivilWar
Korean War
World War li
CivilWar
World War li
CivilWar
World War |
CivilWar
World War li
World War I
CivilWar
World War I
Korean War
CivilWar
CivilWar
Unknown
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War |
CivilWar
Unknown
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
Unknown
CivilWar
CivilWar
Unknown
CivilWar
VietNam War
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar



04/08/1865

12/20/1918
11/03/1864
7/15/1919
7/26/1919

6/25/1949

06/02/1865

06/09/1865
11/26/1898

06/19/1865
10/27/1865
06/12/1865
06/20/1865

5/2/1952

07/18/1865
2/7/1919
07/20/1865
1/30/1946
11/7/1945

4/3/1919

01/01/1863
10/31/1865
6/21/1919
12/5/1918
1/10/1919
3/8/1919
12/15/1945

07/23/1862

United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Navy

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Navy
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy

United States Marine Corps

United States Army

Private

1st Lt

1st. LT.

Pvt

CivilWar
World War I
CivilWar
Unknown
CivilWar
World War land W
CivilWar
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War li
World War I
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War I
CivilWar
Spanish American
Korean War and Vi
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
Peace Time
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War |
CivilWar
World War I
World War li
World War |
World War li
World War |
Unknown
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War |

Radioman Second Class World War Il

Unknown
Civil War



2/15/1955
6/19/1968
2/7/1919
10/17/1864
11/24/1943
3/8/1919
8/1/1945

06/06/1865

9/6/1919
9/6/1919

3/29/1919
4/17/1919
6/17/1919

07/18/1865
9/3/1945
9/27/1945
06/10/1865
5/23/1946
05/17/1865
11/09/1898
1/2/1946
6/11/1945
06/20/1865
5/15/1919

06/20/1865
11/29/1945

1/7/1946

06/20/1865

08/29/1865
02/17/1865
07/18/1865

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

SP4

corp

Private 1st class

Private

Korean War
Unknown
World War |
Spanish American
World War li
World War |
World War li
World War I
CivilWar
Unknown
CivilWar
World War |
World War |
CivilWar
World War li
World War |
World War |
World War I
CivilWar
World War I
World War li
CivilWar
World War li
CivilWar
Spanish American
World War I
World War li
CivilWar
World War |
Unknown
CivilWar
World War I
Korean War
World War I
CivilWar
Korean War
CivilWar
CivilWar
Unknown
Unknown
War of 1812
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar



07/28/1865

1/27/1956
12/24/1918
05/27/1865

01/23/1864

6/13/1919
02/22/1864
06/12/1865
06/25/1865
06/20/1865
07/03/1865
3/11/1919
7/15/1958

10/08/1863
06/13/1865
4/6/1945
5/1/1946
3/27/1968

5/15/1946
11/23/1946
11/10/1945

4/11/1919

11/26/1945
3/22/1947
11/11/1918
8/5/1919
05/19/1865
4/18/1973

9/13/1945
9/20/1945
1/3/1919

1/21/1969

United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

1st Srgt

Aviator Captain

SGT

Pvt.

CivilWar
World War |
Korean War
World War |
CivilWar
Unknown
CivilWar
World War I
World War |
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War |
Korean War
World War Il and K
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War I
World War li
Peace Time
Korean War and Vi
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War I
VietNam War
Korean War
World War land W
CivilWar
World War li
World War I
World War |
World War |
CivilWar
VietNam War
Korean War
World War I
World War li
World War |
World War |
Korean War and Vi



11/09/1898
3/4/1903
6/6/1919
02/28/1899
2/18/1946
9/24/1945

12/12/1918
2/24/1959
5/30/1919
7/22/1919

10/13/1945

4/11/1946
11/11/1908

12/2/1986
12/7/1944

3/20/1943

10/23/1945
11/12/1945

9/30/1920
5/2/1971
12/20/1956
12/21/1946
07/03/1865
10/10/1919
07/26/1865
8/21/1945
2/20/1919
2/13/1943
11/09/1898
1/28/1919
07/22/1865

10/17/1966

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Reserve

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

PVT

PR3C

PFC

Spanish American
Spanish American
World War |
Spanish American
World War li
World War I
Unknown

World War |
Peace Time
World War |
World War |
Unknown

World War li
World War I
World War li
Spanish American
Peace Time
Peace Time
Unknown

World War I
Unknown

World War I
World War li
VietNam War
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War |
VietNam War
Peace Time
World War li
CivilWar

World War |
Spanish American
World War li
World War |
World War li
Spanish American
World War |
CivilWar
Unknown
VietNam and Dese
Peace Time
Unknown



9/26/1991
12/29/1945
7/29/1973

11/09/1898
12/23/1899

1/30/1946
10/27/1946
7/11/1955
4/6/1946
11/10/1945

11/11/1970

06/12/1865
12/20/1945
7/1/1985

5/23/1989
8/8/1978
2/7/1946

1/17/1956
12/9/1947
6/30/1972
06/23/1865
02/26/1865
07/18/1865

1/5/1953

10/26/1941

4/15/1955

712711946

11/12/1946

6/21/1945

11/8/1970

9/24/1971

United States Coast Guard
United States Army
United States Air Force

United States Army

United States Army Pvt.
United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Navy

United States Navy

United States Army Pvt.
United States Army

United States Navy

United States Army PVT
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army

United States Army Pvt.
United States Army

United States Army

United States Air Force Al1C
United States Marine Corps

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army

United States Navy

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army SP4
United States Marine Corps

United States Army

Peace Time
World War I
VietNam War
Unknown
Spanish American
Spanish American
CivilWar
World War I
World War li
Korean War
World War li
World War I
CivilWar
VietNam War
Korean War
CivilWar
World War li
Peace Time
CivilWar
Peace Time
VietNam War
World War I
Unknown
Korean War
World War li
World War Il and K
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
Unknown
Korean War
VietNam War
World War li
Korean War
World War li
World War I
World War li
Unknown
Unknown
VietNam War
VietNam War
VietNam War
VietNam War
VietNam War



6/29/1919
11/05/1898
07/18/1865
6/17/1919
5/1/1964
10/28/1945
12/4/1945
7/16/1995

01/24/1865
7/18/1946
3/20/1968
1/29/1960
11/22/1957
12/1/1952
8/1/1958
3/27/1954

5/17/1919
12/23/1918
01/15/1864
9/10/1958
6/20/1975
12/4/1945
10/28/1966
08/23/1865
12/30/1864
05/26/1865
12/16/1862
11/24/1945
4/23/1962
7/21/1949
1/11/1946
3/17/1967

1/23/1972
8/24/1956
11/25/1952

10/20/1949

United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Air Force
United States Army
United States Air Force
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Air Force
United States Army
United States Air Force
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army

PVT

Private

Pvt

Pvt

SGT

Unknown
Unknown
World War |
Spanish American
CivilWar
World War |
Peace Time
World War I
World War li
Unknown
World War li
CivilWar
World War li
World War Il and K
Korean War
Peace Time
Korean War
Peace Time
Korean War
Unknown
Unknown
World War |
World War |
CivilWar
Peace Time
VietNam War
World War li
Peace Time
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War li
Peace Time
World War Il and K
World War I
VietNam War
Unknown
VietNam War
VietNam War
Korean War
Korean War
Unknown
Peace Time



6/24/2005
08/14/1862
12/11/1945
5/16/1919
09/16/1864
2/9/1919
3/25/1947
4/7/1950

9/17/1958
08/29/1865
10/26/1865

06/02/1865
07/11/1865
7/9/1946
10/9/1953
7/9/1946
3/3/1953
5/31/1944

09/04/1865
10/12/1945
11/21/1862
12/8/1945
12/6/1945

1/12/1970

9/30/1966
8/12/1952
5/14/1968

11/2/1943

10/01/1863
8/30/1966
02/19/1866

12/21/1959
10/22/1945
12/30/1862

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force
United States Marine Corps
United States Marine Corps

United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

SPC
Sgt.

Sgt.

Cpl.
Private

Srgt

Captain

Captain

Pvt.

Unknown
CivilWar
World War li
World War |
CivilWar
World War |
World War li
World War I
World War Il and K
Korean War
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War I
Korean War
World War I
Korean War
World War I
Korean War
CivilWar
World War li
CivilWar
World War li
World War I
Unknown
VietNam War
Unknown
World War Il and K
Korean War
VietNam War
World War li
Unknown
World War li
Korean War
CivilWar
VietNam War
CivilWar

Boatswain Mate 2nd Cla Peace Time

Pvt

CivilWar
Peace Time
World War li
CivilWar



12/3/1945
12/27/1954

07/03/1865
07/03/1865
05/30/1865
711771954
9/18/1945

7/16/1946

7/14/1991

11/30/1963
6/30/2007

7122/1996
4/16/1948

12/11/1945

5/4/1973

10/21/1945

7/20/1967

United States Army
Royal Air Force
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Air Force
United States Army

United States Navy

United States Navy

United States Navy

United States Marine Corps
United States Army

United States Marine Corps
United States Navy

United States Air Force
United States Army

United States Navy

United States Army

United States Marine Corps
United States Army

United States Army

United States Navy

United States Army

United States Army

United States Navy

United States Army

United States Coast Guard
United States Army

United States Air Force

National Guard

United States Air Force
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Air Force
United States Army

TSGT
SSGT
SGT

private
Pvt.

TEC5

Master Chief

LCPL
LCDR

World War li
Korean War
World War Il and K
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar

Korean War
World War li
VietNam War
World War li
World War Il and K
Unknown

Korean War and Vi
VietNam War
Unknown

World War li
Unknown
Unknown

Korean War
Unknown
Unknown
Unknown
Unknown
Unknown
VietNam and Dese
World War li
World War I
Unknown
Unknown
Unknown

Korean War
Unknown

World War |
Korean War
Korean War
Unknown
VietNam War
World War li
Unknown
Unknown
VietNam War
Korean War and Vi
World War I



4/24/1943

1/27/1945

7/16/1954

3/3/1946

5/25/1965

11/7/1945

5/3/1946
6/1/1955

11/1/1945

9/30/1945

5/5/1919

12/18/1918
10/09/1865

United States Navy

United States Marine Corps

United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Air Force

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Air Force
United States Air Force
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Air Force
United States Army
United States Air Force
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army
National Guard

United States Air Force
US Army and Air Force
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Air Force
United States Army
United States Army

US Army and Air Force
United States Army
United States Army

sergeant

Unknown
Unknown
World War li
Unknown
Unknown
Korean War
World War li
Unknown
Unknown
World War I
Korean War
World War I
World War li
Korean War
World War li
World War I
World War li
VietNam War
VietNam War
World War I
VietNam War
VietNam War
World War li
Unknown
World War li
Korean War
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War I
Korean War
World War I
Unknown
World War I
World War li
Unknown
World War |
Unknown
CivilWar
World War |
World War land W
World War I
World War |
CivilWar



4/3/1919
5/10/1919
2/4/1919

07/19/1865
09/24/1864
08/22/1865
12/03/1864

01/09/1865

2/19/1919
07/19/1865
07/10/1866
6/9/1919
12/12/1918
01/10/1865
08/09/1865
11/12/1945

3/8/1919
4/18/1946
7/7/1919
7/7/1919

01/03/1864
7/16/1920
09/27/1865
11/1/1948
09/04/1865
10/31/1945
06/26/1865
01/07/1865
7/2/1919
11/09/1898
1/1/1963
9/6/1945

8/23/1945
10/01/1865
06/12/1865

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
Army Reserves

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

Private 1st Class

1st Sgt

PVT

Sgt

Quarter Master Sgt

Pvt 1st Class

Unknown
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War |
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
VietNam War
CivilWar
Unknown
Unknown
World War |
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War |
World War |
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War li
Spanish American
World War |
World War I
World War |
World War |
Unknown
CivilWar
World War |
CivilWar
World War li
CivilWar
World War li
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War |
Spanish American
Unknown
World War li
CivilWar
World War li
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar



12/28/1918
08/03/1865

1/8/1958
01/21/1866

7/18/1919
12/10/1968
8/30/1919

1/15/1917
6/6/1919

5/20/1947
7/29/1946

06/12/1866
07/18/1865
6/19/1944
2/27/1920
2/3/1919

06/30/1865
12/8/1945
08/29/1865
07/01/1865
11/09/1898
6/12/1945
5/18/1919

10/01/1865
1/6/1954
07/06/1865
3/22/1946

9/27/1945
6/21/1919
5/10/1957
3/31/1944
12/6/1918

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Air Force
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy Reserves
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

US Army and Air Force
United States Marine Corps
United States Army
United States Air Force
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy

United States Air Force
United States Army

United States Air Force
United States Army

quatermaster

Prvt

SSGT

2nd Luet

TEC 3

2nd Lieutenant

US Navy Piolet
1st Luet

World War |
CivilWar
VietNam War
Peace Time
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War |
VietNam War
World War |
World War I
Unknown
World War |
World War li
Korean War
World War li
Unknown
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War li
World War |
World War |
World War |
CivilWar
World War I
CivilWar
CivilWar
Spanish American
World War I
World War |
World War I
Peace Time
CivilWar
Korean War
CivilWar
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War I
Unknown
World War I
World War |
Peace Time
World War li
CivilWar



2/20/1919
7/15/1904
10/2/1918

3/30/1945

9/9/1949

6/12/1919
10/12/1945
11/15/1865
6/7/1919

8/17/1945
9/10/1943
4/13/1954

5/19/1919
3/22/1919
7/15/1918

5/16/1919
12/28/1918
6/1/1919
12/12/1918
11/10/1944
1/20/1919
3/27/1919
1/11/1919
10/5/1945
3/13/1919
2/6/1946
9/13/1956
3/6/1945

6/4/1946

9/19/1967
3/6/1962

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
National Guard

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Navy

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

Unknown

World War |
Spanish American
World War |
Unknown

World War I
VietNam War
Korean War
World War |
World War I
World War |
World War I
CivilWar

World War |
Korean War
World War I
World War li
Korean War
Spanish American
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War land W
World War |
World War |
World War |
World War I
World War land W
World War I
Korean War and Vi
World War I
Unknown
Unknown

World War li
World War I
VietNam War
World War I
Unknown

World War I



5/24/1955
4/6/1951
7/21/1961
11/13/1945

2/23/1946
10/16/1943

12/24/1955
5/1/1939

7/30/1976

6/30/1947
3/4/1946

11/30/1956

12/17/1945
11/3/1945

11/21/1944
8/31/1920
6/28/1943
2/5/1918
1/20/1947
4/29/1946
10/12/1974

9/5/1964
12/21/1972
9/30/1921

United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Navy
United States Navy

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Navy

United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Navy

United States Marine Corps

United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy

World War Il and K
Korean War
Korean War
Peace Time
World War land W
World War I
World War Il and K
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War li
Unknown
Korean War
Peace Time
World War li
VietNam War
World War li
Peace Time
VietNam War
World War I
World War li
VietNam War
Unknown
VietNam War
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War li
Unknown
VietNam and Dese
Peace Time
World War li
World War |
World War li
World War |
World War li
World War I
VietNam War
Peace Time
World War li
VietNam War
Unknown
World War |



3/2/1944

06/26/1865
06/12/1866
11/10/1898
10/19/1865
11/21/1898

4/23/1948
4/6/1947
11/09/1898

5/26/1919

7/17/1918
6/10/1943
4/30/1956

1/30/1942
2/14/1946
2/8/1946
5/25/1943
08/20/1863
3/11/1946
9/7/1945

11/30/1945

9/5/1945
4/5/1946
10/8/1945
12/5/1945

10/12/1945

12/13/1918

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Navy

United States Army

United States Coast Guard

United States Navy
United States Army

United States Coast Guard

United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army

Corpl

Lt. Jr. Grade

Srgt

Col

World War li
VietNam War
World War |
Spanish American
CivilWar
CivilWar

Spanish American
CivilWar

Spanish American
World War I
CivilWar
CivilWar

World War li
World War I
Spanish American
World War I
World War li
World War |
World War li
Spanish American
World War |
World War I
World War Il and K
World War |
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War I
CivilWar

World War I
World War li
Peace Time
World War li
World War I
Peace Time
Peace Time
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War I
Peace Time
World War I
Korean War
World War |



9/8/1945

11/22/1945

8/12/1919
04/07/0066

5/3/1974

9/8/1976

11/20/1945
1/30/1919

4/23/1974

4/22/1946

United States Navy
US Army and Air Force

United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Marine Corps
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Navy

United States Air Force
US Army and Air Force
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

US Army and Air Force
United States Navy
United States Navy

United States Marine Corps
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Navy
United States Air Force
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army

United States Navy

United States Army
United States Army

SM 1st. Class

TEC-5

SSG

Master Sergeant

Lt Col

World War li
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War li
World War I
World War li
VietNam War
Unknown
VietNam War
World War li
Peace Time
World War |
Unknown
World War li
World War I
World War |
Unknown
Korean War and Vi
Peace Time
Unknown
VietNam War
Korean War
World War I
World War li
Korean War
VietNam War
Unknown
Korean War
Korean War
World War li
World War I
Unknown
World War I
World War |
VietNam War
VietNam War
Spanish American
Unknown
VietNam War
Peace Time
World War I
World War li
World War I



7/5/1919
5/24/1962

8/13/1919
3/5/1941

1/30/1946
9/25/1957
2/12/1946

4/19/1972

11/19/1963

02/19/1866
05/29/1865

07/14/1865
06/09/1865
08/14/1865
1/27/1959

10/9/1945
7/10/1916
5/18/1919
06/23/1865
3/29/1946
3/14/1919
5/27/1919
09/01/1864
10/06/1863
08/01/1865

1/22/1946

1/1/1946

3/13/1946

10/27/1865

05/24/1863
06/30/1865

United States Army
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Marine Corps

United States Army

United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy
Mexican War

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

E2

LT.

Lt

Specialist5

World War |
Peace Time
Peace Time
Peace Time
World War |
World War I
Unknown
World War I
Unknown
World War I
World War li
VietNam War
World War li
Unknown
World War li
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War I
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
Peace Time
CivilWar
World War I
World War li
Mexican
World War |
CivilWar
World War li
World War |
World War |
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War |
World War I
World War li
World War I
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
CivilWar
Peace Time



10/16/1967
11/15/1958
6/28/1945
4/1/1953

09/23/1864

9/5/1969

6/21/1919

12/11/1945

02/28/1899

11/5/1945
11/19/1862

06/26/1865
04/14/1863
1/11/1946

10/31/1978

8/5/1977
3/30/1962

10/2/1958
3/6/1966
5/1/1971

8/21/1956
9/11/1962

12/22/1945

11/26/1945

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Army
United States Navy

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Navy
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army

United States Air Force

US Army and Air Force

United States Navy
United States Army

United States Air Force

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Army

United States Marine Corps

United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy
United States Navy

Al1C

SP4

Unknown
Peace Time
World War li
Korean War
Unknown
CivilWar
Peace Time
Peace Time
VietNam War
World War |
CivilWar
World War I
Peace Time
Spanish American
World War li
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War |
CivilWar
CivilWar
World War li
Peace Time
VietNam War
Korean War and Vi
Korean War
Unknown
World War Il and K
VietNam War
Korean War
World War I
Unknown
Peace Time
World War li
Peace Time
VietNam War
Korean War
Peace Time
World War I
Unknown
World War I
World War li
Peace Time
Peace Time
World War I



3/3/1946

3/20/1953
12/25/1954
2/17/1946

10/17/1945
10/27/1945
11/16/1961
12/11/1945
5/8/1946
2/10/1919
11/3/1945

United States Air Force Lt. Col
United States Navy

United States Army
United States Army
United States Army
United States Navy

United States Air Force
United States Army

United States Navy

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Army

United States Marine Corps

World War li
Korean War
Unknown

Korean War
Korean War
World War I
Peace Time
World War I
World War li
World War I
Peace Time
World War I
World War li
World War |
World War li
World War I



Space ID

1.10_X_1
111 X1
111 X4
1.11.X5
112 X1
112 X 5
112 X 8
1.13.X 1
116 X1
1.20.W_1
120_W 4
122 X1
123 X3
1.29 E 10
1.34-37.X_C
1.34-37_X_E
22 XA
23 X2
2 5X16
2.6.X_10
2 6.X21
26X 23
2 10_X5
2_16_X_3
2 16 X 8
217 X5
2 19 X 4
222 X1
2 23 X 3
2 23 X7
2 23 X_15
224 E5
2 26 X5
2.32.X1
232X 4
2.33.X_1
2 35 E3
238 X5
2 38 X 8
242 X 9
3.1X6
3.2 X 12



3.3 X4
3.3.X7
3.4 X2
3.4 X9
3.5X9
3.5 X 11
3.6_X_10
3_7.X5
3_.7.X9
3_7_X11
3.8 X 12
3_10_X_3
3_10_X_4
3_10_X_6
3_13.X_2
3.14.S 2
3.14.S 3
3.15.S 3
3.16_.S 6
3_17.X 4
3_17 X7
3_18_X_12
3_20_X_3
3_20_X_5
322 X1
3.23 X1
324 X 2
3_26_N_6
327 X5
3.27_X_14
3.29 X 1
3_33.X_10
3_33.X_12
3_36_X_2
3_36_X_6
3_37_X_5
3_37_.X9
3.39.X 4
3_39.X9
3_40_N_1
3_40_N_5
3_40_N_7
4 1X1
42 X1



4.2.X6
4.2 X_10
4751
4.11.X5
4.13.X5
4.16_X_4
420 X_2
420 X5
4.20X_10
4.22.X8
427 X_12
429 X8
431.X1
4.37.X_10
4.37.X_17
4.38.X_10
4.38.X_10
439 X1
4.39.X9
4.39.X_16
4.40.S_5
4.41.X1
441 X4
4.41.X_15
5.21.X2
5.31.X_12
5.31.X_16
5.31.X_18
532X 21
5_53.X_3
5_65_W_2
5.65_W_13
581 F_1
5_83A_X_2
587 E2
6_1.X 1
6_1.X5
6.4 X8
6.9 X 1
6_13_X_4
6_14_E5
6_14_W_4
6_15_F_4
6_17_X_6



6_20_N_2
621 X 1
624 X 8
6_24 X 9
6_30_X_5
6_31.X_9
6_32 X 5
6_32_X_6
6.36.S 4
6_36_S_6
6_38_X_6
6_40_X_4
6_41 SE_ 4
6_43_N_1
6_46_N_5
6_47_X_3
6_47 X9
649 S 1
65154
652X 9
6_56_X_3
6_56_X_8
6_57_X_2
6_58 X 4
6_59 X 8
6_60_S_6
6_61_N_2
6_61_N_4
6.61.S 2
6_62 X 4
6_62 X_6
6_63_N_12
664 N_1
6_64_N_4
6_65_N_2
7_2_N_10
7_3_N_3
7.5 X1
7 5X3
7.5 X7
7 5X12
7_7 X1
77 X2
77X 4



77X 6
7_10_X_2
7_11. X 4
7_13_X_1
713 X1
7_16_X_5
7_17_W_12
7_18 X 2
7 23 X5
7_23_X_10
723 X_11
724 E 7
7 25 E 6
7_25 W_4
7_25_W_6
7_26_X_5
726 X9
727 X 4
727 X5
7_28 X_3
729S 1
8_3.X_10
85 X2
8_7.X9

8 9 ES8
8_10_W_11
8_12_E 10
8_13_X_8
8_16_X_6
92 X1

9 3.X_10
99E1
99ES>S
912 X 2
9 12 X 7
9 14 _N_2
9 16 X 9
918 X 8
924 X9
924 X_10
929 X5
9. 33.X 6
9 35 X5
9_37_X_10



9 39 X 8
943 X 3
944 X 1
947 X9

9 52 X5

9 53_SW_4
9 56_X_6
958 X 1

9 72 X_10
9 75X 4
976 X1
9.80_X_3
9. 80_X_3
10_5_W_4
10.6_W_1
10_12 X 2
10_18 W_5
10_19_X_1
10 23 E_1
10_24 X_1
10_26_W_ 4
10_29_W_11
10_32 X 2
10_33_X_5
10_37_X_1A
1042 X_1
10_48 X_8
10_49_X_6
10_50_X_3
10_52_X_10
10_56_X_2
10_56_X_4
10_56_X_10
10_57_X_5
1058 X_1
10_58_X_5
10_62_E 5
10_63_E_6
10_65_X_6
10_65_X_10
10_66_W_6
11.1.X9
112 X 8
11.3.X 4



11 4 X1
11.4 X 7
116.S 1
11.9 N_3
11981
11_14 N_7
11.14 S 3
11.19 X_3
11.20_.W_ 4
11.21 X 10
11 24 N_6
11.26_.S 6
11.30_X_7
11.31.X 2
11 33_SE_1
11.34_N_2
11 35 X 5
11.35_X_6
11 38_N_2
1141 _N_5
11 41 N_6
11 41 _N_7
11.41.S 11
11_43_N_5
11 46 X 11
11.47 X 6
11.49 X 8
11.53 X 11
11.54 X 3
11.54 X 5
11 55 X_8
12.1. X 8
12 15 X 6
12_15 X 9
12 17 X 11
12.22 X 8
12 28 X 4
12.33.X 4
12 34 X 8
1241 X 4
12 43 X 5
12 53 X 2
12 57 X9
12.63_X_3



12 67 X_7
1269 _X_3
12 69 X 5
12_70_E_3
12_70_W_7
12.77_X_8
14 2 W 6
14 5 X 2
14 6 E 3
14 6 E 4
14 8 E 1
14 9 X 5
14 10X 4
14 11 E 2
14 13 X_3
14_13 X 4
14 13 X 6
14 _20_E_2
14 20_E 4
14 _20_E_8
14 24 X 1
14 24 X 4
14 26 X 9
14 28 X_10
14 30_W_2
14 _33_E_1
14 34 X_1
1434 X_10
14 41 E 3
14 41 E 4
14 44 S 3
14_45 X_12
14 46 _X_10
14 49 E_1
14 51 X 5
14 53_E_6
14 53 W 4
14 54 E_3
14 54 W_6
14 56_W_3
14 63_W_1
14 65 X_1
14 66_X_1
14 72 W_2



14 73 X 6
14_77 X5
14 78 E_3
14 _78_E_5
14 79 X 2
14_79 X_3
14 79 X 8
14_83_X_9
14 84 X 9
151 X 4
15 6. X 8
157 X 2
158 X 3
15_10_X_5
15_10_X_7
15_12.S 3
15_13_N_2
15_13.S 3
15_16_X_2
15_16_X_3
15_16_X_7
15_20_X_3
15_20_X_5
15_20_X_10
1522 X 6
1522 X_11
15 23 N_5
1524 S 3
15_26_N_6
15_26_S_6
1528 S 2
1529 X_1
1531 X_3
15_31.X_6
1532 X 4
15_33_X_3
15_33_X_8
15_36_X_6
15_36_X_8
15_38_.S_6
16 2 X 4
16_2 X 8
16_3 X 5
16_4 X 3



16_4 X 4
16_4 X 5
16_6_X 5
16_11 X_7
16_16_S 7
16_16_S_7
16_17_X_3
16_19_N_3
16_19.S 3
16_24 _N_1
1624 S 6
16_29_X_6
16_34 X_10
16_35_S_10
16_36_X_1
16_37_X_3
16_38 X_11
16_39_N_1
16_44 X 3
16_44 X_6
16_44 X 9
16_49_X_6
16_50_X_3
16_50_X_4
16_53.S 7
16_54_N_6
16_55_X_1
17_1.X 7
17_1.X 8
17_1.X 9
17_1.X 12
17.2.S 9
17_4 N_6
17,9 X 1
17.9.X 6
17_11_N_3
17_12 X 2
17_17 X9
17_17 X 12
17_19_X_6
17_20_X_1
17_21 X 12
17.24 S 3
17_26_X_5



1727 S 1
17_28_N_1
17_28 S 6
17_31.X 4
17_32 X_14
17_33_X_3
17_36_X_8
17_37_N_1
17.39.S 4
17_41 X 6
17_42 X_10
17_43.S 4
17_47 X1
17_48 X_7
17_48 X 8
17.52 X 4
17_52 X 12
17_53_X_8
17.55S 6
17_56_N_3
17.56_S_1
17_58_S_6
17 61 X 4
17_62_.S 6
17_66_X_8
17_67_S_3
17_69_X_8
17_70_W_1
17 71 X7
17_71.X_10
1774 W_3
17_75_X_1
17_76_X_8
17_79 X _4
17_79 X 5
17_85_X_4
17_87 X5
17_87_X_8
17_89.S 2
17_92_X_12
1797 X 6
17_102_X_2
17_103_X_4
17_104_X_9



17_105_N_3
17_106_S_3
18_1 N 6
18.1.5 4
18 2. S 11
18_.3.X 4
18_4_N_3
18_4_N_4A
18_4 N_6
18 4 S 4
18_ 5 _N_4
18_10_N_4
18_11 X 9
18_12 X 5
18_13 X_7
18_14_N_3
18.14 S 3
18_17_X_9
18_18 NW_2
18_20_S_1
18.20.S 3
18_20_S_4
18_20.S 5
1821 X 9
1822 X 6
18_25_X_12
18_26_X_6
18_34_N_4
18.38.S 4
18_38_S_5
18_46_N_6
18_46_SE_4
18_50_X_14
1851 X 7
19 1. E 12
191 E 12
19 1. W_8
19 2 E 4
192 E6
19 2 W_3
19 3_E 6
19 4 W_3
19 5 W5
19 6_N_2



19 6_SE_3
19_15 W_2
19 15 W_6
19_16_W_5
19 24 NE_4
1924 W_2
19 27 W_1
19 28 E 2
19 28 E 6
1929 X 4
19 34 W 4
19.35.X_1
19 36_X_2
19.36_X_4
19 36_X_8
19.36_X_11
19 38.S_ 11
19_39_N_3
19_40_NW_3
19_40_S_8F
19 .40_S_11
19_40_S_16
19 41 X 21
1942 S 3
19 43 X 7
1943 X_8
19 44 X 4
19_44 X 5
19 45 N_2
19_46_X_13
19 47 X 3
1947 X 5
19 47 X 8
21 8 X 6
21 .8 X_12
21.10_X_4
21 21 X 3
21.22 X 1
21 35X 1
21 35X_2
21 35X 8
21 39 X 6
21 41 X 6
21 42 X 11



22 2 X 7
22 4 X 4
22 4 X5
22_16_X_7
2217 X3
22_18 X_2
2218 X 8
22 20 X_1
22 20 X 6
22_20_X_7
22.20_X_10
22_20_X_12
22 21 X 1
22 21 X 3
22 21 X 7
2224 X 5
22 31 X 12
22 _33.X.9
22 .34 X 6
22 .34 X9
22 35 X 11
22 36_X_1
22.36_X9
22 38 X_7
22 .39 X 3
22_40_X_5
22 .41 X 3
22 43.S_3
22 43 .S 4
22 43.S 6
22 .45 X 1
22 45 X_12
22 46 X 6
22_46_X_12
22 .47 X 3
22 47 X 6
2247 X 12
22 48 X_3A
22 48 X 11
2249 X_10
22 50_.S_6
22 51 X_3
22 52 X 11
22 53 X 4



22 .54 S 1
22 .54 S 6
22 55 N_1
22 56_N_4
22 57 _N_1
22 575 6
22 .59 X 7
22.59_X_10
22 .59 X_12
22_60_X_7
22 61 X_12
22 62_E_8
22 62_.W_3
22 64 X_12
22 655 4
22 65_5_6
22 66_X 6
22 69.S.5
22 73 81
22_73.S_2
22 73.8_3
22 7385
22 74 N_3
2274 .S 3
22 75_N_3
22 78_N_1
22 78 .S 6
22_79_SW_5
22 8151
22.81.S 4
22 84 X 3
2284 X_7
22 85 X 7
22 86_N_1
22 86_S_1
22_86_S_3
22 .87 X7
22_88_NW_6
22 89 S 3
232 X 8
232 X 11
23 5 X7
23 5. X 8
235X 9



23.8 X 2
23_10_X_4
23_11 X 7
23_12.S 6
2314 S 1
23_14.S_4
23_17 X9
23.20_.S_4
2321 X 12
23_23.5_1
23.23.5_3
23.27.S_4
23.27 S5
23_31.N_1
23_31.N_5
23.31.5.2
23.31.S5
23_31.5 6
23.32.X_3
23_32_X_7
23_32_X_10
23_33_N_3
23_35_N_2
23_35.5_3
233557
23_36_W_11
23_36_W_12
23_39_X_6
23.40_S_5
23.42.S 4
2343 X 5
234551
2347 _N_1
23.48_S_ 4
2349 E 5
23_49_W_5
23.50_X_5
2351 X 4
24 20 _X_12
24 21 X 5
24 31 X 1
24 47 X_12
25 1 N 2
25_1 N_6



252 X7
252 X 8
25583
25 6_N_4
25 6_N_5
258 X 3
25 9 X 6
259 X9
25_10_X_13
2511 X 2
2511 X 11
2511 X_12
2513 S1
25_13.S_4
25_15 N_6
251551
25_16_S_6
25_17_SE_10
25_18_N_6
25_20_X_1
2520 X 6
252152
2522 X 2
2522 X 8
2522 X9
2522 X 11
25 23 X 2
25 25 N_7
2525 S 4
2527 N_9
2528 S_1
25 29 N_1
2529 S5
25_30_N_6
25.30_S_2
25_31_NW_5
25 32_N_4
253251
25_33_X_10
25_37_N_6
25_38_N_3
25.38_S_4
2538 .S 4
25_39.S_3



2540 X 1
25415 6
2544 S 4
25455 3
26_2 X 3
26_3_N_1
26_3.S 2
26_4_N_4
26_6 X 4
26_6_X_6
26_7_X_6
26_7_X_12
26 9 N_1
26 9S 1
26 9S4
26_10_S_3
26_11 X 6
26_11_X_10
26_12 N_1
26_12 N_3
26_17_X_8
26_17_X_12
26_18 X 7
26_19_N_1
26_19.S_3
26_19.S_6
2624 S 1
26_33_X_11
26_39 X 6
26_40_S_1
26_41 X_10
26_42 X 4
26_42 X 7
26_43_X_7
26_43 X9
27_10_X_1
27_11 X 8
27_11.X_10
2711 X 12
2712 X_12
27_17_N_2
2718 X_3
27_18 X 6
2718 X_12



27 21 X 1
27 21 X7
27 23 X 4
27_23 X_7
27_30_X_6
2731 X1
27 32X 1
27_32_X_3
27 32 X 4
27_32_X_7
27_32.X_8
27_32.X9
27 _33.X_1
27_33.X 4
27_33_X_7
27_35_N_1
27_35_N_3
27_36_X_6
27 _37 X 4
27_37_X_7
27_37_X_10
27_37_X_12
27 44 X 2
27_44 X_7
27 44 X 11
27_46_X_2
27_46 X 6
27_48 X_3
2748 X 11
2749 X 5
2749 X_10
27.50_X_9
28_1 X 7
28_1 X_10
28 2 N 3
28_2 _N_7
28_3 X 2
28 4 X 1
28 6 X 5
28 6_X_12
28 8S 3
28_ 9 N_3
28 9 N_6
28_11 E 6



28_11 W_12
28_12 X_2
28_13 X 6
28_13_X_7
28_13_X_12
28_16_N_8
28_17 X 1
28_19 X 4
28_20_X_2
2821 X 1
28 22 X 5
28_25 X_1
28_25 X 7
28_27.S 2
28 28 S 3
28_28 S5
28 29 S 2
283251
28 32.5_3
28_33_X_6
28_34 N_3
28_39 X_1
28_40_X_2
2841 X 1
2841 X 4
28_42 X_10
28 44 X 2
28_44 X 6
2845 X 1
292 X 4
29 5 X5
29 9 N_4
29 10_N_6
29_11 X_3
29 13 X 2
29_13 X_12
29 15 X 5
29_16_X_10
29 17 _N_3
29_18 X_1
29 18 X 4
29_18 X_8
29 20 X 1
29_20_X_12



29 23 .S 6
2924 X 4
29 24 X_ 10
29_27 X_7
29 32 SE 6
29_32_SW_11
29 33X 5
29355 4
29 37_X9
29_38_S_3
29.40_S 5
29_40_X_1
29 41 X 5
29_42_NW_5
29 42 SW_5
29_47_X_10
29 49 X 8
29 52 N_1
29 52 N_3
2952 S 4
29 54 N 4
29_60_X_3
29 60_X_8
29 61 X 4
29 63 _X_8
29_65_E_3
29 65 W_1
29_65_W_3
29 66_X_6
29_66_X_8
29 68 _X 6
3118 X_3
31.20_X_9
3128 X_3
31.28 X 6
32_1.X5
32_.3.X_1
324 X1
32_4 X 10
32.8 X 1
32.8 X 4
32.8 X 5
32.8 X9
329X 1



32_10_N_1
32_10_S_3
32.10.S.5
32_13_X_11
32_14 X 6
3215 X_1
32_15.X_3
32_15.X_6
32_15 X 11
32_18_N_4
32_19_N_2
3222 X 1
32_23 X 5
3224 X 6
32.26 X_1
32_27 X 2
32_28 X 5
32.29 X_1
32_29 X 5
32_29 X_7
32.31.X 1
32_31.X_2
32_.31.X 8
32.32.X 4
32_34 X_12
33_2.X_10
33_3.X_11
33_5_X_5
33_6_X_3
33_6_X_10
33_6_X_11
33_7_X_1
33.9 X 4
33_10_X_2
33_10_X_8
33_11_E_3
3312 .S 4
33_14 X 4
33_14 X 8
33_14_X_10
33_18 X_1
33_18 X_1
33_18_X_3
33_18_X_6



33_18_X 9
33_18_X_12
33_19.X 9
33_19.X_11
33_20_X 4
33_21.X 4
3322 X 1
33.22 X 4
33_23 X 2
33.24 51
33_25 X 3
33_25 X6
33_26_X_3
33_30_X_3
33_30_X_9
33_31.X_1
33.32.X_1
33_37_X_10
33_39_X_9
3341 X 4
3342 X 1
33_43.5_4
33_46_X_3
33_46_X_7
33_46_X_10
33_47_X_7
33_47_X_11
33_47_X_15
3348 X_1
33_48_X_12
33_49_N_8
33.49.S_2
3349 S 3
33.49.5 4
33.50_X_1
33_50_X_3
3351 X 11
33_52_N_14
33_53_X_2
33_53_X_3
33_53_X_8
33_56_X_10
34_2 X_3
34.4S 1



34 4S5 6
3455 4
34_8_N_3
34_12 N_3
34_12_N_5
34_15_X_7
34_15_X_10
34_17 X5
34_18 X 4
3422 X 6
3422 X 9
34_22 X_10
34 26_S_3
34_26_S_8
C3X5
C_6.X_10
C7X6
C_12.X 4
C_16.X_10
C_26_X_2
C29 X C
C_31.X5
C_31.X_15
C32.X 4
C_36.X_3
C_39.X_2
C39 X4
C_41.X_7A
C 445X 1

COL GAR_300_2_E
COL GAR_300_2 _F
COL GAR_300_2_G
COL GAR_300_3_D
COL GAR_300_4 D
COL GAR_300_4_F
COL GAR_300_4_P
COL GAR_300_5_F
COL GAR_300_5_L
COL GAR_300_6_P
COLN1_400_5_D

COLN2.500_4_L

D_1.X5
D_1 X7
D_1.X 11



D_1 X 13
D_1.X 17
D_1 X 19
D_1.X 24
D_1 X 27
D_1.X 41
D_1 X 45
D_3.X_10
D_4 X5
D_ 4 X8
D_6 X6
D_7X1
D_8 X 2
D_10_X_1
D_10_X_ 4
D_10_X_12
D_12 X 1
D_12 X 2
D_18 X9
D_26_X_1
D_27_X_14
D_28 X_1
D_29 X_ 1
D_30_X_2
D_31.X9
D_34_X_11
D_36_E_1
D_38_X_6
D_45 X_1
D_46_X_1
D_46 X 4
D_46A_X_1
D_49 X 8
D_49.X_11
D_52 X 3
D_53_X_2
D_53_X_10
D_54_E_11
D_55.S 6
D_58_W_1
D_59 X 4
D_62_X_8
D_62_X_14
D_64_E_3



D_66_X_4
D_66_X_7
D_69 X_A
D_69_X_C
D_69_X_D
D_71.X 4
D_71.X9
D_71_X_13
D_72.X9
D_74 X5
D_75_X_7
D_76_E_9
D_81 X 5
D_81 X9
D_81 X 11
D_83_X_4
D_94 X 2
D 97 X 4
D_98 X 3
E_1.X8
E_2-4-5 X_16
E_7X1
E_7.X6
E_7_X_12
E 8 X5
E_ 8 X7
E_10_X_3
E_14 S_2
E_15. X 1
E_17_X_3
E_17.X 6
E_17.X9
E_24 X 3
E_29 X 2
E_29 X 5
E_30_X_9
E 31 X1
E_31.X_3
E 31 X 4
E_31.X_6
E_31.X9
E_35_X_3
E_35 X 4
E_36_X_1



E_39 X 6
E_47_X_3
E_47 X 5
E_47 X9
E_ 48 S 5
E_49 X_5
E_56_X_11
E_60_X_1
E_60_X_9
E_61_N_8
E_63_X_8
E_65_X_3
E_ 65X 8
E_67_X_7
E_68_X_15
E_70_X_7
E_70_X_13
E_70_X_15
E_70_X_24
E_70_X_27
F9S 11
F 11 X1
F 11 X 6
F 14 .S 4
F_18_N_3
F_19 X 5
F_20_W_6
F22 X4
F 28 X_1A
F_ 31.X 2
F 34 X5
F_36_X_5
F_36_X_7
F_36_X_9
F_ 39 X 2
F 42 X 4
F 43.S 2
F_50_X_3
F_50_X_6
F_53.X_2
F_55_X_14
F_55_X_26
F_56_X_1
F_56_X_4



F 63_E_8
F_66_S_6
F 73 X_3
G_2-4-5X_1
G_2-4-5 X_10
G_2-4-5_X_13B
G 9 X4
G_17_N_9
G_26_N_1
G_26_N_2
G_26_N_3
G_26_N_4
G_37.X_12
G_40_N_1
G_40_S 2
G_44_N_3
G 47 X 1
G_47 X 6
G_49 N_5
G_53.S 2
G 54 X 3
G_59 X 3
G 59 X 8
G_63_X_1
G_66_X_10
G_67_X_1
G_71.X5
G_71.X_12
G_77_N_2
G_77_N_2
G_80_X_11
G_83_X_5
G 85X 5
G_86_X_8
G 87X 12
G_89 X 3
G_89 X_10
G_90_S 4
G92S5
H_3_X_7
H6.X 1
H_6_X_5
H_6_X_6
H_9 N_2



H_12 X_3
H_15_X_9
H_17_X_13
H_22 E 3
H_25_W_3
H_30_W_6
H_33_N_3
H_33_S_5
H_36_X_6
H_39_X_10
I_.3_N_1
1.3.S_1
1.3.S 4
I_7_X_2
I_.8_E_1
19 E 1
1.9 W_3
.9 W 4
I_13_W_3
I_16_X_11
I_16_X_12
1_.30_X_1
I_.31.X_3
I_33_W_3
1_.34_X_11
1_37_X_3
I_42 X 6
I_45_X_9
K2 X_ 14
K_2_X_17
K3_X_1
K_7_X_5
K9 X_3
K_20_X_3
K_20_X_8
K_20_X_11
K21 X1
K_26_X_3
K_39_X_1B
K_45_N_3
K 46_S_1
K_59_X_2
K_65_X_3
K_67_X_3



K_68_S_3
K_72_X_4
K_75_X_2
K_75_X_5
K_79.X_1
K_80_X_7
K 84 X 2
K_86_X_1
K_86_X_2
K92 X_12
K 93X 4
K_94_S_8
K95 X 2
K97 X_2
K_100_X_6
K_102_N_2
K_109_X_9
K_110_N_10
K111 .S 1
K124 S_1
K 124 S 2
L8 X 7
L9 X3
L9 X6
L9 X6
L9 X7

L 11 X5
L.12 X 7
L 12 X 11
L_13_X_12
L 16 X_3
L 20.S_1
L21S2
L22S6
L 23.S 6
L 27 X 2
L 28.S 2
L_29_N_7
L 29 N_8
L_30_X_5
L_30_X_12
L_.31.X_3
L 33_N_1
L_35X_8



L 40_X_2
L 41 X 5
L 43 X5
L 47 X 4
L 51 X 5
L 51 X 6
L 525 10
L 52.S 11
L 53_N_1
L 54 X_1
L 54 X 4
L. 59 X_7
L 59 X_12
L_60_X_1
L 62 X 5
L 65_N_1
L 65S 7
L 67.S 4
L 69 X 7
L_70_X_1
L_70_X_10
L_73_N_5
L 74 X 2
L_74 X 12
L 75.X_3
L_76_X_2
L 76_X_8
L_76_X_9
M_2 N_4
M_2_N_6
M_2 N_7
M_25_S 3
M_26_X_6
M_29_S 3
M_31.S 5
M_33_S_5
M_34 X9
M_36_S_5
M_37_X_4
M_41 E 1
M_ 41 W_4
M_41_W_6
M_41 W_12
M_42_X_6



M_44 X_ 1
M_44 X 4
M_44 X 6
M_45_X_4
M_46_X_46
M_46_X_47
M_46_X_48
M_46_X_49
M_46_X_97
M_46_X_98
M_46_X_99
M_47_X_50
M_47_X_50
M_47_X_51
M_47_X_52
M_47_X_53
M_47_X_54
M_47_X_55
M_47_X_56
M_47_X_57.5
M_47_X_101
M_47_X_103
M_47_X_104
M_47_X_105
M_47_X_106
M_47_X_107
M_48_X_1
M_48_X_2
M_48_X_3
M_48_X_3A
M_48_X_ 4
M_48_X_58
M_48_X_59
M_48_X_60
M_48_X 61
M_48_X_62
M_48_X_63
M_49_X_135
M_49 X_136
M_49_X_140
M_49 X_154
M_49_X_155
M_49 X_157
M_49_X_158



M_51 X 4
M_53_X_1
M_54 X_42
M_54_X_43
M_54 X_44
M_54_X_45
M_54 X 93
M_54_X_94
M_54 X 95
M_54_X_96
M_56_X_5
M_56_X_6
M_56_X_7
M_56_X_8
M_56_X_64
M_56_X_65
M_56_X_66
M_56_X_67
M_57_X_142
M_57_X_143
M_57_X_146
M_62_X_38
M_62_X_39
M_62_X_40
M_62_X_ 41
M_62_X_89
M_62_X 91
M_62_X_92
M_64 X 9
M_64_X_10
M_64 X_11
M_64_X_12
M_64_X_68
M_64_X_69
M_64 _X_70
M_64_X_71
M_65_X_147
M_65_X_148
M_65_X_150
M_66_X_12
M_66_X_14
M_67_X_3
M_67_X_7
M_68_X_9



M_69 X 9
M_70_X_33
M_70_X_34
M_70_X_35
M_70_X_36
M_70_X_37
M_70_X_84
M_70_X_85
M_70_X_87
M_70_X_88
M_72_X_13
M_72_X_14
M_72_X_15
M_72_X_16
M_72_X_17
M_72_X_72
M_72_X_74
M_72_X_75
M_72_X_76
M_76_X_8
M_76_X_12
M_77_N_3
M_78_X_29
M_78_X_30
M_78_X_31
M_78_X_32
M_78_X_80
M_78_X_81
M_78_X_82
M_78_X_83
M_78_X_108
M_78_X_109
M_78_X_110
M_78_X_111
M_78_X_112
M_78_X_114
M_79_X_22
M_79_X_22A
M_79_X_23
M_79_X_24
M_79_X_25
M_79_X_26
M_79_X_27
M_79_X_28



M_79_X_115
M_79_X_116
M_79_X_117
M_80_X_18
M_80_X_19
M_80_X_20
M_80_X_21
M_80_X_21-A
M_80_X_77
M_80_X_78
M_80_X_120
M_80_X_121
M_80_X_122
M_81 X 171
M_81_X_172
M_81_X_173
M_81 X_174
M_81_X_175
M_81_X_180
M_81_X_181
M_81_X_183
M_81_X_184
M_81_X_185
MAUS_101_1_A
MAUS_101_3 C
MAUS_101_3_C
MAUS_101_3_G
MAUS_101_3_L
MAUS_101.5 C
MAUS_101_5_J
MAUS_101 6_A
MAUS_101_6_B
MAUS_101 6_E
MAUS_101.6_G
MAUS_102_1_A
MAUS_102_3_D
MAUS_102_3_|
MAUS_102_3_L
MAUS_102_4_H
MAUS_102_6_E
MAUS_102_6_L
MAUS_103_3_B
MAUS_103_3_G
MAUS_103_3_H



MAUS_103_4_A
MAUS_103_5_A
MAUS_103_5_K
MAUS_103_6_C
MAUS_104_1_L
MAUS_104_2_F
MAUS_104 2 G
MAUS_104_2_)
MAUS_104_2_L
MAUS_104_3_A
MAUS_104_3_E
MAUS_104_3_F
MAUS_104 4 C
MAUS_104_4 D
MAUS_104 5_G
MAUS_104_5_G
MAUS_104_6_|
MAUS_104_6_J
MAUS_104_6_J
MAUS_104_6_K
MAUS_201_1.C
MAUS_201_2_A
MAUS_ 2012 C
MAUS_201_2 G
MAUS_201_3_B
MAUS_201_3_E
MAUS_201 5_F
MAUS_201.5_G
MAUS_201 6_A
MAUS_201_8_G
MAUS_202_2_A
MAUS_202_2_F
MAUS_202_3_H
MAUS_202_4_A
MAUS_202_5_A
MAUS_202_6_C
MAUS_202_7_G
MAUS_202_8_G
N_1.X 1
N_7_X_3
N_7_X_9
N_7_X_10
N_8_X_9

N_24 X_1



N_24 X_10
N_25_X_3
N_34_X_3
N_35_E_5
N_35_E_6
N_35_W_1
N_40_W_1
N_41 E 1
N_41 W_3
N_42_W_4
N_53_N_1
N_53_S_2
N_55_X_10
N_55_X_12
N_57_E_2
N_57_W_1
N_63_X_7
N_64_W_3
N_65_W_5
N_70_X_1
N_70_X_4
N_70_X_6
N_70_X_7
N_71_X_6
N_72_X_3
N_72_X_4
N_73_W_1
N_74_X_1
N_75_W_5
N_76_W_2
N_76.5_X_6
N_79_X_3
N_81_X_5
N_84_X_2
N_87_E_1
N_87_E_5
N_87_W_4
N_91 X 2
N_92 X_12
N_93_E_1
N_94 E_3
N_94 W_2
N_95_X_2
N_95_X_6



N_96_X_1
N_96_X_3
N_97_X_4
N_100_E_1
N_113 X 2
0_2X3
0_3X7
0_6_E_10
0 7.X7
08X 4
0_11 X 11
0_12 X 5
014 X1
0_14 X 4
0_15 X 2
0_15.X 4
0_16.S_2
0_32.X_3
032 X5
0_34 X 4
0_34 X 6
0_35_X_3
0_36_X_6
0_39 X 4
041 X3
0_43.8_1
0_43 S5
0_45.X_8
0_49 X 7
0_49 X9
0_54 W_3
0_55.X_1
0_55 X 5
0_56_X_1
0_57 X 4
062 X_2
062 X 5
0_64 X 4
0_67 X 4
0_67_X_7
0_68_W_6
0_72 X7
0_73.S_3
0_75_X_2



0_75.X_6
0_76_S_6
0_77.S8_2
0_79. X1
0_79.X_10
0_79.X_12
082 X 8
0_87_E_5
088 X 1
0_88_X_3
0_89 X 6
0_89 X 13
090 X 1
092 X 2
092 X 5
092 X9
0. 94 X 5
0_99_N_4
P2 X7
P2 X 11
P_2 X 12
P_3.X_1
P_3 X 2
P_3.X_3
P_5 X 14
P_5_X_15
P_5_X_16
P_5 X_17
P_5X_18
P_8_X_19
P_8 X_20
P_8 X 21
P_8 X 22
P_8_X_23
P_8 X 24
P_15_X_10
P_16_X_5
P_18_X_4
P_18_X_5
P_18_X_7
P_19 X_11
P21 X1
P_21 X 11
P_22 X 11



P_24 X 9
P_26_W_2
P_27_X_8
P_27 X 11
P_31.X 13
P_32_X_3
P_32 X9
P_32_X_10
P_32 X_11
P_33_N_3
P_34 X_2
P_35_X_4
P_35_X_8
P_35_X_10
P_35_X_12A
P_36_X_12
P_37_X_8
P_38_X_10
P_39 X_1
P_39_X_10
P_40_X_1
P_40_X_2
P_40_X_3
P_40_X_6
P_42 X 11
P_44 X 5
P_45 X_1
P_45_X_5
P_45 X 10
P_47 X5
P_47 X_6
P_48_X_4
P_52 X_6
P_53_S_6
P_54 X 1
P_58_N_5
P_58_N_6
P_58_S 4
P_59 X_3
P_59_X_9
P_60_X_3
P_60_X_7
P_60_X_9
P_63_N_1



P_63_N_3
P_68_X_8
P_.71.S 5
R4 W_1
R_4_W_3A
R_.5_W_2
R7_E1
R_7_W_2
R_8.X_1
R_8_X_7
R_12 X 4
R_.14 X_1
R_14 X 6
R_14_X_12
R_15 X 1
R_26_X_10
R_27_X_12
R_28_X_10
R_28 X_15
R_30_W_3
R_30_W_6
R_31.X_8
R_34 X 3
R_34_X_9
R_34 X_11
R_34_X_12
R_36_X_10
R_36_X_12
R_37_X_1
R_38_X_3
R_39_W_17
R_44_X_10
S 3.X2

S 3 X6

S 4X7

S 5 X8

S 5 X 13
S 7.X1
S 7.X9
S_8 X 7
S_8.X 12
S 9 X5

S 9X7
S_13_E 1



S_13_ W 6
S_14 W_3
S_15. X 5
S_ 16 X_1
S_18.X 6
S_19 X 2
S_19.X_3
S_19. X 5
S_19. X 7
S_20_X_5
S_20_X_6
S_20. X_7
S 21 X4
S5 22 X 8
S 24 X 4
S_26_X_10
S_26_X_11
S5 28 X 8
S_28 X 9
S_28 X_11
S_29 X 8
S_30_X_5
S_31.X_7
S_31.X9
S_32.X_1
532X 8
S_32.X_11
S_33.X_1
S_33.X_7
S_34 X 3
S_35X 2
S_37. X7
S_39.X_6
S_39.X_12
S 41 E 1
S 41 E5
S_48 X 7
S_49 X 9
S_50_X_9
S_50_X_14
S 51X 7
S 51.X8
S 52 X1
S 52X 4



S_53.X_1
S_53.X_13
S_58_X_12

S_ 61 X7

S 61X 11
S_61.X_12

S 62X 6
S_62.X_12

S_ 64 X5
S_65_X_3

S_ 65 X5
S5_66_X_2
S_66_X_3
T_2.X5
T_13.X_1
T_15.X 8
T_20_X_2

T 21 X7
T_26_X_5
T_31.X 4
T_33_X 2
T_35_X_11
T_38_X 6
T_38_X_8
T_39&40_X_13
T_39&40_X_14
T_39&40_X_17
T_39&40_X_19
T_39&40_X_20
T_43.X_11
T_44 X 8

T_52 X 2
T_53_X_1

T_54 X_1
T_55_X_3
T_56_X_6

T.57 X1
T_58A X_1

T_59 X 2

T_59 X 3
T_63_X_7

T 64 X 6

U_1 X5
U2x11



U2 X 17
U_2Xx21
U_3 X9
U_3.X_13
U_3.X_20
Uue6Xx1
U_6.X5
U_6_X_10
U_7.X7
U8 X_3
U_10_X_11
U_13_X_2
U_17.X 6
U_19 X 6
U_19 X 12
U_22 X5
U_26 X 6
U_32.X 4
U_36_X_1
U_38_X_1A
V_7_ X5
V_14 X 6
V_16_X_10
V_20_X_2
V_20_X 4
V_20_X_6
V_20_X_8
V_20_X_9
V_22 X 5
V_22 X 7
V_23 X 7
V_24 X_11
V_25 X 5
V_25_X.9
V_25 X 14
V_27 X1
V_27 X 4
V_28 X_7
V_29 X 11
V_29 X_14
V_30_X_2
V_30_X_8
V_30_X_9
V_31.X_1



V_31 X 7
V_31 X_12
V_31 X 12
V_33_X_4
V_33.X_6
V_33_X_10
V_33_X_13
V_33_X_16
V_33_X 21
V_34 X_3
V_34 X 4
V_34 X_7
V_35_W_2
V_35_W_4
V_37_W_4
V_41 X 4



LN WNRE

N NNNNNRRRRBRRRBPRR R R
U DA WNPEPOWOWNODOUDWNLERO

NAME

Janice Flaherty

John Voigt Jr

James A Loew
Robert “Pete” Kasten
Earl C Brinkman
Anthony Kontny

Earl Woldt

Gary Maynard
Robert Endter

. Ronald E Kennedy

. Roy D Langdon

. Robert L Reinke

. Jerry Jenkins

. Donald Hinnenthal
. Wesley Newhouse

. William Von Holt

. Richard Hansen

. Andrew Weyker

. Ted R Coon

. James J Miller

. DeWayne Sorges

. John P Rademacher
. Ambers V Howerton
. Lloyd Learman

VETERANS JULY 2024 - JUNE 2025

BLOCK

34

6

28

33

32
Col-GAR
L

17

P

Maus
Col-GAR

LOT

22
24
11
49

300
59
79
60
103
300
16
29
55
20
104
10
51
71

43
35
41
47

GRAVE

12-A

1
—

Vo ANUNDPNPO
>

BURIAL DATE

July 12, 2024

July 19, 2024
August 2, 2024
August 6, 2024
August 2, 2024
August 24, 2024
September 5, 2024
September 1, 2024
August 31, 2024
September 18, 2024
September 27, 2024
October 17, 2024
October 18, 2024
October 24, 2024
November 4, 2024
November 21, 2024
December 13, 2024
December 16, 2024
January 3, 2025
April 4, 2025

May 12, 2025

June 5, 2025

June 6, 2025

June 13, 2025



M.
V.

VI.
VII.

VIIL.

IX.

XI.
XIL.

XIlI.
XIV.

XV.

CITY OF APPLETON, Wi
POLICY FOR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS

2026
STREET CONSTRUCTION AND RECONSTRUCTION ..o 2
SIDEWALLS ... .o 7
SANITARY SEWER ... ..o 9
SANITARY SEWER LATERALS. ...... .. 11
STORMWATER FACILITIES ...... ..o 12
STORM SEWER LATERALS ... .o 14
WATERMAINS AND SERVICES. ..........oo e 15
STREET LIGHTING ... e 17
NEW SUBDIVISIONS ... e e e 18
SPECIAL CHARGES ... .. e 19
METHOD OF PAYMENT ... s 19
APPEAL PROGESS ...t 20
MISCELLANEOQUS ... ... 20
REFERENCED ITEMS ... ... 20
RATES FOR STORMWATER DETENTION BASINS (COST PER ERU’S)............. 21



I

CITY OF APPLETON, WI

POLICY FOR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 2026

STREET CONSTRUCTION AND RECONSTRUCTION
A. General Information

ADOPTED 8/20/25

R-1 Zoning R-2 Zoning All Other Zoning**
Rural to Rural to Rural to
New Urban New Urban New Urban
Conversion Conversion Conversion
CONCRETE Max. Width| 33’ 33 33" 33" 49' 49'
PAVEMENT Max. ThickneSSI 7" 7" 7" 7" 9" 9"
Assessed at (%)I 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Multiple Frontgge Yes* Yes* Yes* Yes* None None
Reduction|
Base Assessment Rate Calculated on an individual street basis using actual bid prices

Direct Assessments
(in addition to Base
Rate)

(Y=Assessed N=Not Assessed ) Rural to Urban

New Concrete .
Conversion

Construction Items

Administrative Fees (6%)
Property Owner Notification
Concrete Pavement

Curb & Gutter (Integral)
Sawcutting

Fine Grading

Seed & Mulch/Sod

Terrace Restoration

Concrete Driveway Apron

Trees

Miscellaneous Asphalt

Asphalt - Milling

Curb & Gutter (miscellaneous)
Geotextile Fabric

Stone Base

Unclassified Excavation

Erosion Control

Adjust MH/Inlet Tops

Asphalt - Miscellaneous

Asphalt Transitions

Curb Thimbles

Drill-in Tie Bars/Dowels
Driveway Closure

Inlet Leads

Maintenance Hole / Inlet Reconstruction
Maintenance Hole/Inlet Castings
MH Chimney Seals

Pavement Marking

PVC Pipe for sump pumps
Reinforcing Rods

Removal - Asphalt

Removal - C&G

Removal - Concrete

Removal - DW Aprons (Conc. & Asp.)
Removal - Sidewalk

Repair work from permits
Repair work from Utility Permits
Traffic Signals

* See Calculation Guidelines

* Per bid price
$1.50/front foot

Z|\Z\Z|Z|Z| Z| Z|Z|Z|Z| Z| Z| Z| Z|Z| Z| Z| Z| Z| Z| Z| Z| Z| Z| Z| Z| Z| Z| <| <| <| < | < =< =< =< = =
Z|\Z\Z| 2| Z| Z|Z|Z|\Z|Z| Z| Z| Z|Z|Z| Z| Z| Z| Z|Z| Z| Z| Z| Z| Z| Z| Z| Z| =<| Z| <| <| =< =< =< =< <

** Residential Use Properties to be Assessed as R-2



R-1 Zoning R-2 Zoning All Other Zoning**
After  |Ruralto Urban]| After  |Rural to Urban After Rural to Urban
ASPHALT G&G Conversion G&G Conversion G&G Conversion
PAVEMENT Max. Width| ~ 33' 33' 33 33 49' 49'
(Not incmding Max. Thickness 3" 3" 3" 3" 6" 6"
New
e Assessed at (%)) 25% 0% 25% 0% 25% 0%
Subdivisions) .
Multiple Fronte.lge Yes* Yes* Yes* Yes* None None
Reduction
Base Assessment Rate Calculated on an individual street basis using actual bid prices
(Y=Assessed N=Not Assessed ) . Asphalt Direct
Asphalt following Rural to Urban Assessments
. Reconstruct / | . ...

. G&G Conversion Overla (in addition to
Construction Items y Base Rate)
Administrative Fees (6%) N -
Property Owner Notification -
Asphalt Pavement -
Milling -
Sawcutting -

Curb & Gutter (New/repair) -
Fine Grading -
Seed & Mulch/Sod -
Terrace Restoration -
Concrete Driveway Apron * * per bid price

Asphalt (miscellaneous)

Geotextile Fabric

Stone Base

Trees

Unclassified Excavation

Erosion Control

Adjust MH/Inlet Tops

Curb Thimbles

Drill-in Tie Bars/Dowels

Driveway Closure

Inlet Leads

Maintenance Hole / Inlet Reconstruction

Maintenance Hole/Inlet Castings

MH Chimney Seals

Pavement Marking

Removal - Asphalt

Removal - C&G

Removal - Concrete

Removal - DW Aprons (Conc. & Asp.)

Removal - Sidewalk

Repair work from permits

Repair work from Utility Projects

Z|\Z|\Z|Z|Z|Z2|Z2|Z2|\Z2|\Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z2|Z|Z2|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|<|Z|Z|Z|<|<|<

Traffic Signals

Z

Z\|\Z|Z|Z|\Z|Z|\Z|Z|Z|Z2|Z|Z|Z|Z2|Z|Z|Z|Z2|Z2|Z|Z|Z2|Z|Z| K<<= <<=~

z|\z|z\|\Z|Zz|z|z|Z|Z2|z|Z2|Z\Z2|z|Z2|Z|\Z|z|z2|Z2|\Z|z|z2|Z2\Z|Z|z|Z | Z|Z|Zz|Z2

* See Calculation Guidelines

** Residential Use Properties to be Assessed as R-2




GRADING &

R-1 Zoning R-2 Zoning

All Other Zoning**

Rural to Urban
Conversion

New
Street

Rural to Urban
Conversion

New
Street

New
Street

Rural to Urban|
Conversion

Max. Width)

GRAVELING

35' 35 35’ 35’

51 51

(not including New Max. Thickness

Subdivisions) Assessed at (%)

100% 0% 100% 0%

100% 0%

Multiple Frontage
Reduction

Yes* Yes* Yes* Yes*

None None

Base assessment Rate

Calculated on an

individual street basis based upon bid prices

(Y=Assessed N=Not Assessed )

Construction Items

Rural to Urban

New Street .
Conversion

Direct Assessments
(in addition to Base
Rate)

Administrative Fees (6%)

Property Owner Notification

Fine Grading

Seed & Mulch/Sod

Erosion Control

Sawcutting

Unclassified Excavation

Stone Base

Geotextile Fabric

Removal - Asphalt

Removal - C&G

Removal - Concrete

Removal - Sidewalk

Miscellaneous Asphalt

Miscellaneous Curb & Gutter

Adjust MH/Inlet Tops

Street Lighting

K ZZZ| <K<K KRR = = =] =] =<
z|\z|\z|\z|Zz|Zz|Zz|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z

Traffic Signals

Z
Z

* See Calculation Guidelines

** Residential Use Properties to be Assessed as R-2

B. Calculation Guidelines — Street Construction and Reconstruction

1. Assessments will be levied according to the front foot dimensions of abutting property except

as noted.

. The assessment rate will be the portion (%) of assessable construction costs in accordance

with the charts above. Assessments will be reduced proportionately for pavements
constructed less than the maximum widths.

. Public owned property, including lands under the jurisdiction of the Board of Education,

Parks and Recreation Committee and other branches of city, churches and private schools and
other exempt properties will be assessed 100% of the “all other zoning” assessment rate
regardless of the zoning. (BPW 2/2/94) All county, state and federal governments will be
exempt from assessment charges. (City Attorney 1/23/14)

4



4. The assessment rate for alley pavement will be based on the full width of the pavement.

5. The City assumes the entire cost of permanent pavement for all intersections on new
construction in areas platted prior to 1/1/04 or after 12/31/14.

6. Driveway approaches shall be constructed at property owner’s expense:
a. When permanent street surfaces are constructed.
b. Where a street has been permanently improved, driveway approaches shall be installed
within six months of the completion of the adjacent structure.
c. When ordered to be installed by the Common Council.
d. When a property owner requests approach to be widened, rebuilt or closed.

7. The costs of closing unused driveway openings that are closed in conjunction with the paving
program are not directly assessed to the property owner.

Any driveway approach without improved surface shall be paved with a permanent surface in
conjunction with a street-paving project. The cost will be assessed to the property.
(S&S 3/3/93 and MSC 9/3/97)

8. The cost of the initial asphalt surface application on a new subdivision gravel street will be
billed at the time of official street opening.

9. All asphalt maintenance exclusive of the initial application will be done as general maintenance
and at no cost to the abutting property.

10. Assessments for asphalt pavements that are constructed without curb and gutter (City standard)
will be calculated by dividing total project cost by assessable frontage.

11. Assessments for trees will be included with paving assessments.

12. If one person owns an entire block as one parcel and the block is zoned R-1 or R-2, the shortest
side shall be assessed in full. The remaining sides shall receive up to a 120’ discount.

13. On paving projects where there are other contributing sources of funding such as federal, state,
or from other units of government, the City rates will be applied. If projected revenue (using
the City rates) exceeds the City’s share of project costs, then assessment rates will be reduced
proportionately so that revenue equals City share of project cost. “City share” of project cost
will include, in addition to normal construction costs, items such as right-of-way acquisition,
relocation costs, consultant cost, all Department of Transportation administrative and review
costs, and any other fees charged by the other participating units of government. (BPW 1/7/97)

14. When the long side of a corner lot falls on the “bulb” or “mouse ear”, the assessment shall be
calculated as follows:
a. Determine a rate per foot by dividing the lump sum per lot charge by the actual footage of
the long side.
b. The first 120 feet will be charged 25% of the rate calculated in “a” above. The balance of
the frontage will be assessed at 100% of the rate calculated in “a” above. (BPW 1/21/98)



15. The requesting property owner, where permitted, shall pay all additional cost for indented
parking.

16. When additional pavement width is required to accommodate on street bike lanes, the extra
width beyond what would be required for a standard street design, will not be assessed.

17. Assessments will only be levied on partial or total street reconstruction for those streets that
do not meet current City Street or Drainage standards prior to their reconstruction.

18. Calculation Guidelines:

a.

On multiple frontage lots zoned R-1 or R-2, the shortest side will be assessed at 100% of
the assessment rate. On the other sides, the first 120 feet of each side will be assessed at
25% (R-2, 50%) of the assessment rate. The balance of the frontage will be assessed at
100% of the assessment rate.

On lots having multiple frontages, there will be NO assessment for the frontage to which
access is legally precluded or fronts on a naturally occurring access barrier such as a steep
incline.

On inside corner or multiple frontage lots, the side or sides precluded from access are not
included in the assessment frontage determination.

On multiple frontage lots where all sides have equal frontage, the side to be considered the
short side is the “Addressed” side.

On cul-de-sac lots, the abutting property owner shall be responsible for cul-de-sac
pavement, overbuild costs including the straightaway portion of the affected property. The
assessment will be calculated using total assessable cost divided by the number of
properties fully or partially abutting the “bulb” according to the number of originally
platted lots.

On “mouse ear” lots, defined as abutting lots to a widening in the road around a curve but
not including lots on a cul-de-sac, the front foot dimensions for assessment calculation will
be determined by dividing the square footage of the property by the average depth of the
lots in the block.

For work abutting only part of a parcel’s total frontage, assessments will be calculated
based on the partial frontage. The balance will be assessed as work is completed along the
remaining frontage.

Definition of “addressed” side: The street with the house number.

No corner lot exception will be provided for combined properties that did not meet the
corner lot criteria prior to their combination.

19. The Wheel Tax is used only for sidewalk replacement, reconstructed asphalt and
reconstructed concrete streets. Not for rural to urban conversion of asphalt replacement to
concrete pavement.

20. Portions of projects funded by TIF and IPLF are not assessable.



II. SIDEWALKS
A. General Information

R-1 Zoning R-2 Zoning All Other Zoning**
New Recon. New Recon. New Recon.
Max. Width| 5! 5! 5! 5' 5' 5'
SIDEWALKS Max. Thicknessl 5" 5" 5" 5" 7" 7"
(Not including Assessed at %)|  100% 125% 100% 125% 100% 125%
New . ,
. e Multiple Frontage Reduction]  Yes* Yes* Yes* Yes* None None
subdivisions)
Calculated annually based upon the average bid prices for the sidewalk
Base Assessment Rate |reconstruction, concrete paving reconstruction and asphalt paving
reconstruction contracts.
(Y=Assessed - N =Not Assessed) New an.d Reconstruction Individual Rates (if
Reconstruction not . . .
. . meeting replacement |not included in current
Construction Items meeting replacement .
L. criteria Rate above)
criteria
Administrative Fees (6%) Y N -
Property Owner Notification Y N -
Concrete Sidewalk Y N -
Seed & Mulch (max. of 18" on each side of walk) Y N -
Terrace Restoration Y N -
Sawcutting N N -
Fine Grading N N -
Miscellaneous Asphalt N N -
Stone Base N N -
Driveway Aprons - Removal and Replacement Y n/a -
Unclassified Excavation N N -
Erosion Control N N -
Drill-in Tie Bars/Dowels/Rebar N N -
Removal - Sidewalk N N -
* See Calculation Guidelines ** Residential Use Properties to be Assessed as R-2

B. Calculation Guidelines - Sidewalks

1. Assessments will be levied according to the front foot dimensions of abutting property, except
as noted.

2. Sidewalks on right-of-ways 60 feet or more will be a minimum of 5 feet wide. Sidewalks on
right-of ways less than 60 feet will be a minimum of 4 feet.

3. There will be no assessment for sidewalk that meets the replacement criteria as defined in the
Sidewalk Maintenance Policy.

4. Assessments will be levied when sidewalks not meeting replacement criteria are replaced at
the property owner’s request.



10.

Service walks between the curb and sidewalk will be assessed to the property owner when
installed on new subdivision streets.

The extra expense of installing a sidewalk beyond the City’s standard width or in an unusual
manner at the request of the owner will be charged to the abutting property owner.

Public owned property, including lands under the jurisdiction of the Board of Education, Parks
and Recreation Committee and other branches of city, state or county governments, churches
and private schools and other exempt properties will be assessed 100% of the assessment rate
regardless of the zoning.

To figure credit for useful life (20 years) of sidewalk: credit = divide age of sidewalk by 20.
If less than 1.0, multiply that number by the current assessment rate.

For City contract installation, sidewalk assessments shall include a 6% administration fee.

Calculation Guidelines:

a. On multiple frontage lots zoned R-1 or R-2, the shortest side will be assessed at 100% of
the assessment rate. On the other sides, the first 120 feet of each side will be assessed at
25% (R-2, 50%) of the assessment rate. The balance of the frontage will be assessed at
100% of the assessment rate.

b. On inside corner lots where all sides have equal footage, the side to be considered the short
side is the “Addressed” side.

c. On lots having multiple frontages, there will be NO assessment for the frontage to which
access 1is legally precluded or fronts on a naturally occurring access barrier such as a steep
incline.

d. On inside corner or multiple frontage lots, the side or sides precluded from access is not
included in the assessment frontage determination.

e. For work abutting only part of a parcel’s total frontage, assessments will be calculated
based on the partial frontage. The balance will be assessed as work is completed along the
remaining frontage.

f. Definition of “addressed” side: The street with the house number.




III. SANITARY SEWER
A. General Information

R-1 Zoning R-2 Zoning All Other Zoning**
New Recon. New Recon. New Recon.
SANITARY Max. Size (Diameter) 12" 12" 12" 12" 12" 12"
SEWER Max. Depth| 16 16' 16 16' 16 16
0 . 0,
(not including o Assessed) 330500, | 0v/50% | 339%/50% | 0%/50% | 33%/50% | 0%/50%
(Main/Laterals)
New Multiple Frontage
o o o * * *
SllblelSlOllS) Reduction| Yes N/A Yes VA Yes N/A
. Actual
Current (33% main) Rate | Actual Cost N/A Cost N/A | Actual Cost N/A
|
(Y=Assessed N =Not Assessed) Individual Rates
New Reconstruction (if not included in

Construction Items current Rate above)

Administrative Fees (6%)
Property Owner Notification

Sanitary area assessment

Sanitary Sewer Main

Sanitary Maintenance Holes

Drop Maintenance Holes

4" and 6"= $55
> 6" = Actual Cost

Maintenance Hole Castings

Sanitary Laterals (50% Rate)

Private Lateral Televising

Lateral Connections

Pipe Bedding

Pipe Backfill Material
Terrace Restoration
Seed & Mulch

Pavement Restoration

Sawcutting

Asphalt removal

Concrete Removal

ZIZ|Z|Z|Z| <R} < <2 R R R R ] = <

Sidewalk Removal

z|\Z|\z|Z\Z|z|Z|z|z\Z|z|Z < |z\Z\ =z zZ|z|Z

Z

Erosion Control

* See Calculation Guidelines ** Residential Use Properties to be Assessed as R-2
B. Calculation Guidelines — Sanitary Sewer

1. Assessments will be levied according to the front foot dimensions of abutting property,
except as noted. The assessment rate for new sanitary sewers will be determined on the basis
of actual construction cost up to and including 12” sanitary sewer main and maintenance
holes. The assessment rate for new construction in an existing area will be based upon the
rates shown in the chart above.

2. Area assessment, where applicable, will be levied in accordance with Section 18-116 of the
Municipal Code of the City of Appleton.

9



Any lot or parcel within the corporate limits which has not paid a sanitary sewer assessment
when the main was installed will, at the time the lateral permit is taken out, be required to
pay a connection fee with the lateral permit fee. Payment of a connection fee must be made
in full prior to connecting. The connection fee, equivalent to the front foot assessment and
area assessment, will be based on the assessment rates the year the main was installed.

When utilities are installed in a street where one side is within the corporate limits but
remains undeveloped, assessments will be levied for the utilities that benefit the parcel. The
area assessment for sanitary sewer is calculated using a nominal lot depth of 120 feet. The
balance of the area assessment will be assessed when the property is developed and charged a
connection fee in lieu of assessments.

On sanitary relay, where existing laterals meet the sanitary lateral policy and are not re-laid,
the cost of reconnecting (including short sections of connecting pipe, usually within the
trench area) is absorbed by the City and not assessed to the property owner.

Calculation Guidelines (see chart for applicability):

a. On multiple frontage lots zoned R-1 or R-2, the shortest side will be assessed at
100% of the assessment rate. On the other sides, the first 120 feet for each side will
be assessed at 0% of the assessment. The balance of the frontage will be assessed at
100% of the assessment rate.

b. On multiple frontage lots where all sides have equal frontage, the side to be
considered the short side is the “Addressed” side.

c. Where sewer exists across an entire parcel frontage, but sewer construction only
occurs along part of a parcel’s total frontage, assessments will be calculated based on
the partial frontage. The balance will be assessed as work is completed along the
remaining frontage. Where sewer exists along only a portion of the parcel frontage,
the entire frontage will be assessed.

d. Assessment for construction of sanitary sewer will be levied against all abutting
property frontage regardless if laterals are present, provided that the property is not
legally precluded from connecting to the sewer. Amount of assessment will be
calculated according to existing policy.

e. Cost of sewer and maintenance hole construction deeper than 16 feet shall be borne
by the city except where extra depth is required for development of adjacent
property.

f. No corner lot exception will be provided for combined properties that did not meet
the corner lot criteria prior to their combination.

g. For cul-de-sac lots, the assessable footage for each lot shall be the sum of frontages
for all lots fully or partially abutting a cul-de-sac divided by the number of lots.

h. Assessable footage for sewers constructed within easements shall be equal to the
centerline length of easement falling within the property. Assessments will be levied
to only those properties with lateral connections to the easement sewer. The
easement length will be considered as “frontage” for purposes of calculating
multiple-frontage reductions (see 6a. above).

1. Sanitary main reconstruction will be borne by the Wastewater Utility.

10



Iv.

SANITARY SEWER LATERALS

A. General Definition

1.

For new development funded by the City, the total cost of lateral installation will be assessed
to the property.

The assessment rate for reconstruction of laterals and construction of new laterals in existing
streets will be based upon the rates shown in the chart from Section III above.

B. Calculation Guidelines

1.

Assessments for laterals will be based on the unit cost per foot as indicated in the chart in
section III.A applied to the length of the lateral between the sanitary sewer and the property
line. The length of lateral assessed shall not exceed ' the street right-of-way width.

Assessments for laterals within cul-de-sacs will be based on the actual length of lateral
installed, but shall not exceed the right-of-way radius for the cul-de-sac bulb.

Assessments for laterals connected to sewers within easements will be based on actual length
of lateral installed, but not to exceed ’ the right-of-way width of the street for which the
property is addressed.

4. Total Lateral Replacement Program Calculation Guidelines:

a. For properties electing to participate: No assessments will be levied for the portion of
private lateral replaced within the public right-of-way. Property owners will be
assessed 50% of the actual cost for lateral replacement on private property.

b. For properties declining to participate: City will only replace the portion of lateral
within the public right-of-way. Property owners will be assessed 100% of the actual
cost.

11



V.

STORMWATER FACILITIES
A. General Information

R-1 Zoning R-2 Zoning All Other Zoning**
STORM New Recon. New Recon. New Recon.
Max. Size (Diameter - - - - 5"
SEWER (Diameter)
. . Max. Depth - - - - 10’
(not including
Ne % Assessed (Main/Laterals)] 0% / 0% *0% / 0% | 0% / 0% "1 0%/ 0% *| 33%/50% 33%/50%
W
o o e Corner Lot Reduction |  Yes* Yes* Yes* Yes* None None
SllblelSlOﬂS) Actual Actual
Current Rate Cost $36.00 Cost $36.00 | Actual Cost $36.00
(Y=Assessed N =Not Assessed) Individual Rates
New Reconstruction (if not included in
Construction Items
current Rate above)
Administrative Fees (6%) Y Y -
Property Owner Notification Y Y -
Regional Stormwater Facilites (built prior to 1/1/02) Y Y See rates Pg. 21
Regional Stormwater Facilities (built between 1/1/02
and 3/1/06) Y Y See rates Pg. 21
Regional Stormwater Facilities (built after 3/1/06) N N -
Local Water Quality Practices N N -
Storm Sewer Main Y Y -
Storm Maintenance Holes Y Y -
Inlets Y Y -
Inlet Leads Y Y -
Drop Maintenance Holes Y Y -
Maintenance Hole Castings Y Y -
Storm Laterals Y Y 6" =$33.00
8" =$44.00
10" =$47.00
12" =$51.00
Greater than 12" actual cost
Lateral Connections N N -
Pipe Bedding Y Y -
Pipe Backfill Material Y Y -
Terrace Restoration Y Y -
Seed & Mulch Y Y -
Pavement Restoration N N -
Sawcutting N N -
Asphalt removal N N -
Concrete Removal N N -
Sidewalk Removal N N -
Erosion Control N N -

* See Calculation Guidelines

" See Section V.B.3.b. for exceptions

** Residential Use Properties to be Assessed as R-2

12




B. Calculation Guidelines — Stormwater Facilities

1. Stormwater facilities shall be installed as needed to serve properties contributing to the
need for, and benefiting from, such facilities. Storm main shall be installed to serve all
properties on arterial streets prior to total reconstruction of the pavement.

2. Assessable stormwater facilities under this section include storm sewer, mains and piping,
maintenance holes, inlets and inlet leads. Assessments shall also include overhead,
property acquisition and financing costs attributable to the facilities.

3. Assessments for storm sewer will be levied according to the front foot dimensions of
abutting property.

a. R-1,R-2, zoning
The cost of (re) constructing or relining in existing streets will be borne by the
Stormwater Utility.

b. The cost of constructing or reconstructing storm sewers, mini-sewers or other drainage
facilities in existing developed areas zoned R-1 and R-2 annexed after January 1, 1999
will be fully assessable to the abutting property owners.

c. All Other Zoning
The assessment rate for storm sewer (re) construction or relining in existing streets will
be 33% of the actual construction cost, up to and including 15" storm main (not deeper
than 10'), maintenance holes, inlets and inlet leads. Credit will be given for the
remaining useful life of a reconstructed or relined sewer based on current cost of
construction. For this purpose, the useful life of storm sewer will be 75 years.

4. Assessments for new developments will be based on the actual construction costs of
facilities required by the subdivision and charged on a per lot basis. To calculate an
equivalent lot cost for parkland, school properties or other atypical lots, use the average
size of a new development lot that abuts the parkland, school property or atypical lot.
Example, if a lot is 10,000 square feet and parkland, school property or atypical lot is
100,000 square feet; the charge for that land would be equivalent to 10 lots.

5. Any lot or parcel zoned other than R-1 or R-2, within the corporate limits which has not
paid a storm sewer assessment when the main was installed will, at the time the lateral
permit is taken out, be required to pay a connection fee with the lateral permit fee. This
will be effective the same date as the initial Special Assessment policy for storm sewers.
The connection fee, equivalent to the front foot and area assessment, will be based on the
assessment rates the year the main was installed.

6. Public owned property, including lands under the jurisdiction of the Board of Education,
Parks and Recreation Committee and other branches of city, state or county governments,
churches and private schools and other exempt properties will be assessed 100% of the
assessment rate regardless of the zoning.

7. Calculation Guidelines — (See chart for applicability):

a. On multiple frontage lots zoned R-1 or R-2, the shortest side will be assessed at 100%
of the assessment rate. On the other sides, the first 120 feet of each side will be assessed
at 0% of the assessment rate. The balance of the frontage will be assessed at 100% of
the assessment rate.

b. On multiple frontage lots where all sides have equal frontage, the side to be considered
the short side is the “Addressed” side.

13



c. At the completion of the improvements, where sewer exists across an entire parcel
frontage, but sewer construction only occurs along part of a parcel’s total frontage,
assessments will be calculated based on the partial frontage. The balance will be
assessed as work is completed along the remaining frontage. Where sewer exists along
only a portion of the parcel frontage, the entire frontage will be assessed.

d. Assessment for reconstruction or relining of storm sewer will be levied only when the
work affects the main to which the property is connected. Amount of assessment will
be calculated according to the existing policy.

e. No corner lot exception will be provided for combined properties that did not meet
the corner lot criteria prior to the combination.

f. New Development - 100% of actual construction costs of facilities required by the
development plus area assessment.

g. For cul-de-sac lots, the assessable footage for each lot shall be the sum of frontages
for all lots fully or partially abutting a cul-de-sac divided by the number of lots.

h. Assessable footage for sewers (re)constructed within Easements shall be equal to the
centerline length of easement falling within the property. Assessments will be levied
to only those properties with lateral connections to the easement sewer. The
easement length will be considered as “frontage” for purposes of calculating multiple-
frontage reductions (see 7a. above).

i. Rural to urban conversion shall be assessed as new.

V1. STORM SEWER LATERALS
A. General Information

1.

For new development funded by the City, the total cost of lateral installation will be
assessed to the property.

The assessment rate for reconstruction of laterals and construction of new laterals in
existing developed streets will be 50% of the actual construction cost.

Street Reconstruction:

a. Prior to total reconstruction, at locations where existing storm sewers are being
replaced or new storm sewers are being installed, storm laterals shall be installed to
all properties that are not yet served.

B. Calculation Guidelines

1.

Assessments for laterals will be based on the unit cost per foot as indicated in the chart in
section V.A applied to the length of the lateral between the storm sewer and the property
line. The length of lateral assessed shall not exceed 'z the street right-of-way width.
Assessments for laterals within cul-de-sacs will be based on the actual length of lateral
installed, but shall not exceed the right-of-way radius for the cul-de-sac bulb.

The cost of installing new laterals to properties zoned R-1 or R-2 will be borne by the
Stormwater Utility unless the property was annexed after January 1, 1999.

Assessments for laterals connected to sewers within easements will be based on actual
length of lateral installed, but not to exceed 'z the right-of-way width of the street for
which the property is addressed.

14



VIIL

WATERMAINS AND SERVICES

A. General Information

R-1,R-2,R-3 Zoning | C-1, C-2 Zoning All Other Zoning**
New Recon. New Recon. New Recon.
WATER Max. Size (Diameter) 8" 8" 12" 12" 16" 16"
MAIN Max. Depth - - - - - -
(not including Assessed at (%)]  100% 0%* 100% 0%* 100% 0%*
New Multip I:ﬁtt?fz Yes* Yes* Yes* Yes* None None
Subdivisions)
Current Rate Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Cost | Actual Cost
Cost Cost Cost Cost
(Y=Assessed N =Not Assessed) Individual Rates (if not
New Reconstruction included in current Rate
Construction Items above)
Administrative Fees (6%) Y N* -
Property Owner Notification Y N* -
Local Water Main Y N* -
Transmission Main N* N* -
Valves Y N* -
Hydrants Y N* -
Hydrant Leads Y N* -
1"- 1 1/4" Water Service ( Including connection) v N Actual Cost
In New Street(s)
1"-1 .1/4.1 Water Service ( Including connection) v N Actual Cost
In Existing Street(s)
1 1/2" - 2" Water Service ( Including connection) v N* Actual Cost
In New Street(s)
112 - ‘2 Water Service ( Including connection) v N* Actual Cost
In Existing Street(s)
Pipe Bedding Y N* -
Pipe Backfill Material Y N* -
Terrace Restoration Y N* -
Seed & Mulch Y N* -
Pavement Restoration N N -
Sawcutting N N -
Asphalt removal N N -
Concrete Removal N N -
Sidewalk Removal N N -
Erosion Control Y N -

* See Calculation Guidelines

** Residential Use Properties to be Assessed as R-2

Calculation Guidelines — Water Mains and Services

1. Assessments will be levied according to the front foot dimensions of abutting property,
except as noted. The assessment rate will be determined on the basis of actual construction

cost required by the city for development:

a. R-1,R-2and R-3 zoning. All costs to construct water main up to and including 8” main,

hydrants and valves.

b. C-1 and C-2 zoning. All costs to construct water main up to and including 12” main,

hydrants and valves.

c. Other zoning. All costs to construct water main up to and including 16” main, hydrants

and valves.

15




d. Water main installed for transmission use shall not be assessed, except if no other main
is available for service. The property shall be assessed at the rate of the year the main
was installed based on zoning at the time of connection.

e. All costs to furnish and install hydrants, including leads and valves shall be assessed.

f. In-kind water main reconstruction, including hydrants and leads, is not assessed.

g. All additional costs to upgrade a water main, including additional valving due to a
service and/or fire line, when requested, shall be borne by the property owner.

h. New, and/or additional water main(s) installed for circulation and/or looping in a
developed area shall not be assessed, except in case of B1.d.

Permission to connect to the City water main prior to annexation must be obtained from
the Common Council through the Utilities Committee.

. Any lot or parcel within the corporate limits which has not paid a water main assessment
when the main was installed will, at the time the water lateral permit is taken out, be
required to pay the connection fee with the lateral permit fee. Payment of a connection fee
must be made in full prior to connecting. The connection fee, equivalent to the front foot
water main assessment, will be based on the assessment rate the year the main was
installed. Payment for connection fees may be made in accordance with Section XI.

. New Service Installation. The property owner or developer per Schedule Cz-1 (attached)
shall pay all installation costs from the main through and including the curb shut-off.

Replacement of Service. All additional cost to upgrade a service (example, 1 copper to
4” service line) shall be borne by the property owner or developer.

Public owned property, including lands under the jurisdiction of the Board of Education,
Parks and Recreation Committee and other branches of city & county governments,
churches and private schools and other exempt properties will be assessed 100% of the C-
1, C-2 assessment rate regardless of the zoning.

Calculation Guidelines (see chart for applicability):

a. On multiple frontage lots zoned R-1, R-2 or R-3, the shortest side will be assessed at
100% of the assessment rate. On the other sides, the first 120 feet of each side will be
assessed at 0% of the assessment rate. The balance of the frontage will be assessed at
100% of the assessment rate.

b. No corner lot exception will be provided for combined properties that did not meet
the corner lot criteria prior to their combination.

c. Where water main exists across an entire parcel frontage, but construction only
occurs along part of a parcel’s total frontage, assessments will be calculated based on
the partial frontage. The balance will be assessed as work is completed along the
remaining frontage. Where water main exists along only a portion of the parcel
frontage, the entire frontage will be assessed.

d. On multiple frontage lots where all sides have equal frontage, the side to be
considered the short side is the “Addressed” side.

e. For cul-de-sac lots, the assessable footage for each lot shall be the sum of frontages
for all lots fully or partially abutting a cul-de-sac divided by the number of lots.

f. Assessable footage for water mains (re)constructed within Easements shall be equal
to the centerline length of easement falling within the property. Assessments will be
levied to only those properties with service connections to the easement main. The
easement length will be considered as “frontage” for purposes of calculating multiple-
frontage reductions (see 7a. above).

16




VIII.

g. Assessments for water services will be based on the unit cost per foot as indicated in
the chart in section VIL.A applied to the length of the service between the main and
the property line. The length of water service assessed shall not exceed ' the street
right-of-way width.

h. Assessments for water services within cul-de-sacs will be based on the actual length
of service installed, but shall not exceed the right-of-way radius for the cul-de-sac
bulb.

i. Assessments for laterals connected to watermain within easements will be based on
actual length of lateral installed, but not to exceed - the right-of-way width of the
street for which the property is addressed.

STREET LIGHTING

A. Calculation Guidelines

1.

Assessments for non-decorative streetlights will be levied according to the front foot
dimensions of abutting property except as noted.

Assessments will be levied at the time of and in conjunction with the initial street light
installation.

The assessment rate will be based on the actual cost of installation.

The assessment rate for replacement of existing streetlights will be based upon the
additional cost of enhanced features beyond standard street light requirements.
Decorative lighting beyond these standards will be based on the additional cost to install
equipment, along with the annual charge to power the decorative street lighting. On-going
annual special assessments will be reviewed to determine the lighting charge based on
current utility company approved rates.

B. Assessment Exceptions:

a.

On multiple frontage lots zoned R-1, R-2 or R-3, the shortest side will be assessed at
100% of the assessment rate. On the other sides, the first 120 feet of each side will be assessed
at 0% of the assessment rate. The balance of the frontage will be assessed at 100% of the
assessment rate.

On inside corner or multiple frontage lots, the side or sides precluded from access is not
included in the assessment frontage.

17



IX.

NEW SUBDIVISIONS
A. General Information

Subdivisions Platted prior to
1/1/04 or after 12/31/14

Subdivisions Platted between 1/1/04
and 12/31/14

NEW Funding MechanismS|Private Contracts / City Funds| Private Contracts /Standby Lines of
(Assessable) Credit
SUBDIVISION Development Agreement No Yes
DEVELOPMENT Required?
Assessed at (%) 100% 100%

Assessment Rates

Actual Costs Incurred.

Actual Costs Incurred.

Construction Items

(Y=City Funded/Assessable
D=Developer Financed)

(Y=City Funded/Escrow Draws
D=Developer Financed)

P T
1/1/04 After 12/31/14

City Administrative Fees (6%)

Area Assessment - Sanitary

Regional Stormwater Facilities

Sewer Televising

Temporary Asphalt Pavement

"
Concrete Pavement

Sidewalks

Boulevard Trees

Street Name Signs

Traffic Control Signs

Sanitary Sewer

Sanitary Overbuild

Storm Sewer

Storm Overbuild

Water Main

Water Main Overbuild

Sanitary Laterals

Storm Laterals

Water Services

Rear-yard Drains

Grading & Graveling (Right-of-way)

Lot Grading

Private Utilities (Gas, Electric, Telephone, Cable TV)

Seed & Mulch (Right-of-way)

Seed & Mulch (Lot areas)

Street Lights

Erosion Control

U|0|J|0|0 |0 |0 |0 |0|0|0|0|J|0 |0 |0 |J ||~ <K<K <<=~
U|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0 |0 |0 |0 |<|< <<= <<=~

wiivliviiviiviivliviiviiviiviiviivliviiviiviivliviE Gl diviiviiwiE g Rl

* See Calculation Guidelines

" See Section IX.B.2 for exceptions

B. Calculation Guidelines — New subdivisions

1. The City does not provide funding for New Subdivisions platted between January 1, 2004
and December 31, 2014 except as indicated in the chart above. Escrow accounts or
irrevocable lines of credit will be required of developers for all items administered or

installed by the City.
18




XI.

2. For subdivisions platted prior to 1/1/04 or after 12/31/14, assessments for concrete pavement
shall be levied in accordance with Section L. A. of this policy.

3. Engineering fees for new subdivision developments shall be included in assessments.
Included shall be preparation of plans and specifications, consultant fees, material testing
fees, field survey, inspection and assessment preparation.

4. Individual lots within but not part of a new development when funded by the city shall be
assessed at the current city interest rate.

5. Extraordinary sanitary sewer construction costs not to be assessed include pipes larger than
12” and depths greater than 16’ when project funded by the city.

6. Typical residential street lighting will consist of LED cut-off style fixture, mounted 30-feet
high on a wooden pole, spaced anywhere from 250 to 300 feet apart. Decorative lighting
beyond these standards will have on-going annual special assessments per development
agreements.

7. The effective date for interest to begin accumulating on new subdivision developments
will be the date of invoice. This includes all city utilities and street work.

8. Storm sewer area assessment for regional facilities built prior to 3-1-2006 shall be

based on the cost of storm sewer needed to serve the subdivision and the share of
downstream trunk main.

SPECIAL CHARGES

A. General definition

1. Special charges shall accrue interest starting 30 days following the invoice date. Interest
shall accrue at the same rate as for special assessments. (Board of Public Works, June 6,
1990).

METHOD OF PAYMENT

A. General Definition

1. Lump sum payment to be paid at due date.
2. One installment if the assessment is $1000 or less.
3. Five equal annual installments if the assessment is greater than $1000.

4. Deferred payments will bear an interest at the rate of prime plus 3.00% per annum on the
unpaid balance.

5. Separate current year special assessment bills may be combined to establish eligibility for
the $1000 limit for installment payment options. Finance Department must be notified
prior to November 1.

19



XII.

XIII.

XIV.

APPEAL PROCESS

1. If the governing body decides to reconsider and reopen any assessment, the body may,
after giving a public notice as required for the initial assessment, and after a public
hearing, amend, cancel or confirm the prior assessment. Any request for a change to the
first assessment, must be made within 30 days of the passage of the original final
resolution. The Clerk shall publish a notice of any resolution changing the assessment, as
was done with the original assessment.

MISCELLANEOUS
1. Deferred payment of special assessments is not permitted. (See WI Statutes Chapter 74.)

2. Any construction project where right-of-way acquisition would contribute to 25% or more
of the assessment rate shall be brought to the Finance Committee for review and
establishment of an appropriate assessment rate. In establishing this rate, the Board will
consider assessment rates for similar projects and any other information it considers
relevant.

REFERENCED ITEMS

1/17/83 Street and Sanitation Committee #3
The following policy concerning sump pump discharges adopted, “When streets are paved
where storm sewer laterals exist, curb openings for sump pump discharges or surface drainage
shall not be allowed.”

7/06/83 Street and Sanitation Committee #6
Most of this information has been put in Appendix IX Stormwater/Clear Water Discharges

3/03/93 Street and Sanitation Committee #10
Any driveway adjacent to a street paving project that is not used will be closed with curb and
gutter and will have the terrace reseeded in conjunction with the street paving. The cost of this
work is to be included with the assessment for curb and gutter on the project.
Any driveway aprons without improved surfaces shall be either paved with permanent surface
or abandoned and closed in conjunction with a street paving project. The cost of either option
will be assessed to the property.

2/02/94 Board of Public Works Report - This was adopted as part of the assessment policy.
“Publicly owned property, including lands under the jurisdiction of the Board of Education,
Park Board, Water Department and other branches of city, state or county governments, and
churches and private schools be assessed 100% of the assessment rate.

1/18/95 Board of Public Works #3 - The Board reaffirms its previous recommendation that: The
special assessment policy for stormwater that recovers 75% of costs from new developers and
40% from existing benefiting owners be approved. Existing is defined as that a building permit
has been issued at the time of adoption of the policy by the Common Council.

20



XV.

1/17/96 Board of Public Works — This was adopted with the assessment policy.
Sidewalks B.2 — The assessment rate for reconstruction of sidewalks will be 125% of the rate
of new sidewalks.

9/03/97 Municipal Services Committee — Amended Driveway Opening Policy “Any driveway
adjacent to a street reconstruction project that is not used will be permanently paved or closed
with curb and gutter and will have terrace reseeded in conjunction with the street work.

3/03/99 Board of Public Works — “Resolved, that the repair and replacement of existing sidewalks
in the green dot program be paid by the general fund after green dot has gone through the City
once. All hazardous sidewalks as defined by City criteria will be replaced at City cost.”

5/15/13 Board of Public Works — Prime plus 3% will be the rate set for the 5-year payment
option.

RATES FOR STORMWATER DETENTION BASINS (COST PER ERU’S)

SE Basin 75% of cost  $173.25
AAL Basin 75% of cost  $430.20
Meade Pond $797.04
Holland Pond $345.78
Ashbury Pond $593.76
Mud Creek South Pond $815.00 (2002 basin rate)
Cost for 2003 basins $860.00
Southpoint Commerce Park Pond North (K2a), Plank Road West
Cost for 2004 basins $915.00
Southpoint Commerce Park Pond South (K2B)
Cost for 2005 basins $1,104.00
Plank Road Northwest Pond

21



Sheet No. 1of1l
Schedule No. Cz-1
Amendment No. 64

RATE FILE
Public Service Commission of Wisconsin
Appleton Water Department

‘ WATER LATERAL INSTALLATION CHARGE |

Subdivision developers shall be responsible, where the main extension has been approved by the utility,
for the water service lateral installation costs from the main through the curb stop and box.

When the cost of a utility main extension is to be collected through assessment by the municipality, the
actual average water lateral installation costs from the main through the curb stop and box shall be
included in the assessment of the appropriate properties.

The initial water service lateral(s), not installed as part of a subdivision development or an assessable
utility extension, will be installed from the main through the curb stop and box by the utility, for which

the actual cost will be charged.

Billing: Same as Schedule Mg-1.

EFFECTIVE: December 30, 2010
PSCW AUTHORIZATION: 190-WR-112

22



Department of Parks & Recreation
1819 East Witzke Blvd.

C I TY O F Appleton, WI 54911

p: 920-832-3919

f: 920-993-3103
www.appleton.org

TO: Finance Committee

FROM: Dean R. Gazza

DATE: August 11, 2025

RE: Action: Approve request to sole source a contract to Nordon Business

Environments to purchase new workstations in the amount of $350,113.

The 2025 Capital Improvement Plan includes funding for furniture upgrades in Community
Development and Assessor spaces. The existing furniture is over 30 years old, with signs
of wear, lack of storage, and poor ergonomics. New furniture will replace existing worn
furniture, including ergonomic and adjustable height workstations, and provide adequate
storage for supplies.

This memo is a request to sole source a contract with Nordon Business Environments to
purchase new workstations in the amount of $350,113 and is within the budgeted
established. The amount includes new furniture and labor for removal, disposal, and
installation. Though this is a sole source to the only Haworth provider locally, the pricing
was competitively obtained by utilizing the US Communities Government Purchasing
Alliance Contract.

The City has adopted a standard of using Haworth workstations throughout the City of
Appleton facilities. By developing a standard, components can be modified or reused as
changes are made in the future. Overall, it is typical practice for any organization to adopt
a standard to allow for maximum flexibility and usage of the investment since this modular
workstation furniture can be set-up in various configurations and components can be
deleted/added as needed.

The City of Appleton is eligible to obtain government pricing which this project qualifies for,
therefore ensuring we are getting the lowest possible pricing available through the US
Communities Government Purchasing Alliance Contract, Haworth Contract #4400003402.

Please feel free to contact me at 832-5572 with any questions, or by email at
dean.gazza@appleton.org.



http://www.appleton.org/departmentname
mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org

SOLE SOURCE REQUEST

The undersigned certifies that the commodity/service shown below qualifies as a sole source
request and meets one or more of the following requirements. The department has
demonstrated, and the Purchasing Manager concurs that only one source exists, the price is
equitable, and/or noncompetitive negotiation is in the best interests of the City.

L] Unique, proprietary, or one-of-a-kind: Specific commodity/service is required and
available from only one source, giving the City a superior and necessary benefit that
cannot be obtained from other sources.

] Inadequate competition: Purchasing solicitation (bid, proposal, or quote) did not

result in any qualified vendor responses and competition is determined to be
inadequate.

(] Health or Safety Concern: When a health or safety concern exists that is not an
immediate threat but needs to be addressed in a period that does not allow for formal
competitive procurement procedures.

Continuity of design: Consistency with current commodity or service.

] Emergency procurement: A risk of human suffering or substantial damage to real or
personal property exists requiring immediate attention.

Cooperative purchase: Purchase from another governmental unit contract or state
approved purchasing association.

L] Other: Description provided below

PROPOSED DETAILS

Requesting dept: Facilities

Product/service: Furniture upgrade Community Development & Assessor spaces

Vendor name: Nordon Business

Total cost: $350,113

Justification and price quotation provided by the department, for the items to be considered
and approved as a sole source purchase attached for review.

Qengider Hrvaa 8/5/25

Puréhasifig Manager Date




Department of Parks & Recreation
1819 East Witzke Blvd.

C I TY O F Appleton, WI 54911

p: 920-832-3919

f: 920-993-3103
www.appleton.org

TO: Finance Committee

FROM: Dean R. Gazza

DATE: 8/11/2025

RE: Action: Award the “Mead Pool Coating and ADA Upgrades Project” contract to

Cardinal Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of $424,727 with a contingency of 7%
for a project total not to exceed $454,458.

Action: Approve a budget amendment to transfer $144,878 from the 2025 Parks
Hardscapes CIP to fully fund the Mead Pool Coating and ADA Upgrades Project.

BACKGROUND

The 2024 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) includes $350,000 for the Mead Pool Coating and ADA
Upgrades Project. Of that amount, $40,400 was allocated for design services, leaving a construction
budget of $309,560. The scope of work includes:

¢ Removal and replacement of the failing pool coating, which is deteriorating and no longer meets
the performance standards required for continued operation. The new coating will be compliant
with the Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection (DATCP)
regulations for public aquatic facilities.

¢ Construction of an ADA-compliant restroom and changing facility designed to accommodate
teens and adults with disabilities. The existing facilities at Mead Pool are not adequate to meet
current ADA standards, nor are they aligned with modern public health and accessibility
expectations. The new facilities will be designed in accordance with both ADA and DATCP
public health regulations to ensure they are accessible, hygienic, and functional for all patrons.

This accessibility upgrade has been a long-standing request from the community and is critical to
providing equitable, inclusive access to our aquatic facilities.

Despite efforts to keep the project within budget, construction bids came in higher than expected due to a
significant increase in material and labor costs—particularly for the specialty pool coating, which has
more than doubled in cost since it was last applied.

To move forward, we are requesting a budget amendment to transfer funds from the 2025 Parks
Hardscapes CIP.

PUBLIC BID RESULTS

Bids were received as follows:

e Cardinal Construction Co., Inc. (Low Bid) — $424,727
o IEI General Contractors, Inc. — $428,914


http://www.appleton.org/departmentname

FUNDING REQUEST & JUSTIFICATION

We are requesting a budget transfer of $144,878 from the 2025 Parks Hardscapes Project, which has a
total allocation of $350,000. This project includes:

e Lower Telulah/Riverheath Trail improvements

e Repaving of Veterans Memorial Park - Parking Lot #1

This transfer will allow the trail improvements project to proceed in 2025 as planned, while deferring the
Veterans Memorial Park parking lot repaving to the 2026 CIP. Deferring that work enables the City to
fully fund the essential improvements at Mead Pool this year, addressing both urgent facility maintenance
and long-standing accessibility concerns.

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend transferring $144,878 from the 2025 Parks Hardscapes CIP to the Mead Pool Coating
and ADA Upgrades Project.

Our consulting engineer has provided a formal recommendation to award the construction contract to
Cardinal Construction Co., Inc., the lowest responsive bidder. The Parks and Recreation Department has
reviewed and concurs with this recommendation. We recommend awarding the contract in the amount of
$424,727, with a 7% contingency to be used only as needed.

Please contact me at (920) 832-5572 or via email at dean.gazza@appletonwi.gov with any questions.



Department of Utilities

Wastewater Treatment Plant
DEPARTMENT OF 2006 East Newberry Street

U TI L | TI E S Appleton, W1 54915
p: 920-832-5945

f: 920-832-5949

www.appleton.org/government/utilities

MEMORANDUM
Date: August 8™, 2025
To: Chairperson Brad Firkus and Members of the Finance Committee
CC: Chris Stempa, Director of Utilities
Kelli Rindt, Enterprise Accounting Fund Manager
From: Ryan Rice, Deputy Director of Utilities
Subject: Action: Approve Budget Amendment: 2024 Aeration Process Upgrades CIP -

$19,845 and Phosphorus Analyzer CIP +$19,845.

BACKGROUND:

Recently, the Appleton Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP) evaluated online phosphorus
analyzers, which resulted in the Common Council awarding the purchase of a Chemscan miniOP
phosphorus analyzer to William Reid Ltd in the amount of $49,845.

The Phosphorus Analyzer CIP carried over from the 2024 budget included $30,000. This budget
amendment is needed to purchase the equipment.

RECOMMENDATION:
The following budget amendments will be required to fund the project:
2024 Aeration Process Upgrades CIP -$19,845
Phosphorus Analyzer CIP +$19,845
If you have any questions regarding this request, please contact Ryan Rice at 920-832-5945.

Encl: Finance Department Budget Amendment Request Form



CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER Change Order No. 1
Date 08/11/25
Contract No. 46-24 for the following public work : Unit G-24 Southpoint Commerce Park sewer & water and Grade & Gravel
between Carl Bowers & Sons Construction Co , N1844 Maloney Road, Kaukauna, Wl 54130
(Contractor Name) (Contractor Address)
and the City of Appleton dated: 3/20/2024 is hereby changed in the following particular wit:
Current
Item Contract Current C.O. Amount Contingency New Contract New Contingency
No. Account No. Amount Contingency (+/-) (+/-) Total Total
1 4162.6809. $2,301,282.52 $65,000.00 $55,000.00 -$55,000.00 $2,356,282.52 $10,000.00
2 $0.00 $0.00
3 $0.00 $0.00
4 $0.00 $0.00
5 $0.00 $0.00
6 $0.00 $0.00
7 $0.00 $0.00
8 $0.00 $0.00
9 $0.00 $0.00
10 $0.00 $0.00
Total $2,301,282.52 $65,000.00 $55,000.00 ($55,000.00) $2,356,282.52 $10,000.00
Reason for Change: additional grading quantities required
The Contract Time will be (increased / decreased / unchanged) by this Change Order: unchanged Days
The Date of Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is: unchanged
Finance Committee Agenda Date: 08/11/25
Date approved by Council: 08/20/25
https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/sites/PublicWorks-Teams/Shared Documents/DPW City Hall/Engineering/PROJECTS/2024/G-24 Southpoint Commerce Center/G-24 Change Order No 1.xIsx 8/6/2025



Department of Utilities

Water Treatment Facility

DEPARTMENT OF 2281 Manitowoc Rd.
U TI L | TI E S Menasha, WI 54952
p:920-997-4200

f: 920-997-3240

www.appletonwi.gov/government/departments/utilities

MEMORANDUM

Date: July 30, 2025

To: Chairperson Brad Firkus and Members of the Finance Committee
CC: Assistant City Attorney Darrin Glad

Kelli Rindt, Enterprise Accounting Fund Manager
From: Chris Stempa, Director of Utilities

Subject: Information: Appleton Water Treatment Facility Bulk Hypochlorite
Tank Replacement Tank Purchase Awarded to GPI Corporation in the
amount of $179,540

BACKGROUND:

A special Finance Committee meeting was held on February 5, 2025 to approve a
resolution that would allow for the emergency replacement of three 11,000-gallon
fiberglass-reinforced plastic (FRP) bulk storage tanks. Tank manufacturers typically expect
up to 15 years of life when storing 12.5% sodium hypochlorite in an FRP tank before relining
is necessary to restore the interior protective coating layers. Inspections revealed leaks
from each of the original (2001) bulk storage tanks over the past year with that number and
leak severity increasing even after these tanks were relined.

Following emergency authorization being granted, Utilities Department management
worked with McMahon to generate plans and specifications for replacement bulk tank
system. It was critical that the new tank design conformed with the spatial limitations and
challenges presented by a fully operational chemical room. The tank dimensions (height
and width) were decreased to avoid removing existing chemical lines, electrical,
communication wiring, and/or concrete masonry walls. The change from the original design
decreased bulk tank capacity from 11,000 gallons to 5,230 gallons. That was required to
provide the flexibility needed to facilitate the tank replacement work without incurring
extensive additional costs otherwise required to relocate or remove existing infrastructure.
The new design required the number of bulk tanks to increase from three to four to maintain
the volume of net bulk storage required to sustain treatment operations for at least 30-days.
The modified tank design still provides 40 days of effective storage. Additionally, the new
chemical storage tanks will be installed in the existing chemical containment area of the
existing tanks which substantially reduces costs.



Finance Committee Informational Item
Appleton Water Treatment Plant Bulk Hypochlorite Tank Replacement Award to GPI
Page 2 of 2

DNR AUTHORIZATION AND REQUESTS FOR QUOTATION

On May 12, 2025 the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) provided formal
approval of the bulk tank replacement plans and specifications submitted by McMahon per
s. NR 811.09(3) of the Wisconsin Administrative Code. WDNR approval was required
before initiating the Request for Quotation (RFQ) process.

The first RFQ process was initiated in mid-May immediately after WDNR approval.
However, only two tank manufacturers submitted quotes. Subsequent questions arose
regarding the difference in the cost for the two-year warranty and manufacturer references.
Therefore, McMahon lead a second RFQ process that was conducted in early July with
four (4) quotes received. As outlined in the attached Letter of Recommendation packet,
the quotes from the second RFQ process ranged from $148,526 to $201,820. The least
cost quote submitted by August Fiberglass was considered non-responsive because they
failed to provide a list of references.

PURCHASE AWARD:

Based on the RFQ process, GPI Corporation provided the least cost responsive quote for
a total of $179,540. GPI Corporation was the only company that manufactures their FRP
tanks in Wisconsin. GPI Corporation provided the AWTF with new fluoride FRP tanks as
part of the 2018-2019 Chemical System Upgrades project. Per the resolution granted by
the Finance Committee on February 5, 2025, the AWTF has issued a purchase order to
GPI Corporation. Funding for the new sodium hypochlorite tank purchase will come from
available budget carryover associated with the Corrosion Control project.

If you have any questions, please contact Chris Stempa at 920-832-5945.

Encl: Letter of Recommendation and Bid Tabulation



McMAHON

ENGINEERS \ ARCHITECTS

July 24, 2025

Chris Stempa, Director of Utilities

City of Appleton Department of Utilities
2281 Manitowoc Road

Menasha, W1 54952

Re: City of Appleton Department of Utilities
Chemical Tank Replacement Equipment Procurement
Request for Quotation
Letter of Recommendation
McM. No. A0005-09-25-00158

Dear Chris,

On July 23, 2025, quotes were received via email for the above referenced project. Four (4) quotes were
received, ranging in price from $148,526.00 to $201,820.00 (quotation tabulation enclosed).

August Fiberglass failed to provide a list of references with their quote, so we consider their quote to be
non-responsive. Therefore, we recommend awarding the purchase of four (4) new bulk hypochlorite
tanks to GPI Corporation as the lowest responsible bidder.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

Respectfully,

McMahon Associates, Inc.

Dnif§] Vgt

Donald J. Voogt, P.E.
Vice President / Senior Project Manager

DJV:jlh
Enclosures: Bid Tabulation
McMAHON ASSOCIATES, INC. 1445 McMAHON DRIVE NEENAH, WI 54956 Mailing P.O. BOX 1025 NEENAH, WI 54957-1025 s E R V I C E

PH 920.751.4200 FAX 920.751.4284 MCM@MCMGRP.COM WWW.MCMGRP.COM INSPIRED
SINCE 1909



McMAHON

ARCHITECTS

QUOTATION TABULATION

Owner:
Project Name:

Contract No.

Bid Date:

Bid Time:

Project Manager:

City of Appleton Department of Utilities
Chemical Tank Replacement

Equipment Procurement — Chemical Tanks
A0005-09-25-00158

July 23, 2035

2:00 p.m., local time

Donald J. Voogt, P.E.

Contract No.
A0005-09-25-00158

AUGUSTA FIBERGLASS
86 Lake Cynthia Road
Blackville, SC 29817

GPI CORPORATION
101 Northern Road / PO BOX 140
Schofield, W1 54476-0140

Quotation Amount

Tanks $113,336.00 Tanks $176,340.00
Shipping Estimate $8,580.00 Shipping Estimate $3,200.00
Warranty $26,610.00 Warranty Included
Total $148,526.00 Total $179,540.00

Contract No.
A0005-09-25-00158

HAWKINS, INC.
1882 Morris Street
Fond du Lac, WI 54935

FIBERGLASS SOLUTIONS, LLC
995 Waube Lane
Green Bay, WI 54304

Quotation Amount

Tanks $182,700.00 Tanks $196,880.00
Shipping Included Shipping Estimate $4,940.00
Warranty Unknown Warranty Unknown
Total $182,700.00 Total $201,820.00




CITY OF

APPLETON

MEMORANDUM

Date: August 11, 2025

To: Finance Committee

From: Jeri Ohman, Finance Director

Subject: Funding for creation of sustainability and climate action plan

At the May 21, 2025 Common Council meeting, the carryover request in the amount of
$107,625 for the creation of a sustainability and climate action plan was approved. One
of the concerns voiced that evening was the use of debt to fund the project. After the
meeting, | reviewed financial records and determined that interest income could be used
as a funding source instead of debt. In order to achieve this result, the 2025 debt issue
for Facilities projects was reduced by this amount.

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.



RISK MANAGEMENT
2025 MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

Property & Liability Management & Loss Control Notable Items Completed (1% half-2025):

Annually required hearing tests, respirator fit tests and respirator medical evaluations are completed in
the late summer to ensure compliance with our respiratory protection and hearing conservation program.
As of July 1, 2025, 56 special events were reviewed to assure adequate risk transfer to the event sponsor.
As of July 1, 2025, 142 City service and construction contracts were reviewed to ensure adequate risk
transfer to the applicable contractor/vendor.

Policies reviewed/updated: Blood Borne Pathogens (annually required review) and Confined Spaces.
Completed building safety audits at the following locations (as of July 1, 2025): Library, Parks &
Recreation Maintenance Building, DPW — Parking Ramp Shop Area and Memorial Park (Jones
Building).

Pursued subrogation and restitution for damage to City property caused by third parties. As of July 1,
2025, $58,522 has been recovered for several losses that occurred in 2021 and afterwards.

Facilitated both Central and City Hall safety committee meetings as well as the City Hall security
committee meetings. Attended several departmental safety committee meetings on a regular basis.
Completed or scheduled the following safety training during 2025: root cause analysis for supervisory
staff, basic safety training for library staff, various training for DPW staff (accident, near miss reporting,
blood borne pathogens and fentanyl awareness), aerial lift safety for Utilities staff and OSHA 30
(scheduled for fall 2025). Also, coordinated WI DNR-required UTV/ATV training.

Coordinated with CVMIC loss control representative on the following items: DPW and PRFM jobsite
safety visits, fume hood inspections for Utilities and Police, multiple training sessions during DPW's
safety training days, and worksite inspections for DPW.

Participated in several new employee and supervisor training sessions where various risk management
topics were covered.

Created safety training information for seasonal staff within DPW, Parks & Recreation and Utilities.
Purchased liability coverage for city-sponsored special events (no deductible, $1M coverage limit).
Coordinated industrial hygiene sampling for DPW and Parks & Recreation.

Reviewed vehicle and building insurable values with applicable departments for appropriate coverage
relative to anticipated premium increases.

Implemented internal work comp allocation system for 2026 budget.

Completed necessary submissions for CVMIC risk reimbursement program (city was reimbursed
$10,000).



	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_MeetingMinutes 21-July-2025
	0002_1_Grave Reimbursment 2024 to 2025
	0002_2_Military Report 2024 - 2025
	Military Report (1)

	0002_3_VETERANS JULY 2024 - JUNE 2025.docx
	0003_1_2026 Assessment Policy - 08-20-2025
	I. STREET CONSTRUCTION AND RECONSTRUCTION
	II. SIDEWALKS
	III. SANITARY SEWER
	IV. SANITARY SEWER LATERALS
	V. STORMWATER FACILITIES
	VI. STORM SEWER LATERALS
	VII. WATERMAINS AND SERVICES
	VIII. STREET LIGHTING
	IX. NEW SUBDIVISIONS
	X. SPECIAL CHARGES
	XI. METHOD OF PAYMENT
	XII. APPEAL PROCESS
	XIII. MISCELLANEOUS
	XIV. REFERENCED ITEMS
	XV. RATES FOR STORMWATER DETENTION BASINS (COST PER ERU’S)

	0004_1_2025 Community Dev. Furniture Upgrades Sole Source
	0004_2_FMD - Nordon
	0005_1_2025 Mead Pool Coating and ADA Upgrades Project with Budget Transfer
	0006_1_250808_Finance_Budget_Transfer_P Analyzer
	0010_1_G-24 Change Order No 1
	Contract Change Order

	0011_1_250730_Finance Info Memo_HypoTank Purchase
	0012_1_Debt Issue Memo
	0013_1_2025 Mid Year Risk Report
	RISK MANAGEMENT
	2025 MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW
	Property & Liability Management & Loss Control Notable Items Completed (1st half-2025):
	• Annually required hearing tests, respirator fit tests and respirator medical evaluations are completed in the late summer to ensure compliance with our respiratory protection and hearing conservation program.
	• As of July 1, 2025, 56 special events were reviewed to assure adequate risk transfer to the event sponsor.
	• As of July 1, 2025, 142 City service and construction contracts were reviewed to ensure adequate risk transfer to the applicable contractor/vendor.
	• Policies reviewed/updated: Blood Borne Pathogens (annually required review) and Confined Spaces.
	• Completed building safety audits at the following locations (as of July 1, 2025): Library, Parks & Recreation Maintenance Building, DPW – Parking Ramp Shop Area and Memorial Park (Jones Building).
	• Pursued subrogation and restitution for damage to City property caused by third parties.  As of July 1, 2025, $58,522 has been recovered for several losses that occurred in 2021 and afterwards.
	• Facilitated both Central and City Hall safety committee meetings as well as the City Hall security committee meetings.  Attended several departmental safety committee meetings on a regular basis.
	• Completed or scheduled the following safety training during 2025: root cause analysis for supervisory staff, basic safety training for library staff, various training for DPW staff (accident, near miss reporting, blood borne pathogens and fentanyl a...
	• Coordinated with CVMIC loss control representative on the following items: DPW and PRFM jobsite safety visits, fume hood inspections for Utilities and Police, multiple training sessions during DPW's safety training days, and worksite inspections for...
	• Participated in several new employee and supervisor training sessions where various risk management topics were covered.
	• Created safety training information for seasonal staff within DPW, Parks & Recreation and Utilities.
	• Purchased liability coverage for city-sponsored special events (no deductible, $1M coverage limit).
	• Coordinated industrial hygiene sampling for DPW and Parks & Recreation.
	• Reviewed vehicle and building insurable values with applicable departments for appropriate coverage relative to anticipated premium increases.
	• Implemented internal work comp allocation system for 2026 budget.
	• Completed necessary submissions for CVMIC risk reimbursement program (city was reimbursed $10,000).


